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HK
38 59 131
23 103
KPMG 193
2022 31 15.64
2021 31
14.24
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2021 12 31

HK

2021 2020
11,344 10,389
(5,497) (5,334)
5,847 5,055
49 148
(1,051) (1,063)
4,845 4,140
(800) 971)
10 4,045 3,169
11
(413) (452)
(322) (116)
(735) (568)
3,310 2,601
13 b @) 131
HK 2,933 2,732
HK
15 33.19 30.92
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2021 2020
177,420 162,484
(85,973) (83,424)
91,477 79,060
766 2,315
(16.,438) (16,625)
75,776 64,750
(12,512) (15,186)
10 63,264 49,563
11
(6,459) (7,069)
(5.036) (1,814)
(11,495) (8,884)
51,768 40,680
13 b (5,896) 2,049
HK 45,872 42,728
HK
15 5.19 4.84

171
HK

HK
14
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HK

2021 12 31
2021 2020

HK 2,933 2,732

197 86

@33) (14)

164 72

O) 8

_ 1 (6)

1 -

4) 2

160 74

469 173)

152 17

. 1) (607)

- (63) (63)

3 81

386 (745)

K 3,479 2,061
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2021 2020
HK 45,872 42,728
3,081 1,345
(516) (219)
2,565 1,126
94 125
_ 16 (€D)
16 -
(63) 31
2,502 1,157
7,335 (2,706)
2,377 266
- (2,205) (9,493)
- (985) (985)
(485) 1,267
6,037 (11,652)
HK 54,412 32,234

95 171
HK
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HK
2021 12 31
2021 2020
71,316 68,814
5,424 5,620
16 76,740 74,434
17 33,623 33,623
19 477 278
26 596 616
27 a 1,045 887
112,481 109,838
20 904 726
21 1,157 951
22 252 -
23 a 34 52
2,347 1,729
24 (4,078) (2,820)
22 - (796)
25 (1,233) (4,184)
29 a (506) (541)
(5,817 (8,341)
(3,470) (6,612)
109,011 103,226
25 (45,393) (40,706)
26 Q97 (697)
(2,317) (2,268)
29 b (9,982) (9,597)
27 a (350) (367)
28 (1,314) (1,122)
(59,553) (54,757)
13 ¢ (1,065) (726)
48,393 47,743
30 b 8 8
48,385 47,735
48,393 47,743
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2021 2020
1,115,382 1,076,251
84,831 87,897
16 1,200,214 1,164,148
17 525,864 525,864
19 7,460 4,348
26 9,321 9,634
27 a 16,344 13,873
1,759,203 1,717,866
20 14,139 11,355
21 18,095 14,874
22 3,941 -
23 a 532 813
36,707 27,042
24 (63.780) (44,105)
22 - (12,449)
25 (19,284) (65,438)
29 a (7,914) (8,461)
(90,978) (130, 453)
(54,271) (103,412)
1,704,932 1,614,455
25 (709,947) (636,642)
26 (3.081) (10,901)
(36,238) (35,472)
29 b (156,118) (150,097)
27 a (5.474) (5,740)
28 (20,551) (17,548)
(931,409) (856,399)
13 ¢ (16,657) (11,355)
756,867 746,701
30 b 125 125
756,741 746,575
756,867 746,701
2022 15
95 171

HK
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HK
2021 12 31
AK
30 30 30 30
c d i 14
2020 8 47,472 324 (754) 1,422 48,472
- - - 2,732 - 2,732
- - (743) 72 - (671)
_ - (743) 2,804 - 2,061
- - 40 - - 40
14 - - - - (1,422) (1,422)
C
“ b i ; - (1,408) - (1,408)
" _ _ - (1,422) 1,422 -
oo 124 8 47,472 (379) (780) 1,422 47,743
- - - 2,033 - 2,033
- - 382 164 - 546
- - 382 3,097 - 3,479
- - 1 - - 1
14 ¢ - - - . (1.422) (1.422)
14 b - - - (1.408) - (1,408)
" _ _ - (1,422) 1,422 -
2021 12 31 8 47,472 4 G13) 1,422 48,393
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HK
30 30 30 30
b c d i d 14
2020 125 | 742,462 5,060 | (11,793) | 22,240 | 758,102
- - - 42,728 - 42,728
- - (11,621) 1,126 - (10,494)
- - (11,621) | 43,855 - 32,234
. _ 626 § - 626
14 § . - § (22,240) | (22,240)
C
W b - - - (22,021) - (22,021)
o _ _ - 22,240y | 22,240 -
200 1z 125 | 742,462 5,928) | (12,199) 22,240 | 746,701
- - - 45,872 - 45,872
- . 5,974 2,565 - 8,539
- B 5,974 48,437 B 54,412
- - 16 - - 16
14 ¢ - - - | 2,240 | (22,240)
W b - - | 2,02 - | .0
o i , - | 22400 | 22,240 -
2021 12 31 125 | 742,462 63 (8,023) | 22,240 | 756,867
95 171

HK
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HK
2021 12 31

2021 2020

23 b 7,344 7,351

(720) (936)

13 16

(448) (488)

6,189 5,943

(4,603) (4,614)

(223) (201)

(199) (236)

- 1

(5,025) (5,050)

23 ¢ 16,048 973

23 ¢ (14,450) (1,250)

23 ¢ - 10,249

23 ¢ - (8,267)

23 ¢ @ ®)

23 ¢ 327 201

23 ¢ (278) (264)

(2.830) (2,830)

(1,185) (1,101)

@D (208)

52 266

3 (6)

12 31 23 a 34 52
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2021 2020
23 b 114,860 114,970
(11,261) (14,639)
203 250
(7.,007) (7,632)
96,796 92,949
(71,991) (72,163)
(3,488) (3,144)
(3.112) (3,691)
- 16
(78,591) (78,982)
23 ¢ 250,991 15,218
23 ¢ (225,998) (19,550)
23 ¢ - 160,294
23 ¢ - (129,296)
23 ¢ @D “4n
23 ¢ 5,114 4,551
23 ¢ (4,348) (4,129)
(44,261) (44,261)
(18,533) (17,220)
(328) (3,253)
813 4,160
47 94)
12 31 23 a 532 813

95 171
HK
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2011 2013 23
HK 44
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HK 2014
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2021 12 31 HK
2021 12 31 HK
HK
HK 2021 12 31
HK
HK HK
HK
HK
HK
HK
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2021 2020
11,312 10,363
o) *
11,307 10,359
37 30
11,344 10,389
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2021 2020
13 15
- 101
36 32
49 148
2020
2021 2020
312 344
229 231
194 170
196 193
120 125
1,051 1,063
2021 2020
1,085 1,236
@) (250)
14 (15)
800 971
2.5 2020 2.9
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10
2021 2020
- 2,924 2,817
- 2 2
196 196
4 6
4,812 3,499
23 12
735 740
120 125
5 6
415,000 2020 301,000
11
2021 2020
414 452
@ -
413 452
29 b
322 116
735 568
2021
16.5% 2020 16.5%
8.25 16.5 2020
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2021 2020
4,045 3,169
667 523
75 73
® (D)
® Q)
() -
735 568
2021 16.5%
2020 16.5% 2020
8.25
16.5 2020
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12
HK
HK
2021 2020
9
0.12 0.89 - - 1.01 0.88
0.09 8.98 - 9.95 19.02 18.31
0.07 3.32 - - 3.39 3.39
0.07 2.95 0.02 0.61 3.65 3.54
’ 0.09 4.23 0.01 1.93 6.26 6.15
0.09 0.37 - - 0.46 0.38
HK
A H -

0.07 - - - 0.07 0.07
0.14 0.06 - - 0.20 0.19
07 - - - 0.07 07
07 - - - 0.07 07
07 - - - 0.07 07
’ 0.11 0.01 - - 0.12 0.10
0.09 - - - 0.09 -
0.07 0.02 - - 0.09 0.09
0.16 0.02 - - 0.18 0.16
0.07 0.02 - - 0.09 0.09
0.16 0.01 - - 0.17 0.17
0.09 0.03 - - 0.12 0.10
- 0.07 - - 0.07 0.06
- 0.03 - - 0.03 0.02

2021 1.70 21.01 0.03 12.49 35.23
2020 1.49 20.68 0.04 11.70 33.01
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HK
2021 13
2020
2020
2021 2020
6.95 9.34
0.91 1.26
2.69 3.42
10.55 14.02
2020
2021 2020
0 - 1,000,000 - 2
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 - 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 - 2
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2 2
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 5 4
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 2 1
5,000,001 - 5,500,000 2 2
2021 2020
72 71
2 2
74 73
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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HEC HEC
()
HEC
HEC
HEC
2013 2009-2018
2018 12 31
2019
HEC 2019 1 1 2033 12 31
65
2021 2020
344 (164)
1 8
- 11
32 14
377 (131)
2021 31,760,000 HEC 2021
2021 12 31
2020 24,767,000 HEC 2020 10,509,000
14,258,000 2021
2020 12 31
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2020 848 14 16 878
14 (14) - _
(164) 8 - (156)
2020 - - 43 43
2020 - - (39) (39)
2020 12 31
2021 698 8 20 726
8 ® - -
344 1 - 345
2021 - - 14 14
2021 - - (20) (20)
2021 12 31 1,050 1 14 1,065
14
2021 2020
2,933 2,732
5,317 4,693
(1,048) 149
108 (223)
22 7
(448) (488)
(1,366) (555)
(4,802) (4,850)
(930) (1,121)
1,152 899
14. HK
1,678 1,931
2,830 2,830

1.1
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HK
HK
HK
14.1 ¢
2021 12 31
HK
2021 2020
HK
15.94 1,408 1,408
2020 15.94
HK
16.09 1,422 1,422
2020 16.09
2,830 2,830
2021 12 31 HK
16.09 2020 16.09 1,422 2020 1,422
HK
2021 12 31
16.09 2020 16.09 1,422 2020 1,422
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2021 12 31
8,836,200,000 2020 8,836,200,000
HK
2021 2020
HK

16.09 1,422 1,422

2020 16.09
15 HK
HK

HK 2,933

2020 2,732 HK
8,836,200,000 2020 8,836,200,000
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16
2020 16,811 4 | 54,434 956 | 9,759 | 81,964 6,959 | 88,923
- 2 94 31 5,130 5,257 1 5,258
1,436 - 3,804 62 (5,302) - - -
(12) (©) (447) (25) - (487) - (487)
2020 12 31
091 11 18,235 3 | 57,885 | 1,024 | 9,587 | 86,734 | 6,960 | 93,694
- 1 92 28 | 5,528 | 5,649 - | 5,649
406 - 2,653 131 | (3,190) - - -
@D ) (332) (26) - (381) - (381)
2021 12 31 18,620 2 | 60,208 1,157 | 11,925 | 92,002 | 6,960 | 98,962
2020 1 3,012 2 | 11,803 456 - | 15,363 1,144 | 16,507
@4 (©) (307) (25) - (339) - (339)
525 2 2,260 109 - 2,896 196 3,092
2020 12 31
2021 1 1 3,533 1 | 13,846 540 - | 17,920 1,340 | 19,260
(10 @ (203) (25) - (240) - (240)
532 2 | 2,348 124 - | 3,006 196 | 3,202
2021 12 31 4,055 1 | 15,991 639 - | 20,686 1,536 | 22,222
2021 12 31 14,565 1 | 44,307 518 | 11,025 | 71,316 | 5,424 | 76,740
2020 12 31 14,702 2 | 44,039 484 | 9,587 | 68,814 | 5,620 | 74,434
271 2020

250
80 2020 7
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17
2021 2020
12 31 33,623 33,623
HEC CGU
CGU 16 2020
16
HEC
5.99 2020 5.54
CGU 16
1.0 2020 1.0
2021 11 30
7.17 2020 6.74 CGU
2021 11 30
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18
2021 12 31
HK
100
100
2,411,600,000 100
9,004

1,750

100
1,056
400
25
19
(LNG)
( 10 30
HKLTL )

HKLTL LNG HEC
CAPCO HKLTL

HEC CAPCO
HKLTL
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HKLTL
2021 2020
1 -
1 231
2 231
2,105 699
(517) 3)
(1,590) (927)
1 1
2021 2020
477 278
477 278
HEC HKLTL  LNG HKLTL 699
HKLTL
20
2021 2020
620 430
284 296
904 726
144 2020 158
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21
2021 2020
611 470
457 358
1,068 828
26 4 3
85 120
1,157 951
2020 312
2021 2020
580 451
30 19
12 1 -
611 470

16
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2021
2 593 1y 582
9 8 () 7
0 22 - 22
623 12) 611

2020
2 438 (10) 428
6 9 (€H) 8
0 34 - 34
481 (11) 470
HEC 31(a)
2021 2020

11 12
2 -
(€))] (€3]
12 3 12 11
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22
HEC
2021 2020
(796) (647)
3,122 1,823
(2,074) (1,972)
12 31 252 (796)
23
2021 2020
34 52
2021 2020
4,045 3,169
(13) (15)
800 971
14 15
10 2,926 2,819
10 196 196
10 120 125
28 a 194 170
() 4
13 ¢ (20) (39)
192) 98
(257 70
(1,048) 149
560 (385)
22 7
28 a () ()
7,344 7,351
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28
25 25 b

2021 1 1 18,080 26,810 2,268 2 (392) 685 47,453

16,048 - - - - - 16,048

(14,450) - - - - - (14,450)

- - - @ - - @

- - 327 - - - 327

- - 78) - - - 78)

1,598 - 49 @ - - 1,645

- - - - 3 (498) (495)

- - - 1 - - 1

(66) 204 - - - - 138

2021 12 31 19,612 27,014 2,317 1 (389) 187 48,742
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( 28
2
5 25 b
2020 1 1 18,333 [ 24,679 2,241 3 (459) - 44,797
973 - - - - - 973
(1,250) - - - - - (1,250)
-| 10,249 - - - - 10,249
-1 .267) - - - - (8,267)
- - - @) - - ©)
- - 291 - - - 291
- - (264) - - - (264)
e 1,982 27 3) - - 1,729
- 15 - - - - 15
- (58) - - 67 685 694
- - - 2 - - 2
24 192 - - - - 216
2020 12 31 18,080 [ 26,810 2,268 2 (392) 685 47,453
24
2021 2020
3,970 2,794
28 b 1 1
26 29 3
4,000 2,798
b 78 22
4,078 2,820
2021 2020
2,020 1,189
770 616
12 1,180 989
3,970 2,794
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2021 2020
22 18
64 10
® ®)
12 31 78 22

25

2021 2020
19,612 18,080
(1,233) (4,184)
18,379 13,896
8,952 8,946
779 752
9,731 9,698
13,549 13,534
3,734 3,578
17,283 17,112
45,393 40,706

2.4 4 2020 2.4 4
1.875 2.875 2020 1.875 2.875
1,056 2020 12 31 1,056
3.5 2020 3.5
2020 250
2021 12 31 400 2020 12 31 400

4.375 2020 4.375 2022 10 22
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18
31(b)
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021
299 2,500
24,294 1,298
20,800 36,908
45,393 40,706
26
2021 2020
- (€)) - 57
15 (150) - (628)
585 © 619 ()
- (30) - (11)
600 (226) 619 (700)
4 (29) 3 ®3)
596 Q9N 616 (697)
600 (226) 619 (700)
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27
27(b)
MPF MPF
MPF
2000 12 MPF
MPF
271(@)( )
2021 1 1
FSA
2021 12 31 19
2011
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2021 2020
3,121 3,401
(3,816) (3,921)
(695) (520)
(1,045) (887)
350 367
(695) (520)
12
2021 2020
3,401 3,459
60 59
24 61
11 13
- (18) (25)
- (€D} 214
- 35 20
(288) (396)
Q) (O]
12 31 3,121 3,401
2021 2020
3,921 3,900
24 69
117 295
38 44
11 13
(288) (396)
() ©)
12 31 3,816 3,921

2022

45
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2021 2020
60 59
- ®
60 51
2021 2020
41 33
19 18
60 51
2021 2020
489 403
197 86
12 31 686 489
2021 2020
308 382
205 214
606 610
192 197
2,401 2,466
104 52
3,816 3,921
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12 31
2021 2020
1.6% 1.0%
1.2% 0.4%
5.0% 5. 0%
2.5% 2.0%
2021 2020
- 0.25 (56) (59)
- 0.25 59 62
- 0.25 56 59
- 0.25 (54) (56)
- 749 an
- 75 78
2021 2020
- 0.25 (20) (26)
- 0.25 21 26
- 0.25 20 26
2020
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2021 2020
12.9 13.2
6.0 6.5
2021 2020
66 63
1,857,000 2020 1,148,000
28
2021 2020
a 1,314 1,121
b - 1
1,314 1,122
2021
1,121
194
@
12 31 1,314

HK
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2021 2020
1 1
1 1 2
1 2
29
2021 2020
414 452
92 89
506 541
2021 2020
9,982 9,597
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2020 9,573 107) 16 58 9,540
136 29 6 ® 116
_ - 14 (81 67
- - - 8 8

2020 12 31

2021 9,709 (131) 36 an 9,597
152 173 ()] 1 322
- - 33 30 63

2021 12 31 9,861 42 65 14 9,982

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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30
HK
HK
30 30 30 30
b c d i | d 14

2020 8 | 47,472 8 2,437 1,422 51,347
2020

- ; - 3,161 - 3,161

- ; (335) - - (335)

- - (335) 3,161 - 2,826
Cue _ _ _ - @222 | (1,422
¢ oo , - ; - (1,408) - (1,408)
¢ uob , - ; - (1,422) 1,422 ;
2020 12 31 8 47,472 @27) 2,768 1,422 51,343
2021
2021

- _ § 3,360 - 3,369

- _ 232 - - 232

- _ 232 3,360 - 3,601
C 1 ) § _ § - @422 | @422
¢ b ) - - . (1,408) - (1,408)
¢ b ) - ; § (1,422) 1,422 .
2021 12 31 8 | 47,472 (95) 3,307 1,422 52,114

HK
16.09 2020 16.09 1,422 2020 1,422
HK
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HK
2021
0.0005
1 12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
1 12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
1 12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
0.0005
1 12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
2020
0.0005
1 12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
1 12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
1 12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
0.0005
1 12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100

34 HK
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@)

2020 87 12) 75
(869) 704 (165)

44 @ 17

81 (112) (31)

(744) 565 (179)

- (25) (25)

oob 1z (657) 528 (129)
371 92 463

152 - 152

(49) (15) (64)

474 77 551

- ®) ®

2021 12 31 (183) 600 417
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2020 82 167 249
- (120) (487) (607)
- - (63) (63)
) - ®) ®
i - 65 65
20 92 112
2020 12 31
2021 (18) (232) (250)
) ©)] (132) (141)
- - (63) (63)
i - 1 1
i - 6 6
2 32 34
2021 12 31 (25) (388) (413)

HK HK
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2021 2020
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020
46,626 44,890
€D (52)
46,592 44,838
48,393 47,743
46,592 44,838
94,985 92,581
49% 48%
31
HEC
2021 12 31 399
2020 12 31 293 21
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30
21
1SDA
2021 2020

31 F i 15 (15) - - - -
31 F i 585 (180) 405 619 (459) 160

600 (195) 405 619 (459) 160
31 F i 37 (26) 11 57 (38) 19
31 F i 150 (130) 20 628 (407) 221
31 F i 39 (39) - 15 14) 1

226 (195) 31 700 (459) 241

2021 12 31
6,250 2020 12 31 5,150
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2021
12 31
2,014 1,072 26,446 31,384 60,916 46,773
3,846 - - - 3,846 3,846
5,860 1,072 26,446 31,384 64,762 50,619
139 138 395 66 738 155
30
202 201 520 119 1,042
Q97) Qo7) (509) Qi (1,020)
(576)
1,379 141 4 16,750 18,274
(1,378) (140) @ | @7.523) | (9,049)
30
733 54 - - 787
(713) (46) - - (759)

192/530



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020
12 31
4,930 3,224 3,385 48,245 59,784 45,035
2,628 - - - 2,628 2,628
7,558 3,224 3,385 48,245 62,412 47,663
121 128 386 171 806 637
50
202 201 605 235 1,243
(198) (198) (592) (230) (1,218)
(615)
2,886 55 30 16,750 19,721
(2,902) (55) @8) | @7.523) | (20,508)
11
202 156 38 - 396
(202) (148) (35) - (385)

(®
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11

2021 2020
2.74 (37,108) 2.67 (36,956)
0.03 34 0.03 52
0.94 (9,518) 0.90 (7,934)
* 2.317) * (2,268)
(11,801) (10, 150)

*0.01
2021 12 31
92 2020 12 31 84
460 2020 12 31 570

2020
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2021
- 24
(161) (3.478)
(2.229) -
(2.390) (3.454)
1,347 3,251
950 -
(93) (203)
2020
4 (3,260)
(2,209) -
(2,283) (3,260)
1,279 2,966
950 -
(54) (294)
2021 2020
[0 13 19 21
10

2020
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021
/
(€
022 -2035
2.08% 27,668 15 - @87 - 371 @7D) -
@
D022 -2032
8,786 207 4 ® Q) 36 (36) -
)
D027  -2032
9,489 374 - - - 56 (56) -
2020
/
(1
2021 -2035
2.15% 19,768 - - (685) - (869) 869 -
)
2021 -2032
10,383 224 3 o) o) 285 (285) -
3)
2027 -2032
9,338 392 - - - 419 (419) -
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2021
/
2022 - 787 ® ) ©0) 20
2023
2021
(759) 30
2020
/
2021 - 396 (10) I6)) 1) 1
2023
2020
(384) 1
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2021 2020
USD HKD 7.4875 7.4985
JPY HKD 0.0752 0.0775
GBP  HKD 10.2134 10.0986
EUR HKD 9.5059 9.4779
JPY USD 107.0041 104.0172
GBP USD 1.3345 -
13
2021 2020
31 15 -
31 585 619
600 619
31 37 57
31 150 628
31 39 15
226 700
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
32
12 31
2021 2020
5,840 7,140
13,111 14,303
2021 12 31 141
2020 343
2021 12 31
1,628 2020 1,170
33
2021 12 31

2020 12 31
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34
PAH
PAH
42 2020 41
PAH
2021 12 31 PAH 2020
HKLTL 2021 12 31 19
HKLTL 13 2020
HEC CAPCO HKLTL LNG HEC
CAPCO LNG HKLTL 2021
HKLTL HEC 11 2020
12
34 14A
14A
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35 HK
2021 2020
60,882 60,338
12 41
1 1
13 42
(22) (14)
- (2,698)
(22) (2,712)
(&) (2,670)
60,873 57,668
(8,664) (5,998)
(95) (327)
(8,759) (6,325)
52,114 51,343
30 a
8 8
52,106 51,335
52,114 51,343
2022 15
36

2021 12 31 PAH
33.37 21.00 19.90
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38 2021 12 31
2021 12 31

16 2022 1 1

2018 -2020 2022 1 1

1 2023 1 1
1 2023
2023
12 2023
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#» HE Electric investments Anrual Repart 3021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

For vhae peor ended 31 Decerriber 202 1
[Expretsad i Hong Kong dollars)

20 2020
HNote 5 million 1 million
Revenue 5 11,344 10,389
Direct costs (5.497) (5,334
5,847 5,085
iher revenue and other net income 7 a9 148
CHher operating Loss g (1,051} 11,063}
Operating profit 4,845 4,140
Finance costs g {8040) 1971)
Profit before taxation 10 4,045 3169
Income tax: i1
Current {413) 1452)
Deferred (322) {118
{735} [564)
Profit after taxation 3310 1.601
‘Scheme of Control translers 13k (377 13
Profit for the year attributable to the holders of
Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company 2,933 2,732
Earnings per Share Stapled Unit/share of the Company
Basic and diluted I5 33.19 cents 3092 cents

The notes on pages 95 o 171 form part of these comolidated linancial statements.
As exglained inonote 2, the comalidated financial statements of the Trest and the consolidated finanoa statements of the
Company are presented together

Details of disributionsidividends payable to holders of Share Stapled Unitsishares ef the Company attributable o the profit for
the year are sel oul in note 14,
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Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

'-'r|IIr1-|'.| riadod 3 Fllqlll:ur
ILJL:lr*-\..II 1 Hong Kong dal

2021 2020
5 million § milion
Prafit for the year attributable to the holders of Share Stapled Units/
shares of the Company 2,933 2,732
Other comprabensive income for the year, after tax and
reclassification adjustments
Items that will not be reclassifiod to profit or loss
Defined benefit ratirement scheames!
Remeasurement of net defined benedit assetBiability 147 i
Wet deferred tax charged 1o other comprehensive income 133) (14)
164 72
Cach fiow hadges:
Effectve partion of changes in fair value of hedging matruments
recognised during the year {8} ]
Cost of hedging — changes in far value 1 ()
het deferred tax credited 1o other comprehensive income 1 ~
Ko 2
160 74
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Cash fiow hedges.
Effectve partion of changes in fair value of hedging mstruments
recognised dusing the year 459 (173
Reclassificataon adpstments for amounts transfered to prodil or loss 152 Lh
Cost of hedging — changes m far value {141} {607)
Cost of hedging - reclassified to profit or loss (63} (63}
Wet deferred tx (charged¥eredited to other comprehensive income 31) &
£ 45)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable
to the holders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company 3,479 2,061

The notes on pages 95 19 171 form part of these consclidated financial statemants.
As explained In note 2, the consolidated firanclal statements of the Trust and the consolidated financlal statements of the
Codmparny are presanted together
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#» HE Electric investments Anrual Repart 3021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

41 31 Deceridaer 2021
[Expretsad i Hong Kong dollars)

o 2020
Hote 5 millian 5 millioe
Mon-current asiols
PFreperty, plant and equipment 7.316 BE.&14
Interests in leasehold land held for own use 5,424 5,620
1] 76,740 74,434
Goodwill 17 33,623 33,623
Interest in & joint venlure 9 an 278
Dervathee financial instruments 26 596 [l
Employee retirerment benefit scheme axsets 27ah 1,045 Ba7
112,481 100,838
Current assels
Irmvaniones 20 Lo 126
Trade and ather recetvables 21 1,157 951
Futl Clagse Recovery Accoun 11 252 -
Bank deposits and cash 23(a) 34 ¥
2,347 1,729
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables and contract labilites 24 [(a,078) 12,8200
Fuel Clause Recovery Account 22 - {796]
Current partion of bank loans and ather interest-beanng borrowings 25 (1,233) {4,184)
Cufrant tax payable 2904 {506} 1541)
(5.817) {8,341)
Met current llabilities {3,470} {6,612)
Total assets less current liabilities 108,011 103,226
Man-current liabilities
Bank loans and other interest-bearng bormowings 25 (45,303} (40,705]
Derivative lnancial instruments 26 {197} 1697)
Customers' deposits (2.317) (2,263
Detarred tax liabilities 2900 9,982) (9.597)
Employee ratirerment banelit scheme labilities 27ia} {350} 381
Ciher nan-current labilives iE (1,314) (1,122
(59,553) (54,757
Scheme of Contral Fund and Reserve 130ch (1,065} 725)
MNet assets 48,393 47,743
Capital and reservas
Share capital FMb) 4 -1
Resaryes 48,385 47,735
Total equity 48,393 47,743

Approved e suthorsed for ssue by the Boards on 15 March 2022
Wan Chi Tin Chan Loi Shun
Director Dirctor

The natas on pages 35 to 171 form part of these comalidated financial statements
As explaines in note 2, the consalidated financlal statements of the Trust and the consolidated financial statements ol the
Company are presented (ogather.
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Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

For the yof et dod 31 Decarvber 2021

(Exprecsod i Hong Kong dollar)
Atsibutable to holders of
Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company
Proposed/
detlared
Share Share Heslging Revenwe  distribution/
capital pramism resenve reserve dividend Total
§ midlian (note 30ENF  (node 300K Cnobe IONAKE  (nate 300K [note 14)
Balance at 1 Jamuary 2020 a A7 473 Er [754) 1,422 48,472
Changes i egquity for 2020
Prafit for the year - - - .73 - 1,732
(bt comprehersie ncome = - (743 T2 - (BT
Total cornprenirae inooma = = (743) 1804 - 2081
Ameuns irarsfered 1o the inial
carnying amount af hedged itens,
net of 1ax - - 40 - - £0
Fnal cistriumcnvsecond interim dividend
N respect o priacds year approved
and paid {see note 14id) - - - - (1,422% 11,422}
Intedim distribution/irst inferm diadend
pald (see note 141bH - - - (1,408} - {1,408
Proposed final detribubandaecond inlerm
dividend {see note 14k} - = = (1.A22) 1,422 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021 8 47,472 (379} (780} 1422 47,743
Changes in equity for 202§
Pralit for the year - - - 2,933 - 2,933
Cthed compiehensie income = = a2 164 - 546
Total comprehersive income - - a2 3,087 - 3479

Amourts trarsfered 1o the initial

camying amount of hedged items,

nat of lax - - 1 - - 1
Fnal dstrbuliondsecond intenm daidend

in respect of previows year approved

and paid (ses note 1400} - - - - (1422} 1.423)
Intenim distibution st inferm dimdend

paid (see nese T4kl = - - (1,408} - {1.408)
Proposed final ditributionsecond inerim

dividend {see note 1:4bj} - i - (1.422) 1,422 g
Balance at 31 December 2021 ] AT 472 i (513) 1,422 48,393

The notes on pages 95 19 171 form part of these consclidated financial statemants.
As explained In note 2, the consolidated firanclal statements of the Trust and the consolidated financlal statements of the
Cowmipany are presented together
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#» HE Electric investments Anrual Repart 3021

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

For the wear entded 31 Determriber 200 1
[Expretsad i Hong Kong dollars)

021 2020
Haote § million § million
Operating activities
Cash genrated from ooerations 23k 7344 7.3%
Intenest paid (720} 1935)
Interest recewid 13 16
Hong Eong Profits Tax paid {448) {484)
MNet cash generated from operating activities 6,189 5,843
Investing activitics
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and equipmen?t
and capital ock (a,603) (4,614
Capitalised inferest paid (223) 201
hesss loar bo & joiey venture (129) (2385)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and eguipment = 1
Net cash used in investing activities (5,025) (5,050
Financing activities
Proceeds from bank loans 23ich 16,048 973
Repayment of bank leans 23id {1a,450) 11,252
tssuance of medium term notes 23i0 - 10,24%
Redemption of mediurn Term notes 23(c) - (B,267)
Payment of lease liabilites 23fch {2) [E)]
Mew customers’ deposits 23(ch 3z7 291
Repayment of customers’ deposils FE]A] (278) {264)
Distributionsdividends paid (2,830) {2,830
Net cash used in Ainancing ncxivities _(1988) ALt
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents 21 (208)
Cash and cash equivalenis at 1 lanuary 52 265
Effect of foreign exchanpe rate changes 3 (@)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Decamber 23{a) 34 5

The natas on pages 35 to 171 form part of these comalidated financial statements
As explaines in note 2, the consalidated financlal statements of the Trust and the consolidated financial statements ol the
Company are presented (ogather.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

(Enpressod in |||TA1I:| Kunl] dollars unless olhenwne indicated)

General information

HEK Electric Invvestments Limited {the *Cormpany”) wat incorporated in the Cayman lslands on 23 Septernber 2013 as an
exempted company with bmited liabilty under the Companies Law 2011 {as consofidated and revised) of the Cayman
Iskands. The Compary has estabished a principal place of business in Hong Kang at Hongkong Ekeciric Cemre, 44 Kennedy
Road, Hong Keng. The principal activity of the Company is investmant holding.

On 1 January 2014, HK Electric ivvestrments (the =Trust™) was constituted as a trust by a Hong Kong law governed Trast
Deod enteed into between HK Electic Investments Manager Limited (the "Trustes-Manager, in 13 capacity a8 the
trustes-manager of the Trust) and the Company. The scope of activity of the Trust as provided in the Trust Deed is limited
to imvesting in the Company,

The Share Stapaed Units strocture compases (1) @ unit in the Trust; (2) a benefical intemst n a specificaly identfied
ordinary share in the Company which & linked to the unit and hedd by Trustee-Manager as legal owner in its capacity as
trustes-manager of the Trust; and (3) a specifically identified preference share in the Company which is "stapled” 1o the
unit. The Shase Stapled Units are jointly sswad by the Trust and the Company and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Steck Exchange™

Basis of presentation

Pusuant 1o tha Trust Deed, the Taest and the Company ame each recuerad 10 prepare thie oan sels of Bnancal stiemants
on a consolidated bass. The consolidated fmancial statements of the Trust for the year ended 31 December 2021 comprise
the conscldated financal statements af the Trust, the Company and its subsidiaries {iogether the “Trust Group™ ) and

the Trust Group’s nterest in a joint venture. The consclidated financial statemants of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2021 comprise the consalidated fmancial taterments of the Company and s subsicharies (together the
“Group®} and the Group's mterest in a joint venture,

The Trust controks the Company and the sole activity of the Trust during the year ended 31 December 2021 was Investng
in the Company, Therelore, the consolidated resulis and financal position that would be presanted in the consolidated
financial statements of the Trust are identical to the consolidated results and financlal position of the Company with the
anly differences being disclosunes of share capinal of the Compary, The Drectors of the Trustee-Manager and Disectors of
the Compary believe that it is clearer to present the consolidated financial staterments of the Trust and of the Compary
together, The consolidated financial natements of the Trust and tha consolidated financlal staterments of the Compairy ane
presented together to the extent they are identical and are harenafter referred as the “consolidated financial statements
af 1he Trust and of the Company”

The comsolidated statement of profit o loss, consolidated statement of comprehersie income, consolidated statement of
linandial position, corsoldated staternent of changes in equity, consolidated cash flow statement, significant accounting
policies and the mlated explanatory infedmation are comman o 1he Trust and the Company, Infarmation specilic to the
Company are disciosed saparately in the relevant explanatory information in noles to the consolidated linancial statements.

The Trust Group and the Group are referrad as the “Groups”.
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#» HE Electric investments Anrual Repart 3021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

(Expriciued i Hong Kong doflars unless othersse indicated)

96

3. Significant accounting policies

ta)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These finencial statements have baen prepared in accordance with all applcable Hong Konig Financial Reporting
Standards ("HEFRS: "), which i a collective term that includes a1l applicable indnddual Hong Keng Finaacal Roporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards {"HKASs ™) and Interpeetations msued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountanis (" HEICPA™Y, accounting peinciples generally accepled in Hong Kong and the disclosure
mequirerments of the Hong Kang Companies Ordenance. These finandial statements also comply wih the appcable
diclosuno prostsions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Steck Exchange of Hong Koag Limited,
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Groups are set out below.

The HEX PA has issued a number of amendments 1o HEFRSS that are fest effective or available for early adoption
fer the current accounting peried of the Groups. Note 4 provides nfermation on ary changes in sczounting policles
resulling from initial spplication of these developments to the exterd thal they ae relevant to the Groups for the
current and pror accounting perceds reflected i these financeal statemants

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis Used in the preparation of the financlal statements = the historical cost basis exep? as
explaired in the accounting policies set ouf belomw.

The preparaton of financial statements in conformity with HEFRSs requires management to make judpements,
estimates and assumplions that affect the application of pedcies and reponed ameounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and assooated assumptions are based on historical expenence and vanous other factors
than are bedeved to be reasonable under the croumstances, the resuls of which form the basis of making the
pedgaments about carmying values of assets and Babilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
resuits may differ from these estimates.

Thie estimates and wnderlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basts, Revisians 1o accounting estimates. ane
recognised in the penod in which the estimate s revised if the revision affects anly that period, or in the peviod of the
revisson and future pedods if the revasion affects both current and futune perods.

hdgements made by management in the applicatosn of HIKERSS that have sgnificant effect on the financia
statements and major sources of estimation uncertanty are dscussed in note 37.
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{c) Subsidiaries

Subsigiaries are entities over which the Groups have control. The Growgs contral an entity when the Groups are
exposed, or have the nghts, To vanabile retunns Trom their mvobement with the entity and have the ability 1o affiect
therse returns thiough thedr power over the entity. When assessing whether the Groups have power, only substantye
fights (hedd by thie Graups of other parties) ane considined.

Ivestinenis i subsidianes are consolidated o the consobdated financal statements from the date that contrsl
cammances ufiild the date that eantrel eeates. Itra-group balances, 1ransactions and cash llaws and ary indeased
prefits ansang from intri-group tramsactons arg chminated m full m preparing the comsolidated financia? statements
Unrealised losses resulting from Intra-group transactions are ebiminated in the same wary as unrealised gains but only
o the exfent that there is no evidence of Impairment

Changes in the Groups’ Intenests in a subsidiany that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
trartsactions, wherely aduaiments are made 1o the amounts of controing and non-contralling sterests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relathee interests, but no adjustments are made to goodvall and no gain
of logs is recognised

When the Groups lose control of a swibsidiany, it is acoounted for a5 a disposal of the entine interest in that subsidiary,
waith a resulting gain o loss being recognised v profit of loss. Any interest retasned an that former subsadiary at the
date when control & st & recognised a1 fair value and this amount is regarded as the fai value on initlal recogntion
of a finarcial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on Initial recognition of an iwestment in a joint venturs o an
AIOCIATE

I the Corrpany's staterment of financual podition, imestments in subsiduaries are stated o1 cost leds impalrment losues
(see note 3MHED,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

I£x|'|r|,".'.rr] 1 I-|nng rCuru_q doinr unless othéraee indicaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{d} Joint venture

A joint venture is an arangement whereby the Groups or the Company and other parties contractually agree 1o
shase control of the arrangemsent, and have raghts 1o the net assets of the arrangement,

An irvestment iy a joint venture is accounted Tor in the consolidated financlal statements under the equily melhod,
undess it is clasufied as beld for sale for nchuded inoa dispotal group that is cassitied a5 held {or <ale). Under the
equity method, the mwestment is initially recosded at cost, adgested for any excess of the Groups' share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investes’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment {if any). The cost
of the iInvestment Inchudes purchase price, other costs directly attributable to1he acquisition of the iInvestment.

and arry direct ivestment inta the jcint venture that fooms part of the Groups” equity investment. Thereatter, the
irvesiment s adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Groups' share of the Invesiee’s net assets and any
mparment loss relating to the rvesiment (see note 3thiil. At esch repoeting date, the Groups assess whether
thiere 1s any ohiective evidence that the iInvestiment is iImpaired. Any acquision-dale excess over oost, the Groups”
shase of the post-acquistion, post-tax results of the investee and any impairment losses for the year ara recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit oe loss, wheteas the Groups' share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
imroestes’s ather compeehensye income is recognsed n the consoddated statement of comprehensse ncome.

Whign the Groups' shate of keswes exceeds their inlanest in the joint venture, 1he Groups' interst s reduced to mil aad
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Groups have incwmed legal or constructive
oblgations or made payments on behall of the investee. For this purpose, the Groups' intenest is the carrying amount
of the imvestment under the equity method, logether with any other long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Groups” et imvestment in the joint venture (after applying the expected credd loss ("ECL") mode! to such
other kong-term infetests where applcable (see note 3thii).

Unrealised profits and losses resufting from transactions between the Groups and their joint venture are elim nated to
the extent of the Groups' interest o the imvestee, except whene unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, inwhich case they are recognised immediately In profit or loss.

i an irvestrment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate, the retained interest is not remeasured.
ratead, the investment cominues to be accounted for under the equity method, in all other cases, when the Groups
caase to have joint control over a joint venture, it is acooumted for 35 a dsposal of the entire interest in that imvestes,
with a resulting gain o loss being recognised in profit of loss. Ary interest rtained in that former investes at thee
date when joint control is lost is recognised at far value and 1his amount is regarded as the fair value on indial
mecogniton of & finandial asset.
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(e} Goodwill

(fy

Goodwill represents the axcess of:
(il the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred; over
(i) the nat fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and Fabilites measured a5 at the acquisition date.

When (i} = graatar than (i), than this excess is recognsed immediately in prafil or ks a4 4 gain o0 a bamgain
purchase

Goodwill & stated af oost bess accumadated Impalrment besses, Goodwill arising on a business combdnation s
allocated 10 sach cash-ganerating unit, of groups of cash-genesating units, that is eected 1o benelit from the
syniengies of the combination and s tested anmually for impairment (see note 3hHsE)

Property,. plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land and depreciation and amortisation

{iy  Property, plant and equipment including right-of-ise aisets arising from beases ower loasshold properties where
the Groups are not registered owner of the property interest, other than assets under construction, are stated
at cost less accumulated deprecation (see note fviel and impairment bosses (s note 33

(i) Assels undee Construction ane stated at cost liss impairmant Kesses (See note b, and an nol depediated,
Assets under construction are transfemed to appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
compleied and ready for use.

fily  The oost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment indudes the cost of matenials, direct
labour, the initial astimata, where relevant, of the costs of dismaniling and removing the items and restoning
the site om which they are located and an appeapelate proportion of preduction averheads and borrowing costs
(see note M

{iv)  Subsequent expenditure to replace 3 component of an item of property, plant and equipment that ks
sccounted for separately, or o improve s cperational performance i inchaded in the 1em’s carming amdount
of recogrised 45 4 separale ilem 45 appropriale when it b probable that fulure economic benelits in exoess of
the originally ssessed standand of periommance of the sxisting asset will fioe bo the Grouns and the cost of the
item can be measured refiably. All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expanse in the period in
wehich it s incurred,

(v} Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an itlem of property, plant and equipment are
detormined as the difference betweoen the not disposal procoeds and the carrging amaunt of the tem and are
recogrised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

(Exprririied i I-|nn|_'_| (ullg doinr unless othéraee indicaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f} Property, plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land and deprediation and amortisation
{eontinued)

i) Loasehold land bedd for own wie 5 stated at cost less acoumulated amortsation (seo nate 30l and
Imipairment bosses (see note Ihyil.

iwil)  The cost ol acguirng intenests in leasehold Bind i amaorticed on a straght-lne basis over 1he shorter of the
estimated useful Ivos of the leased assets and the uncxpired bease fenm

will) Depreciation is cakoelated to weite off the cost of ems of propenty. plant and equipment ks thelr estimatad
residual vahee, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated wsehs lves as follows;

fears
Cabde tunnels 100
Euildings B
Ash lagoon and gas pipeline 53
Transmission and distribution equipment, overhead lines and cables 1]
Generating plant and machinary as
Gis turbines and gas turbine combined cyde 30
Mechanical meters 30
Fhotovoltaic sysiems 25
Wined turbines 20
Electronic meters, microwave and optical fiber equipment and
trunk radio Systems 15
Furniture and fixtures, sundry plant and equipment 10
Computers Sto 10
Motor vehicles and marine craft Stob
Wiwkshop toals and office equipment 5
Froperties leased for owm use Shorter of the unexpred term
of lrate and the propertios’
estmated useful life

Irmmcrvabde assels are amortised on @ straight-line basis over the unexpined bease LEms of the land on which
the immovihle assets are stuated if the unexpired lease terms of the land are shorter than the estimated useful
livirs of the irnmenable asats.

Whiere parts of an item of propery, plant and equipment have different usefol lives, the cost of the propery,
plant and equipment is allocated on a reasonabie basis between the parts and each part s depreciated
separately, Both the useful bfe of an asset and ils residual value, il any, are revsewed annaally,
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fg) Leased assets

At incepton of a contract, the Groups assess whether the contract is, or contains, 3 bease. A contract is, or contans,
& lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a pevsod of time in exchange for
consideration. Control ks conveyed where the customer has both the nght to direct the use of the identified assat and
to obtain substantally all of the econamic binefits from that ue,

Al the leass commencemen| date, the Groups recognise 3 eghit-al-use asset and 3 kase lisks by, except for
shart-1em b that have & leae term of 12 months of less and leases af kow-valus atats, When the Grougs entes
into @ lease o respect of a lowevalue asset, the Groups decide whothor to capatalice the base on a loateby-kase
basis. The lease payments associated with those beases which are not capstalised are recognised as an expense on a
systernatic basss ower the lease term.

Whizne the kease is capitalised, the lease Kability & intially recognised af the presont value of the lease payments
payabie over the lease term, discounted wing the nlerest rate imglicit in the bease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, wsing a relevant incremental borrowing rate, After indtial recognition, the lease Fabilisy s measured at
amartsed cost and intenest expense B caloulated wsing the effectve mlerest methed,

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease & capitaized s initially measured a1 cost, which comprises tha
wniteal amount of the lease liabdiy plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, and any
irithal direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the nght-of-use asset also includes an estmate of cosis
to dismantle and remave the underlying assel or to restare the underkying asset or the ste on which it is located,
dacountid 1o their present value, Wss any kase incentives reothd, The nght=-of-use asse1 s subsequently stated at
st bess accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 3if] and (hiinl.

The lease Eability i remeasured when there s a change in [ulwe l2ase payments ansng from a changs in an index
of rate, o there {5 a change in the Groups” estimate of the amount expected 10 be payabie wnder a resichial value
guarantee, or there s a change ansing from the reassessment of whether the Groups will b2 reasonably certain

10 emercisg & purchade, sxlenscn of termination optson, When the lesse Bability B remeasured in this way, &
comespondcing adistment i made to the cammyang amount of the right-of-use asset. or Is recorded in profit or loss f
the carrying amount of the rght-ol-use assel has been reduced fo 2ero.

Thie hease Bability 15 alsa remeasured when there s a change in the scoge of 8 lease or the consderation for a lease
that = rat originally prowided for in the lease contract that i not accounted for a5 a separate kase, In this case the
bease lablity is remeasured Based on the revited lease payrmenis and loase term using & rovised discount rate at thw
effective date of the modificatson,

The current partion al long-term laase liabiites is detarminad as the present value of contractual paymeants that ame
due to be settied within 12 months after the reportng penod,
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h} Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i

Cradit lozses fram financal instruments

The Groups recognse @ loss allowance Tar ECLs on the finandaal asiets measwed ol amortesed cost Gindudng
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables). Financial assets measured at fair value, including
dermvative financial assets, ane not sulsect 1o the ECL assessmant,

Mesurement of ECLs

ECLs are @ probabdity-weighted estimate of credit bosses, Credit bosses ane measured as the present vahee of all
expected cash shortfalls (Lo, the difference between the cosh fiows due ta the Grougs in sccordance with the
coniract and the cash flows that the Groups expect 1o receivel.

The expected cash shortfalls are dscounted usng the following discount rates where the effect of discounting
I8 Fratistial.

= trade and other recevables and fed rate financial assets; effectna intorest rate determined a1 initial
recognition or an approkimation thereod,

- variable rate financial assets: current effective interest rate.

The maxmmum pencd conssdered when estimating ECLs s the maimum conbractua penicd over which the
GICHARS are exposed o credit mk,

I imeasaring ECLs, the Groups take nto accaunt reasonable and suppartable information that i svadable
without undue cost or effort, This includes infonmalion about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future sconomic conditians,

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

= 12-monith ECLs! these are losses that are expected 1o reult from possible default events within the
12 months atier the reporting date; and

= lifetirre ECLa: thew are losses thal are expecied 1o result from all possible defaull events over the
expected lives of the itemns to which the ECL model apples,

Loss allowances for trade recelvables are always measured at an amount equal 1o lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financal assets are estirmated using & provision matrix based on the Groups” histerscal eradit boss saporienses,
adyusied for factors that are specfic o the debiors and an assessment of both the curnent and fosecast genesal
econgmic conditions a1 the reporting date,

For all ather fnancial instruments, the Groups recognise a koss allowance equal 10 12-month ECLS unioss thare

has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in whach case
thie loss allowance B misasured at an amount eoual 1o lifetne BCLS
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Significant increases in credit risk

Ire assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has ncreased signaficantly since initial recogniton,
the Groups compare the risk of default occurnng on the Tinancal istrument assessed a1 the reporting date
with that assessed a1 the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the Groups consider that a
difault ovent occirs when (i the debios i unlikely 1o pay its crodit abligations fo the Groups in full, without
recourse by the Groups to actions such as reaksing security (6 any is held); or (i) the recelvables ane 90 days
past due and the debior does not response 1o the Groups' collection activitles as historncal experience
Indicates that receivables that meet those critena are generally not recovarable. The Groups consider both
quanititmive and qualitative information that i reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forveard-looking informabon that ks avallable without undue cost or effort

In particular, the following information s taken into acoount when assessng whather credit sk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

= fadure 1o make payments-of principal of interest on their contractually due dates;

an actual or expected dgnificant deterioration in a financlal Instrument's external or internal credit rating
if availabia);

- anactual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

= emsting o forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or kegal esvronemend that have a
sgnificant adverse effect on the detnor's ahdity to mest its obligation 1o the Groups,

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a sgnificant increass in credit risk i
performed on either an indiidual basis or a collective basis, When 1he assessmeni s performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings,

ECLs are remaasuned al each raparting date to rellect changes n tha financal Bilfurmients credit fik e
initial recograbon, Any change in the ECL amount s recognised as an impalrment gain of loss in profit of loss.

The Groups recegnise an impairment gain o loss for all financlal indruments with & cormesponding adjustment
1o their camying amount through a loss allowance account,
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OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

(Exprririied i I-|nn|_'_| (ullg doinr unless othéraee indicaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{(h} Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(I} Credit lozses from financial instruments (continued)
Basis of cakculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance with note 3ril) s caloulated based on the gross canying amount of
the finarcial asset unless the financial asset is creditsmpasred, in whach case intenest income & calculated based
on the amartsed cost e, the gross camying amount less loss aliowance) of the finangial asset,
At each reporting date, the Groups assess whether a financial assot s aedit-impaired. A financal asset s
crecit-impained when one of mone ovents that have a detnmental impact on the esbmated future cash flows of
the finarclal asset have otcumed.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-smpaired includes the following observable events;
- significant financial ditficultias of the deblor;
- abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal emvironment that have an adverse
edfect on the debios

Write-aff policy

The gross carmysng amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or m full) o the extent that theme

I8 no reamtic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when the Groups determine that the debicr does
niot have assets or sources of income that could generate sulficient cash flows 1o repay the amounls subject o

thie werite-off

Sutsunguent recoveres of an asset that was previously written off are recognisd a5 4 reversal of impairment in
prodit of loss i the peniod in which the recovery ofowrs.
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Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and axtemal sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting pered 1o identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwall, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets and interests in leasshold land;
= goodwll;, and
= Investments in subsidiaries and joant verdures in the Company’s statement of financial postion,

It any such indication exists, the xsset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, lor goodwdl, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not thene is any indication of impairment.

- Cabculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and walue in use.
In assessing valus in uwe, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 10 ther present vales using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
speciic 1o the assel. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assats, the recoverable amount s determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflones independently (1.8, a cash-generating unit)

= Recognition of imposrment loses

An mpainment |oss is eoognised in profit o loss i the cannnng arnount of an asset, ar the
cash-generating unit to which it befongs, excesds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units ame allocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of any gocdwil
aliocated ta the cash-generating unit (of group of units) and then, to reduce the camying amount of the
other assets In the unit (or group of unitsl en a pro-rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduwced bolow its individual fair value less costs of disposal if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable],

= Rewersals of mmpaiement |osses
in respeect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed I there has been a lavourable
changs n the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment lass in respect of
goodwill & not reversed.
A reversal of an impairrent loss i5 imited to the asset’s cammying amount that would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognisad i prior years. Revarsals of impairment losses are
credited 1o profit o loss iy the year inwhich the reversals are recognised,
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{(h} Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(1) Interim financial reparting and impalrment

Undier the Rubes Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Koag Limited, the Groups
are required fo prepare an imterim finandal report in compliance with HEAS 34, interim financial reporting,

In sesoect af the first six months of the financal yoar, A1 the end of the ivtorim pencd, the Groups agply the
same Impaimment testing, recognition and resersal ortena as it would at the end of the financal year (see notes
(0 and 3{hifin

Irrguairrment boss recogased in an nterim penod in respect of goodwdll & not reversed in a subseguent pariod.
Thiss is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been
asspssid only ot the end of the financal yesr 1 whath the intenm perod nolates

(i} Short-term employee benefits

1]

Sabanes, anmwl bomses, paad annagal leave and the cost of non-manetisry benelits are accrued in the year n which
he associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated o1 their present valpes,

Retirement scheme obligations

{i)

Defined benefit retirement scheme obligations

The Groups' net oblgation in respect of dofined bonofit rotirement schemes is caloulated soparately for each
scheme by estimating the amount of future benefit that employess have easnad in retum for their servce in
the current and prior periods; that beneli is discounted 1o determine the present value and the far value of
any scheme assets s deducted. The discount rate & the yeeld at the end of the reporting penod on Hong Kong
Special Admanistratree Region Govemnmment Bxchange Fund Notes that have matuity dates sspeoomating the
temms of the Groups' obligations. The caloulation s performed by a gualified actuary using the *Projected Unit
a7 TR T

Whiere the caloulation of the Groups” net obligation resilts in a negatree amanent, the asset recognaed is
limited to the present value of any future refunds from or reductions in future contributions to the defined
benedit retirement scham.

Remeasurernent, comgrsing actuaial gains ard losses, the effect of the changes o the asset ceding (f
appicablel and the miurn on plan assats feicloding mferest), i reflectad mmadiately in the consolslated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised v other comgrehensivie incoma in the penod
in which they occur. Remeasurerment recognised in other comprehensive income & reflected immediately in the
revenue resenve and will not be reclassified to prodit oo loss
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The Groups determine the net interest expense of income for the perod on the net defined benefit hability
or asset by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual pancd to the et defined bonefit [ability or asset, taking into sccount any changes in the net defined
lizbilities or assets during the year as a resull of contributions and benefit payments.

(i} Contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes

Diligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes, including contributions payable
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognbed as an eXpensa in profit or
loas as incurred,

Inventories

Irvenfories are carried at the kower of cost and net realisable value,

Coal, stores, fuel o and natural gas ae valued at cost measured on a weighted average bass.

Comt comprises all costs of purchase, oosts of converaon and other costs mcummed in bringing the iventories 1o their
present becation and conthion, Cost of Inveniodes recogimed &5 an expense includes the weite-off and all kesses of

aninees

Mt realnable value is the estmated selling poce in the ordinary course of busingss less the estmated costs necessany
o make the sala.

Trade and other receivables

A recpivabie i recoanicad when the Groups hase an unconditsonal nght 10 recone considesation. A mght 1o secess
consideration s wnconditional if only the passage of time & reguired before payment of that consceration is due.

Trads receivables that da not contain a significant finanding component are initially measured at ther transaction

proe. All recevables are subseouenthy stated at amonsed cost, using the effecise nterest mathod and induding an
allowanoe for crodit losses (see node 30hiD,

Interest-bearing borrowings

Intarest-bearing bomrowwings are recognised Initially at far value loss ransaction costs. Subsagquent 1o indtial
recognition, intemest-beanng borrowings ame stated at amortsed cost usng the effective interest mathod, Intenest
expense is recognised In accordance wath the Gnoups” acoounting policy for bormowing costs {ses note 3.

A cal option embedded in a host debt istrument s closely related to and not separated from the host debt

irsirument if the option's exercse price 15 approxmately equal on each exercise date 1o the amonsed cost of The
host dabt instrument.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n}

(o}

(e}

(a)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are infially recognised at fair value, and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
offect of decounting would be immaterial, in which case thay are statod at invoice amounts.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays nen-refundable consideration before the Grossss recognise
the related revenue (see note 3(rl. A contract liabdity would also be recognised if the Groups have an unconditional
night o fecewse non-refundabée contidesation before the Groups recognise the related revenue. In such cases, a
comespondng recevable would also be recognised (see note 3001,

Derivative financial instruments

Dernative financial instrements are recognised ot forr value, At the end of cach reparting period the fair value s
emeasures. The gam or koss on remeasurement to far value s recognised immediately in profit or ioss, except
where the derwvatves quality for cash flow hedge sccounting, in which case recognition of any resuliant gain o loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see note (gl

Hedging

Thee Groups designate certain dervatives as hedging instruments to hedge the varabiity in cash flows assocated with
highly probable forecast transactions arsing from changes in forelgn exchange rates and varlable rate bormowings
fcash fow hedges), or as hedging instruments 1o hedge changes in the fai value of a recognised asset or liability {fair

value hedgesl,
(i} Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatiyes that are dessgnated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in
prodit of hoss, alomg with any changes @ the L value of the hedged aswels of labdites thal ame altributable 1o
the hedged rsk
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Cash flow hedges

Where a dervative financal instrument is designated as a hedging instrument in a cash fiow hedge, the
effective ponion of any gain or loss on the oervative financial instrument s repognised in other comprehensive
Income and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain o loss
5 recoghised immadiatily in profit or loss.

Furward elerment al foreand foreign currency contracts and Toreign cumency bass spread of financial
irdtrurmenits may be sepatated and excluded from the deugnated hedgng instruments If the Groups extlade
1hi forward element of & forward Toreign exchange contract o the formgn cumency bass spread of a financial
imstrument (the "excluded elements® ) from the designation of a hedging instrument, then the excluded
elements may be separately accounted for as a cost of hedging. The falr value changes of the excluded
elamants are recognised in a separale component of equity 1o the exent that it relates 1o the hedged items,

I a hedge of a forecast transac tion subsequently results in the recognition of a non-finandal asset such
a5 invendosy, the associated gain or koss is reclassified from equity and included in the initial cost of the
nan-financial asset,

For all other hedged fomcast ransactions, the smount accurmulated in the biedging reserves is reclassiliad frem
equity io profit or loss in the same penod or periads during whech the hedged cash flows atfect profit or loss
{such as when inferest expense i recognised),

i & hedge no longer meeds the critena for hedoe accounting (ncluding when the hedging instrument expines
or is sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge accounting s discontinued prospectnely. When hedge
sccaunting i3 discontinued, but the hedged lorecamt raniaction |5 still expected 1o socut, the amounl that has
been accumulated in the hedging reserve remaims in eguity uniil the tansaction ooours and it s recognised in
accordance with the above policy, If the hedged trarmacbon 5 no lonper expected to take place, the amount
that has been acoumulated in the hedging reserve is eclassified from equity to profit or loss immediately.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r} Revenue recognition

(i

{ii}

Regulation of earnings under the Scheme of Control Agreement

Thar eamings af the Groups” mapor subsidiary, HE Blectne, ane reguiated by the HKSAR Govermment (the
“Government”) under a Scheme of Contral Agreement ("50CA") which provides for a parmitted bevel of
rarnings based principally on a return on HE Electric’s capital investmant in slectricity goneration, transmission
and distribution assets (the *Permitted Return®). The SoCA also provides for performance based incentives
ard penalties which encourage customes service quakity, enengy ellicsency, demand response reduction

and renewahle enangy development. The Met Return of HE Bectne under the SoC A & determined by
deductag from the Permatted Return interest and excess capacity adjustments, if any, and adgusting for the
abovermentioned incentives and penalties. HE Blectric is required to submit detailed Development Plans for
approval by the Govermnmint whath project the key dotenminants of the Net Retuen 1o which HE Blactric will b
entithed over the Development Flan period

The Govemment has approved the 2019-2023 Development Plan covering the period fram 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2023, No further Government approval & required during thes perod uniess a need for significant
Basic Taniff increases, ower and above those set out m the Developmsnt Plan, & identified during the Annual
Tariff Review conducied with the Government under the ferms of the SoCA

Fuel Clause Recovery Account

Under the 5oCA, any difference batween the standard cost of fuel, as agreed with the Govemment, and
the actual cost of fuel consumed s rarsfered 1o the Fuel Clause Recovery Account ("Fuel Cost Account
Adjustments®),

Fuel Clause Charges (or Rebates) ane charged (or given) to customers by addmg o (or deducting from) the
Basic Tanlf 1o produce a Net Tandt payable by customars and ane credited (or debded) to the Fuel Clause
Recovory Account

The balante on the Fuel Clause Recovery Account at the end of a financlal year represents the dilference
betwesn Fuel Clause Changes lor Rebates) and Fuel Cost Account Adjustrents during the yeas, topether with
any balance brought forward from the prior year and interest thereon based on prevaiing market interest
rabes,
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(i) Income recognition

Incoeme is classified by the Groups as revenus whan it arises from the sale of electricity, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Groups' assets under leases in 1he ordinary course of the Groups’ business.

Ravonue is recognised when contral over 3 product of servioe i transferred to the customer, oe the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amourt of promized consideration to which the Groups are expected to be
entitled, excluding these amounts collecied on behall of third parties. Revenue & alter deduction of any tade
diseannts

Further details of the Groups' revenue and ather income recognition policies are as follows:

(1

F4]

(3

48}

Electricity income is recognised based on the actual and accrued units of electricily consumed by
customers during the year at the Basic Tariff, which s the unit change agreed with the Government
during the Annwal Tarilf Review for each financlal year,

Electncity-related income is recognised when the related servces are rendered,

Interest income & recognited &% It sccrues under the effectve interest method wing the rate that exacily
discounts estrmated future cash receipts through the expected bz of the financial asset to the gross
carmying amount of the financial asset, For financial assets measwed at amonised cost, the effective
Interest rate & applied to the gross cammying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective intevest rate is applied (o the amomsed oost (Le, gross carying amount net of loss allowance) of
the assat {see note 3L

Gewernment grants are recognised m the staterment of imancial position initially when these is reasonatie
assurance that thiry will b recesea and that the Groups will comply with the conditions attaching 1o

them. Grants that compensate the Groups for expenses incurred are recognisad as income in profit or
Ioss on & gestematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{s)

t)

fu)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency trarsactions during the year ase transated into Hong Kong dollars at the foeeign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at contract rates if foreign cuerancies ane hedged by forward foregn exchange
contracts. Monetary assets and Habiltes denominated i fareign currences are translated into Hong Kang dollars at
e foveign exchasge rates rubng al the end ol the reporting penod,

Exchange gains and losses in respect of assets undor construction are, up to he date of commissoning, incorporated
in the cost of the assets_ All other exchange differences are daalt with in profit or loss.

Hon-monetary assets and Babilities that are measured in terms of histoncal cost ina fareign currency ace Translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transacticn date ks the date an which the
Groups initialy recognised such non-monetary dssets or Eabilities. Non-moneatary assets and labdities denominated in
toreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruing at the dates the
fair value was measured,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comgeise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and ether finandal
matitutions and short-term, highly guid erestments that are readily corwertible into krown ameounts of cash
and which are subject to an msignificant nsk of changes in value, having been wathin three months of maturity
At acquisition. Bank owdrafts that ane repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Groups’ cash
management are ako included as a component of cash and cash equivadents for the parpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in acoordance waih the policy set out in
nota Ihi).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and moverments in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
maverments in deferred tax assets and liabiities ate recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to
ferns recognisad in other comprehensive income e directly In equity. in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
ecogrised in other comprehensne income or direclly in equily, respecipmaly

Cumment Lax i the expected Lax payable on the txsble income for the year, uing tax rates enacted ar substantivety
enacted at the end of the reporting pencd, and any adjustment to tax payabds in respect of previous years

Defetred tax assets and liabilities arisa from deductible and taxable temporary differsnces respectively, being the

il Terencis bitwesn the canymg amounits of assets and abilities Toe financial reporting purposes amd their 1ax bases
Deafpred tax assets atsa arse from unusad 1ax losses and unused 1ax cradits
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Al deferred tax liabiles and all deferred tax assets, 19 the extent that it is probable that futune taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognisad.

The amount of deferred tax recognised 15 measured based on the expocted manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and Rabilities, usang tax rates enacted or substaniively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax-assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The camying amoun! of a deferred tax assel s reviewed at the end of each reporting period and & reduced to the
extent thal It & no longet probatse that sufficient taxable profits will be avadable to allow e related ax benefit to
be utised, Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficant taxabye profits wll
be available,

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movemsents therein, ae presenied separately from each other
and are not offset

Borrowing costs

Bomowing costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction of production of an assat which
nicessarily takes a substantil period of time 1o get ready lor its intended wse or ssde are capetalised as part of The
oot of that asset. Other bosrosving oosts are expensed in the period In which they are incurrad.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
assiel is by incurried, bosrowang cosis ane being Incurred and actidilies thal ae necessary 1o prepare the assel Tod
s intended use of sale ane in progress. Capitalsation of homoswsng costs i suspended or cedses when substantially
all the acivities necessary 1o prepare the qualiying asset for its intended wir of sale are intemupted or complete,

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provissans are recognised when the Grougs or the Comgany have a legal o consinecive obgation arising as a result
ol & past event, il is probable that an outliow of economse benefits will be required to settle the obdgation and a
reliahde eytmate can b made. Where the ime value of money is matenal, proveaons. are stated a1 the preseat vahue
of the expenditure expected to settle the obfigation

Where it s not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be requred, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is diclosed as a contingent {labsdity, unless the probability of outfiow of economic banelis &
remots. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the ocowmence of non-oooETence of ong of
more future Eeents, ane atso dnclosed as contingent latdnes unliess the probaseiny of autfiow of economac benefits
& remate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Related parties
il A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is refated to the Groups if that person:
(1} has control or joint control over the Groups,
(2} has significant influence over the Grolps; o
{3 isa mamber of the key management parsannel of the Groups.
fiiy  Anentity 5 related to the Groups if any of the Tollowng conditions apphies:

{1} The entity ard the Groups are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others)

(2}  Ome entity is a joint venture or an associate of the other entity (or a joint venture or an associate of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a membar),

(3)  Both entities ate joint ventutes of the ssme third party,
(4} Omne entity is a joirt venlure of a thifd entity and the olher entity s an assotiale of the third entity,

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Grous or an
entity related to the Groups.

(6} The entity is controlied or jointly controlled by a person identified in note 3 (XK.

(7} A person identified in note 300 1) has significant influence over the entity or is @ membar of the key
managemaent personnal of the entity (oe of 3 parent of the Entity)

{8l The entity, or any member of a group of which iL s a part, provides 4 ey management personned services
to the Groups.

Close mambers of the family of a person are these family members wha may be expected 10 influence, or be
nfluenced by, that person in thid dealings with thie entity,

(¥} Segment reporting

Operating segments are reporied ina mannes conastent wath the internal reporting pronded to the chiel oparating
decison-maker of the Groups for the puwposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
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4. Changes in accounting policies
Tha HIKIC PA has issued & number of amendmaents to HIKFRSs that are first effective for thae current accounting period of
the Groups_Of these, the following amendments to HKFRSs are relevant to the Trust's and the. Company®s consolidated
financial statements:
= Amendments 1o HEFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, interes Rate Senchrmark Reform - Phase 2
The adaption of these amendmaents doet ot hae 3 matenal Fpact on the Groups' fesults and financlal poutions for

the current or prior penicds. The Groups have not appled any new standard, amendment or inerpretation that is not yet
effectve for the current accounting period,

5. Revenue

The prinapal activity of the Groups is the generation and supply of electricity to Hong Kong Island and Lamma Island
Disaggregation of revenue by type of output and sersices is analysed as follows:

2021 2060

5 millkon 4 milicn

Sales of electndty 11312 10,383
Less: concessionary discount on sales of eectricity (51 14)
11,307 10,359

Electrrity-related income 37 30
11,344 10,389

6. Segment reporting
The Groups have one reporting segment which is the generation and supply of electnicity 1o Hong Kong island and Larmma
Ishand, All segrrant assets ang lecatod in Hong Kong. Thie Geoups” chie] operating deciid-makef iiddws thie cansolidated

results of the Groups for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. Therefore, no additional
repartable segment and geographical mformation has been presented,
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7. Other revenue and other net income

2021 2020

5 million 3 million

mterest income on fimancial assets measured at amaortised cost 13 15
GOVEMENENT Qrants (see note Delow] = 101
Sundry mcome 38 32
a9 148

This represented the funding support from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund set up by the
Government in 2020, The purpose of the funding was o provide financial support (o entenprises to retain their emmployees.
Lindar the teerrs af the grant, thie Groups wene rquired not to make mdundancis during the subsidy period and 1o spend
all the funding on paying wages to the employees

8. Other operating costs

021 2020

% million 3 millicn

Adminisirative expenses, government rert and rates EAF 344

S1afl costs in redation 1o corporate and adminstrative supports 229 23

Prowisions for assel decomimissioning oblgation 194 170
Portion of depreciation and amortisation of icaschold land included in

other operating costs 196 193

Met loss on cisposal and written off of property, plant and eqguipment 120 125

1,051 1,063
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9. Finance costs

2021 2020
5 millon 5 milkcn
Interest on borrowdings and other finance costs 1,085 1,236
Less: interest expense and other finance costs capitaised 10
assets under construction {271} {2500
interest mxpense ransferred 1o fuel costs (14} (150
Tonal inferest expense arising from borrowings and other finance costs 800 471

Interest expensa has been capitalised al an average rate of approximately 2.5% {2020 2 9% ) per annum for assats under
constnction

10. Profit before taxation

021 2020
5 million 5 mifion
Profit bofore tacation B arved at after charging:
Depreciation
- owned property, plant and equipmsen 2,924 2817
- propertas leased for own use 2 2
Amorisation of leaschold tand 196 196
Experses of short-term leases 4 ]
Coosits of sweniories 4,812 3,429
Wirite down of inventones 3 12
Staff cosis 735 140
Kt loms on disposal and waitten off of property, plant and eguyEment 120 125
Auditor’s remuneration
~ audit and audit related services 5 13

- nan-aucit services (see note below) = E

Auditor's remunaration for non-audit senices amounted to §415.000 (2020 $301,0001.
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11. Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

fa) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

Ooooooooooooboooononoad

(k)

Cidrrant tax
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
Ower-provison in respect of prior years

Deferred tax (see note 29k
Ongination and reversal of temparary differences

2021 2020

5 million § millign
414 a52

{1 -

413 452

i 118

7is 568

The provisice bor Hong Kong Prolits Tax for 2021 s calodated at 16.5% {2020: 16.5%) of the esiimated assewable
prestils for the year, seoept foe ane subsidiang af the Groups which is a qualifying cosporation under 1he. two-tiersd

Profits Tax rate regrme.

For this subsidiany, the first $2 million of assessable profits ane taxed a1 B.25% and the remaining assecsable profits
are taved a1 16.5%. The proviion for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiany was calculated a2 the same basis in

2020

Pursuant 1o the rules and regulations of the Caymian slands and the British Vegm lands, the Groups ane exempt

fresm any Income tain these prisdictions

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit belore lazation

Notional tax, on prolit before taxation, calculaled at the Hong EKong
Profits Tax rate [$ea note balow)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable ncome

Tax effect of recognition of previowsly unfecognised temporary
differences

Owver-provision in respect of prior years

Actual fax expense

2021 2020

5 million 3 million
4,045 3,169
657 523

75 73

3} 21)

(3} "

{1 -

735 563

For the year endixd 31 Decernber 2021, the notonal (ax s cakiulated at 16, 5% {2020: 16.5%), except for one
subsidiary of the Groups which & a qualitying corporation under the two-tierad Profits Tax rate regime. For this
subsdiary, tax on the first §2 millon of profits & calculated at 8.25% and tax on the remaining profits is ca'culated a1
16.5%. The notional tax of this subsidiary Is caloulated at the same basis as 2020,
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12. Directors’' emoluments and management team remuneration

Directors” smmolumants comprise payments 1o Directors by the Company and its subsidiarios in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiares. The emoluments of each of the Directors of the Company

are a5 follows
Basic
salaries,
allpwances  Retirement 2021 2020
and ather scheme Total Toal
Fees  benefits ™ contribations Bonuses  emcluments  emoluments
Name of Directors 5 millicn § million 5 million 5 million 5 million § milion
Expcurtive Diroctars |
Fok Kin Ning, Canning
Chawmuan a1 ik - - 1.1 088
Wan Chi Tin =
Chanf Expruitive Crficnr 0w B4R - 5% 19,02 LR
Chan Loi Shun a7 in - . 139 i1
Chen Dockao 007 295 oo 061 3.65 354
Cheng Cha Ying, Francs ¥ 0.09 413 oo 193 626 615
Non-sxecutive Directon
Vier TEL®
Deputy Chairman fo the
Company fasd 009 0.37 - - 0.45 038
Fahad Hamad A H AHMohannad 0a7 - - - 0.07 007
Fonald Joseph deouli 0,14 0.06: - - 0.20 018
Duan Guangmirg a87 - - - 0.67 a.67
Deven Arind Kamni 07 - - - 0.07 007
I Guangcha g - - - 0.07 0407
Independent Nom-executive Dirsctons
Forg Chi Wal, Alex W8 i oot - - 0.12 0.1a
Kot Poh Wah @@ 008 - - - 0.09 -
Kwan Kai Cheong (R ol - - 009 0.4
Lo Lan Yes, Francs &% 16 fua2 - - 0.18 016
George Celin Magnus 087 02 - - 0.08 009
Donald seffrey Roberts &/@ 016 oot - - n.ar ity
Faiph Raymond Shea @ 0% (03 - - 0,12 0.10
Alternate Directors
Woo Mo Fong, Susan
(alas Chow Woo Ma Fong, Susan) ™ - na? - - 0.o7 0o
Frark Jobn St 1 - 003 - - 0.03 .03
Total for tha year 2001 1.70 201 003 12,49 35,23
Total for the year 2020 1.49 20068 004 11,70 nm
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12. Directors’ emoluments and management team remuneration (continued)

Mol

1l Senior management af the Groups comprise all Enecutive Dirscbon.

{2 Member of the Tnadee-Manager Audil Commettes and the Company Sudit Commettes.

i3 Wember of the Remuneration Comméttes.

W Meomber of the Nomination Cormmattes.

{5 Member of the Sustanability Committee.

1B An Ahernate Dwesclor 10 Me. Fok Kin Ning, Canning

{71 An Alternate Dwecior 10 M. ¥ictor TE LI

{6 Appointed i Independent Mon-exedutive Dinecior with eflect from 13 May 2021,

{9 Ofher benefits mchede elecincity allowanoes o Deecton for residentisf wse. Fof Directors who are ermployess of the Group, other
benefis sha inchde institance snd medical benefis entrled by the erployees of the Group.

@ The five highest paid sdeoduals of the Groups included three diractors (20200 twa) whose lotal emoluments are
shown above, The remunevation of the other two indiduals {2020 thees] who compeise the five highest paid
ndiiduals of the Groups is sal out below:

2021 2020

5 milllion $ millia

Basic salories, allowances and other benefils 6,95 9,34
Retwement scheme contributions 0.9 1.26
Bonuses .69 342
10.55% 14,02

(b} The total remuneration of management team, including the tes individuals (2020: three) who comprise the five
haghest pasd indneduals in note {a) above is within the following bands:

Plirs] 2020

Humber Mumber

Mil = §1,000,000 = 2

51,000,001 = §1,500,000 - 1

52,000,001 - $2,500,000 - 2

$2,500,001 - $3,000,000 2 2

53,000,001 = $3,500,000 5 4

53,500,001 - 54,000,000 2 1

§5,000,001 - §5,500,000 2 2
e} The resmunesation of Directars and management team & & Tellows:

2021 2000

% million % million

Short-term employee benelits T2 M

Poat-employrent benefis 2 2

74 73

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no amount due from Dieectors and managemant team
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13. Scheme of Control transfers

{a)

]

The financial operations of HK Electric are governad by the 500 A apreed with the Gowsnment which provides for
HK Electrc o ean a Permitted Refurn {see note 30000}, Any excess of deficency of the gross tanff revenue over the
surm of 1otal operatng costs, Scheme of Control et Return and Scheme of Conbrol tacation cnarges & transfermed
teditrom) & Taritl Stablisation Fund fromalto) the statement of paolit or boss of HE Blectric. When transfer from

the Tariff Stabwlisation Fund 1o the staterment of profit or loss & required, the ameount tramstened shall not exceed
the balance ol the Tanff Stabdsatson Fund. In addition, a change calculated by applying the average one-month
Haong Komg Intesbank Offersd Rate an the sverage balance of the Tarll Statélsaton Fund B translermed fram the
staternent of profit or loss of HK Electric to a Rate Reduction Reserve,

Under current SoC A, a Smart Power Care Fund was establshed on 1 January 2019 with initial funding provided by
tha nat chasing balance as at 31 December 2018 of the Smart Powor Fund, whach was established pursuant to 2013
mid-tenm raview of 2009-2018 5oL A, to promote energy efficiency and conservation, such as accelerating end-use
energy efficiency through programmes designed o help ressdential, ndustrial and comimercial customers, and

also disadvantaged customensigroups 1o replace or upgrade end-wse appliances to mone enengy-efficient elactrical
modek. HE Blectric comented 1o deduct an amount equal (o 65% of the Enengy Effccsancy Incentive Amount of each
year during the pariod from 1 January 2019 to 31 Decemnber 2033 for funding the contribution 1o the Smart Power
Care Fund prewided that there |s an Erergy Efficiency Incesilive Amount i respect of thal yeas,

Scheme of Control transfers fremiia) the consobdated statement of peafit or ks represents

Flirl] 2020

5 million 3§ milficn

Tarifi Stabilisation Fund 344 (1ed)
Rate Reduciion Reserve 1 8

Smart Power Care Fund

= Provvsonal sum ingected incurrent year - n
- Provisional sum to be injected in the lollowing year 32 14

an {131}

Im 2021, & proraisiconal sum of $31,760,000, representing deduchon of HE Electnic’s 2021 financial incentive, was
trarsferred from the consclidated statement of profit or koss and included In the irade and other payables and
contract Kabilities as at 31 December 2021 for injection into the Smart Power Case Fund in the Tollowing year.

by 2020, & provisional sum of $24,767 000, répresenting deduction of HE Electric's 2020 financlal incentive, was
transforred from the consclidated statement of prafil or ks, of which $10,509, 000 was ingected Into the Smart

Powpyer Care Fund with the remaining $14,258,000 was induded in the trade and other payables and contract
Kabilities as at 31 December 2020 for injection into the Smart Power Care Fund in 2021,

121

236/530



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
OooOooooOooooooooooood

#» HE Electric investments Anrual Repart 3021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

[Expriised & Hong Kong doflars unless othenswse indicabed)

122

13. Scheme of Control transfers (continued)

4]

Mevernents in the Tanfl Stabilication Fund, Rate Reduclion Reserva and Smart Power Care Fund are o follows:

Tariff Rate
Stabilisation Reduction  Smart Power

§ million Fund Resarve Carg Fund Total
AL T Jamuary 2020 B4E 14 16 73
Tramsler Irotn Rate Reductson Reseive to

Tanff Stahilisation Fund

{see nole below) 4 (14} - -
Transfer (oMirom the conscldated

staternent af profit or loss (164 B - 1155)
Injesctann foe this yar - - 43 43
Disbursement for the year 3 [EL ]
At 31 December 2020 and

1 January 2021 G3E B 20 726
Transfer from Rate Reduscton Resene o

Tanff Stabilisation Fund

{see note below) 8 8) - -
Transfer from the: consolidated

staternent af profit or loss 344 1 - 345
Injectacn for the yoar - - 14 14
Disbursement for the year - - (20} (20)
At 31 December 2021 1,050 1 14 1,065

Purszant 1o 50C A, 1he yeatond balance of the Rate Reduction Reserve of a year has 10 be transterad 1o the Tanff
Stabifisatson Fund i the following year,
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14. Distributions/dividends

{a) The distributable income for the year was as follows:

2021 2020
__ Smillon 3 milion
Audited consolidated proafit attributable to the holders of
Share Stapled Units 1933 2,732
afiter;
[i} eiminating the afiects of the Adjustments (see note 1 below) 5317 4,683
(il {cfeductingbaciding
= mvement in Fuel Clause Recovery Account (1,048) 149
- changes in working capital 108 {223)
= adjustment for omployes retirement banelit schermnes Frd i
- taxes paid (aag} {458
{1,366) {555)
(il capizal expenditure payment (4,802) (4, 8500
{iv) et tinance costs (530} {1,121
Distrbutabde income 1,152 854
(v} adding discretonany amount & cetenmined by the Company Board
pursuant to chause 14.10c) of the Trust Deed {see nole 4 balow) 1678 1,931
Distrbutable income atter adjusiment of 1he discretonary amount 2,830 2,830

o 1 Pursusant 1o clanrse 1.1 of the Trust Deed, = Adjustments™ includes, but rot limited 1o () tanslers fofrom the Tand!
Stabilsation Furel and the Rate Reduction Reserve under 1he Schemre of Control; §i) unsealsed revaluaton gainslosses,
inclhuding impairment proviaon and reverssh of impairment presaions; (5) impairment of goodwillirecagnition ol
gt gocchuill; (v material nen-cash gainslosses: fv) costs of any public affering of Shate Stapled Units that are
expinsed through the conselidated staement of prof or ks but are Tunded by proceess Trom the Bsuance of such
Shase Staplad Ursts; (n) deprecation and amortsation; (Wi tax charges i shown in the consabdated statemant of
prodit or koas; ard (v net fenance |noomeiosss as shown in The coesaldated statement of prafi or ks

Hoie 2 Thee Trust Deed requires the Trustee-hanager {on behall of the Trust) to detnbude 100% of the diidends,
diginibrtiond and ok amounis fecerved by the Trusiee-lManager in respect of the ordinary shares from the Company,
after deduction of 2l amounis perritbed bo be deducted or pald undor the Trust Deed.

Howe 3 The distribaticns recened by the Trusiee-Manager from the Company will be dedved from the Group DErbutabls
Income which & referned as audited comsolidated peodit attributabie to the bolders of Shane Stapled Linits for the
relezant fnancial year or distribartion pericd, after making adiustments s respect of Bems as 21 out in the Tust Deed,

Hlode & In determining the csirbuticn amount, the Company Board has taken inbo acoount the Group's finandal perdomance

achieved dunng the year and its stable cashilow from operatons, and consider i appropriate to adiust the
firbutable income fod the year ended 31 Decerrber 2021, as calouliied pursiant to the Trast Deed, by the sbove
discratinnany amoant, pursient io clase 14, 1) of the Trust Deed
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14. Distributions/dividends (continued)

(b} Distributions/dividends payable to holders of Share Stapled Unitsfshares of the Company
attributable to the year

2021 2020
% million § millicn

Intenm destributionTrst snterim diidend dedared and paid of

13,94 cents (2020; 15,94 cenits) per Share Stapled Undl/share 1,408 1,408
Final distributsonsecond interim dividend proposed atter the end of

the reporting penod of 16.09 cents (2020: 16.09 cents) per

Share Stapled Unit/share 1422 1,422

2,830 1,830

For the year endid 31 December 2021, the Compary Board declaed the payment of 4 second mienm
dradend of 16.09 cents per ordinary shame (2020: 1604 cents per ordinary share), amountang to $1,422 million
(2020: $1,422 mdlian), in kau of a final divdend alter the end of the reponing penod and therefore no final dvidend

wias proposed by the Compary Board

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Tnstee-Manager Board declared a final distribution of 16,09 cents per
Share Staphed Unif (2020; 16.02 cents per Share Stapled Unit), amounting to 31,422 million (R020: §1,422 milion),
after the end of the reparting period.

The fina! distrbutionvsecond interim dvidend declared after the end of the repodting period is based on the
number of Shares Stapled Unitsfordinary shares of the Company of B836,200,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020
#,836,200.000), The final distribudicnsecond interim dividend declared afier the end of the reporiing period has nat
been recognised as a Kability at the end of the repoanting periad,

(e} Distributions/dividends payable to holders of Share Stapled Unitsfshares of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year

021 2020
5 millian § million
Final distribubandacond interdm dividend in respect ol the preaous
financial year, approved and paid during the year, of 16.09 cents
{2020 16,09 conts) per Share Stapled Unitshare 1,422 1,422

15. Earnings per Share Stapled Unit/share of the Company

The calculation of basic and diluted eamings per Share Stapled Unit'share of the Company are based on the profit
attributable to the holders of Share Stapled Units/ordinary shares of the Company of $2,933 million (2020 52,732 millien)
and the weighted average of 8,836, 200,000 Share Stapled Units‘ordinary shares of the Company (2020 8 836,200,000
Share S1apled Unitsfordinary shares of the Company) in issue during the year
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16. Property, plant and equipment and interests in leasehold land

Plast, Fintures, Intensts in
Site  Properties  machinery fittings bpasheid
foemation  beased for and  and motor  Assets under Laed held
§mlicn and baildings owa use  equipment vebicles  canstruction Sub-total  for own use Tortal
Cast
A1 1 harvaary 100 T6AN 4 54434 055 475 1,964 [ 5] B
Addtiom - 1 ] 1] 513 525 1 5158
Taarsfe 145 - V] (3] @, 00 - 2 E
Deprrahy 12 & [H7) 25} - (46T - n
At 31 Decembes 2000 ard
1 January 2021 18235 1 57085 L) 85487 B7H 6961 PEES)
Addtions - 1 5 i ] 55 5643 = 5648
Tearsier 406 - 1553 m {11040 - - -
Deperah () [H} 331 ) = 381 - (A1)
Ak 31 Decembes 2001 18550 1 60,258 L5 55 42082 5963 96
Acrunulated depreciation and
smontation
& 1 Lansary 10N e 1 11053 a5 - 15,363 (h) 16507
Wirtthon Back on deocsals o L] En (25! EE: ] (335
(Charge for the year 5 1 1 %0 ] - b 105 M
AL 31 December 2020 ard
1 Januasy 331 53 1 15846 540 - 17,920 L3 15160
Witten Back on dsoosals [iL] [H] (53] {25} L (2401 = 400
Chuarge for the year 53 1 M8 e - 3006 195 m
AE 31 December 2021 405 1 15951 (2] - 20,685 153 nm
Het back vilus
At 31 December 2001 14565 1 46307 518 11525 11,316 54 16,740
& 31 Decerdey 220 14702 1 L] L 9547 B8N 51D A

Tha abeve are manly ectricity-rofated propaerty, plant and equipmant in rospect of which financing costs capitalised
during the year amounted to $271 milien (2020: 1250 milion).

Depreciation changes for the year included $80 millon (2020 §77 millon), relating to asseds utilised in development
actisrties, which have been capaalsed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

(Exprririied i I-|nn|_'_| (ullg doinr unless othéraee indicaled)

17. Goodwill

fa) Carrying amount of goodwill

2021 2020
§ million § millign

Cost
Al 1 lanuary and 31 Decernier 33,623 33,623

(b} Impairment test for goodwill
HE Electric is the Groups” anly cashegenesating uwndl ["CGLU") o which the goodwill has been allocated,

In the case of irggenng events and af least annually, the Groups test whather the goodwill has sulfered any
imparment Recoverable amount of the CGU, to which the goodwill has been allocated, was determined based on
value-in-use caladations, These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on finoncal budgets approved
Iy management covering a 16-year period (2020 16-year period), Profections for a pariod of greater than five
years bave beon wed on the Bass that a longar prosction pariod mepresents tha long-bved nature of generation,
transmission and dstribution assets and @ more apgeropeate reflection of future cash flows of HK Electric under the
regulatony regime. The cash Tlow projections are discounted using a pre-tax diszount rate of 5.99% (2020: 5.54%)
The discosnt rate used reflects spacific risks relating to the relevant CGU. Cash flows bayond the 16-year period are
extrapotated useng the terminal growth rate of 1,0% (2020 1.0%)

Thigre was fo ndcation of irmgairment arsng Trom reaew on goodwill as a1 30 November 2021
If the discount rate rose to 7.17% (2020 6,74%), the recoverable amount of the CGU would be approximately

equa’ fo s carrying amount. Except this, any reasonably possible changes in the other key assumiptions used in the
value-in-use caloudation wousd not affect management™s viw on imgairment 1est result as a1 30 November 2021
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18. Investments in subsidiaries

Details of the subsicharies at 31 Decambsar 2021 are as follows:

Issued share Percentage of Place of
capital and debt equity hakd by Incorporation/
HName of subsidiary SOCUritios the Company oparation Principal activity
Century Rank Lirmated Lsg1 100%  British Virgin blandy’  Investment hoiding
Hong Kong
Treasure Business Limited sl 100% ™ Britich Virgin klands  Investment holding
Hong Kong
Thi Hongkang Electrie §2,411, 600,000 100% M Hong Kang  Electneity gineration
Compary, Limited and supply
Hongkong Electric Finance [NL% 3 100% " British Virgin lslandsf Financing
Limited HK39,004 million Hong Kang
Hong Kong doilas
fixed rale notes
U551, 750 midlion
United States dollar
fived rate nofes
HK31.056 milion
Hang Kong dollar
TG COUpON noles
USS400 malion
United States dollar
callable zem
COUPON Motes
{s0e note 25)

{1 Indfirectly hed
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(Exprririied i I-|nn|_'_| (ullg doinr unless othéraee indicaled)

19. Interest in a joint venture

Dotals of the Groups” interest in a joint ventune, which is accounted for using the equity method in the comnolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

Issued Groups’ Place of

share effective  incorporation/
Hame of joint venture capital interest Ppenlhn Principal activity
Hiotup Koo LNG Terminal Lamited 10 30% Hong Kong Develop, construct, operale,
["HELTL"} maintain and own a lquetied
natu=al gas (LNG) terminal
in Hong Kong and provding

related services

HELTL is jointly cwnied by HE Eleciric and Castle Peak Power Company Limited ("CAPCO") for the development of an
LNG terminal in Hong Kong. HELTL is a joint verture of HE Electric and CAPCO as its significant operational and financial
decisions require unanimous consent of both shanehclders.

HELTL, the anly jeint venture in which the Groups participate, & an unlisted corperatis entity whose guated maiket price i
not availabe.

Summarised finandial information below represents amounts showwn in HELTL'S financial statements prepared in
pccordance with HEFRS: and the Groups” share of results and met assets

02 2020
§ million § millicny
Cummrant assels
Bank deposats and cash 1 -
Olher curfent assets 1 23
2 231
Mon-cwment assels 2,105 99
Curent labilites {517) (3
Men-cument labilities
Loans from shareho!ders (1,590) {927
Met assels - =
Fevris 1 1
frofit for the year - e
Qther comgrahensive iNComs - =
Total comprehensive income - -
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2021 2020

S million 5 milion

Groups' share of net assets - -
Loan 1o join? veriure (see note Brlow) 417 78
a7y 78

HK Ebectric enterad nto a Shareholder Loan Facility Agreement with HELTL under which twa tranches of loan facilities
totng 5699 milion are provided by HE Elecinic 1o finance HELTL's obtaining the kand lease and construction of 1he ety
for the LNG terminal. Both tranches of loans are ursecured and interest-beanng with the rates benchmarked with market
ratos.

20. Inventories

2021 2030

& millkon £ milion

Coal, fuel oil and natural gas 620 430
Stores and material (see note below) 84 296
S04 126

Induded in stores and materiaks s capital stock of $144 million (2020: $158 million) which was purchased for future
maintenance of capital assats.

21. Trade and other receivables

2021 2030

& million 5 milion

Trade deblors, met of loss allowante (see notes (a) and (b) below) 611 470
Other receivablas (see note balow) a5y 358
1,068 828

Cerivatve fnancial instrements (see note 26) 4 3
Deposits and prepayments 85 120
1,157 951

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recoveded within one year,

Other receivables of the Groups inchude unbilled electricity charges of 3407 millon (2020: $312 millon) 1o be recoved
From elsctricity customers.
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21. Trade and other receivables (continued)

{a) Ageing analysis of trade debtors

The ageing analysis of trade deblors based on involce date, which are neither indivdually nos collectively considered
10 be impaired, = ag follows;

Flirs] 2020

5 million § millicn

Current and within 1 month Rt Li
1 te 3 months £ 19
bore than 3 months but less than 12 manths 1 -
611 A70

Elcingity hills ssued to rescdential, small industrial, commercial and miscolianeous customers for slecineity supplies
are due upon presentation whesaas masmum demand customers are allowead a credit period of 16 warking days. i
setthements by madmum demand customers are receved after the eredit perod, a surcharge of 5% can be added 1o
e electricity bills.

(b) Ewpected credit losses of trade debtors

The Groups mease boss alowances for trade debtors at an amount equal so Ifetime ECLs, which s caloulated using
a provision matnic. The Groups determine the previsson for ECLs by grouping tegether trade deblors with similas
credit nsk chasactenstics and collectively assessing them for likelivood of recovery, taking into account prevailing
economic environment. For trade debtors refating 1o accounts which ane long overdue with significant amounis of
known insohendes or non-response to collaction activities, they are assessed individually tor impairment allowance.

The Groups dassify trade debioes by nature of customer accounts namely live accounts and final accounts. The
Tetbownd takle provides informabon about the Groups exposuse 1o credit sk and ECLS for trade delios:

2021
Gross carrying Lifetime  Net carrying
ECL rate amount ECLs amount
% % millian % millan 5 millian
Livir accounts
Provision on collective basis 2 593 {11} £82
Final accounts
Peowigion on mdsedual basis 9 B {1} 7

Other trade debitors
Prowision on callective basis o

5]
|
]

6-73. (12} 51.'I
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2020
Gross carrying Lifetime MNet casmying
ECL rate amount ECLs arnunl
% $ million § malkon § milion
Live atcounts
Frowision on colleciive basis 2 438 (10} A28
Final accounts
Frowision on indrvidual basis B 8 (1 3]
Orther trade debtors
Frondsion on collective basis o 3l - 34
4E1 (11} 470

H¥ Electric obiained collateral in the form of security deposits or bank guarantees from cusiomers (see note 3 1al).

ovement i the loss allowsnce account i respect of trade debliors dunng the year 15 as follows;

2021 2020
5 million 3 milicn
At 1 Jaruary n 12
Irmpairrment losses recognised during the year 2 -
Arrounts written off during the year (1 {13
At 31 December 12 11

22. Fuel Clause Recovery Account

HEK Electric adjusts Fuel Clause Charge pes urit for electricity sales on & monthly bays to rellect sctual cont of fuels in &
timely manmner,

Movements in the Fuel Clause Recovery Account were as follows:

201 2030

5 millian 5 milian

At 1 lanuary (796} {64l
Trarsfemad to profit o loss. 3122 1,823
Fuel Clause Charges during the year (2,074) 11,9721
At 31 Docember 252 {796]

Thes account, incluswe of interest, has been and will continue o be used to stabilise electricity tariffs
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23. Bank deposits and cash and other cash flow information

{a) Bank deposits and cash comprise:

2021 2020
5 million 5 million
Cash at bank and In hand 34 52

(b} Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from operations:

2021 2000
Neite 5 million § million
Profit before taxation 4,045 3,169
Adjustments for
Irterest income [ {12) {15)
Finance costs g 8200 971
Irterest experse rasfened 10 fud costs ] 14 15
Depreciation 10 2,926 812
Amoriisation of leasehold land 10 19 195
Het lass on disposal and waitten off of property, plant and
equment 10 120 125
Increase N provisions for asset decommissionng
obligation 2B(a} 194 170
het fnancial instrument revaluation and
exchange (gainsiiosses 2} 4
Smart Power Care Fund disbursement 13ick {20) {39
Changes in werking capital:
{Increase¥decrease in Eweniones {192) a3
{Ineraasedechease in rade and other recehable (257} 0
Maovements in Fuel Clause Recovery Account (1,048) 143
Increasefidecrease] in trade and other payables and
coniract liabilities 560 385)
Iecraddie neams in ned emgdoyee rtmemant benefit
assetsfliabiities 22 7
Payment for asset decommissioning obligation
expenditure 2Bia) {1} {3
Cash generated from operations 7,344 7.351
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(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

The tab'e bolow details changes in the Groups® liabiities from financng actvibes, induding bath cash and non-cash
changes. Liabditees ansing from fnancing activities are liabdies for which cash flows were, or futune cash flows vl
be, classlied in the Groups” consolidated cash tow statement as cash flows from financing activibes.

Detivative Derivative

financial financial

Instmamant instrumsnt

held to hedge  held to hedge

Madium  Customers’ lease  bomowings  bowrowings

Hank loans termnotes  deposits llabidiies {assets) (llaksBslas) Totad

§ milion lrcte25)  inata 15) [racte 2800
A1 1 January 2021 18,080 A 1,268 1 392 L v 1
Changes from fimancing

cash flows:
Proceeds from bank loar 16,048 - - - = = 15ME
Resparment of bask loan [14.450 = - - - - [aAs
Paymeent o leas Rabilited - - - {2 - - [
Hesw cuAboemens” ceposit - - 27 - - - m
Repayrment of cusicrmen

s - - e - . - om
Tt dranges rom fnancing

carth Beay 15458 - 4 2 - - 1645
Chansges In falr walue - - - - 1 [4gg} [455)
Other changes:
Increie in lngsn habel g - - = 1 - - 1
Iriprest on bomowings and

athe fnance conts 65 04 - - - - 138
A1 31 December 2021 19,612 7014 317 1 (389) 187 BT
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23. Bank deposits and cash and other cash flow information (continued)

{c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: {continued)

Dermative Damvative
financial financal
metrument Imtrameend
held bo bede ekt Lo hedge

Madium  Customen’ (L5 barrmaings harmesngs
Bark loaes  term noles depeslts  fablites (it (abalities] Tertal

i|_111-'1ior| inote 25} lncie 25) {ote 2800
At 1 Janwary 2000 18333 METS 2,241 3 459} = 4479
Changes fram financing

cash flows
Proceech B beark loans ¥ - - - - - 73
Renayment of hark inans [8.2500 - - - - - (t,2500
hassanon of mesdum erm notes - 1043 - - - - 028
Redempcn of medium tem

hotes - 8267 - - - - (8,267
Payerent of leame habities - - - i - - &
New cuslomen’ depotty Pl 251
Reazyment of customers'

deposts - - 264) - - - [264)
Tortal change fom Snancng

csh flows am 1988 7 k] = = 1,18
Exchangs adjustments - 1% - - - - 15
Changss in fair valus - (=5 - - & EES E5d
Other changes:
Irrase i Ipask habsltes - - - | - - Fl
It on bomowings and

wither finance cosTs FL {bH - - - - 216
A1 31 Devember 2020 16,060 26810 1,268 | (392} BE5 47453
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24. Trade and other payables and contract liabilities

2021 2020
5 millkon 5 milion
Trade and ather payables
Creditors measured al amortised cost (see note (a) below) 3,970 2,794
Laase liabdites (see note JE{D)) 1 I
Derivatee [nancial instroments (see note 26) 29 3
A0 2796
Contract llabllitles (z2& note (bl below) 78 22
4,078 2,820

All of the trade and other payables are expected 1o be settled within one year or are repayable on demand

{a) Creditors’ ageing is analysed as follows:

2021 2020

5 million 5 million

Due within 1 month or on demand 2,020 1,183
Due after 1 month but wathin 3 manths o 113
Due after 3 months but within 12 montks 1,180 GED
3,970 2,754

(b} Contract liabilities

{ii  The contract labilities relate to the advance consideration receved from customers for electricity-related
services, which comists mainly of {1) permanent supply service, primariy associated wath the supply of
eleciricity to customer sulystations for l2rge new developments and to small new developments without
customer substatian prosasions, and () 41e senice prman'y associated with the temparary supply of
elactricity to constructon sites or spedal functions, for which revenue is recognised upon completion of the
electricity-reloted services.
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24. Trade and other payables and contract liabilities (continued)

(b) Contract liabilities {continued)

{il}  Movements in contract liablities during the year is a5 follows:

021 2020
§ million $ millien
At 1 Jlanuary 2 18
Increasa in contract liabilities as a result of billing in advance for
performance of clectncity-related senices &4 10
Decrease in contract iabilities as a result of recognising revenue
during the year that was included In the contract liabllitles at
the beginning of the year (2) 5
At 31 December 78 22
25. Bank loans and other interest-bearing borrowings
021 2020
5 millian 3 millicxn
Barik Inars 19,612 1E,080
Cuarent portion (1,233} i4,184)
18379 13,895
Hong Kong dollar medium term notes
Fixed raste naples (see nole () below) B.952 B.945
Tero coupon notes (see note [h) below) Ll FLY
LN ES ] 4,694
United States dollar meadium term notes
Fined rate notes see note () below) 13,549 13,534
Zero coupon notes (see note (B) below) 3734 3578
17,283 17,112
MNCT-CUTEnL pofx 45,393 40,705
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The Hong Kong dollar feed rate notes bear interest at rates rangsng from 2,4% to 4% per annum (2020 2.4% 1o
4% per annum),

The United States dollar foeed rate notes bear interest at rates ranging from 1.875%; to 2.875% por annum (2020:
1.875% to 2.B75% per anmum),

Thr Hong Kong dellar zero coupon notes which wire msued at discount have nominal ameunt of $1,056 million
{2020 81,056 millont and accrual yield of 3.5% per annum (2020: 3.5% per annum.

The Linited States dodlar 7era coapon noses embed wath issuer call opltions allwang issuers to eardy redeem the nates
In 2020, the Groups exercred the lsuer call aptions and redeemed US$250 mallion of these notes,

As a1 31 Decernber 2021, the United Siates dollar ze1o coupon notes have nominad amount of USS400 maion
{2020 USS400 malion) and acerual yiedd of 4 375% per annum (2020; 4.375% per annum]. They are callable on
12 Cectober 2022 and annually thereafter until the penultimate year to maturity.

Detadhs of the ssuer of the Homg Kong dollar and United States dollar medaem term nofes are set out in nate 18,

Some banking faoltes of the Groups are subject to the fulfilment of cowenants relatng to certain of the Groups’
staternent of financial position ratios, as are commanly found i lending arangements with financial nstitutions. If
the Groups wene to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand and any
undrawn armount will be cancelod. The Groups regularly monitors its comgliance with those covenants. Further
detals of the Groups” management of liquidity sk are set out m note 31000 As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
none of the covenants redating to drawn down facll ties had been breached,

Hane of the non-current intenest-bosneng borrowings 15 expectid 1o be settied within one year, All the abave
onmowings are unsecured,

The pon-current interest-beaning borrowings ane repayable as foflows:

2021 2020

foitn | Smion
After 1 year but within 2 years 108 2,500
After 2 years but within 5 years 24,294 1,298
Aller 5 yoars W 36,904
45,393 &0, 706
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26. Derivative financial instruments

wnmn 2020
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabi‘ities
: § million 5 millicn _ millcn § milion
Derivative financial instruments used for
hedging:
Cath flow hedges:
— Cross CUITENCY Swaps - ()] - {57
~ Irterest Fate Swaps 15 (150) - 1624)
— Fonward foreign exchangs contracts 585 9 €19 )
Faiir value hisdges
- Fonward foreign exchange contracts - (300 - {11
B00 {226) 519 703
Analysad as:
Cuament 4 (29} 3 E
Mon-cument 596 {197} 616 1697
GO0 {226} 619 {703

27. Employee retirement benefits

The Groups offer three retirement schemes which together cover all permanent stafi

One of the schemes (the *Pension Schieme ™) provides pension benefits based on the employee’s final basic salary and
tengih of service, This scheme fs accounted for as a defined benefit retrement scheme,

Another scheme is difined contribution in nature and offers its members vancous investment funds in which they can
imvest. One of the imeestment Tunds provides a guaranteed return; the scheme is accounted for a5 a defined benefit
retirement schemse in respect of this investment fund (the “Guaranteed Retum Scheme®), In respect of other investment
funds which do not offer a guaranieed rotumn, the schome is accounted for a5 3 defined contribution retimeont scheme
{see note 770K,

Both these schemes are established under trust and are registered under the Hong Kong Ocoupational Retirerment Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the schermes ane held independently of the Grouwps® assets in separate trustes admanistened Tunds.

The responsibility Tor the govemance of the schemes - Including imestment and contribution decissons - lies with the
independent trustees in accordance with the trust deeds of the swchemes
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The Groups also participate in a master trust Mandatony Provident fund Scheme (the ° MPF Schema® ) aperated by an
indepandent service provider under the Hong Kong handatary Provident Fund Schemes Ovdinance. The MPF Scheme

i% a defined condribution retirement schiome with the employer and it employees sach contributing 1o the schema in
accordance with the relevant scheme rules. The MPF Scheme rules prowida for voluntary contributions to be made by the
employer calewlated as a percentage of the employees’ basic safaries

Sinca the intreduction of the Mandatoey Frovident Fund System in Hong Kong in December 2000, both the Parion
Scheme and the Guaranteed Retun Schame have been closed 1o new entrants and all new recruits are envolled in the MPF
Sciweme,

(a) Definad banafit retirement schemes ("the Schemes®)

The funding policy In respect of the Pensson Scheme 5 based on visluations prepared pencdscally By independent
professionally qualfied actuanes at Wills Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited. The policy far employer's coninbutions
i to fund the scheme in accordance with the actuary™s recommendations on an on-goeng basis, The principal
actuanal assumiptions used include discount rate, long berm salary increase rate and future pension ncrease

rate which are dischosed in rote 2 7ialivie) together with appropriate prowssions for mortably rates. tumover and
adjustments to reflact the short-term market expectation of salary increases, The most recent actuarial valuation

of the Pensson Schemne was carmed ot by the appointed actuary, represented by M3 Wing Lui, F5A, a3 at

I January 2021, The valuation revealed that the assets of the Pension Scheme were sufficlent to cover the aggregate
vested babilities as at the valuation date,

Both defined benelit retaerrent schismis expose Uie Groups to iwestment risk, intenest rale rsk and salary risk while
the Persion Scheme also axposes the Grodps to risks of kangevity and nflation.

The retirernent scheme expensefincome recognised |n pratit or koss for the year ended 31 Decernber 2021 was
determined i sccordance with HKAS 19 2011), Emplayes bonefits
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27. Employee retirement benefits (continued)

{a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”) {continued)

iy The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

021 2020

§ million $ millien

Fresent value of defined benefit obligations 3 3,401
Fair value of assets of the Schernes (3.816) (3,921]
{695) {520)

Represented by:

Employee retirement benefit scheme assets {1,045) {BET)
Employes retirernent benefil scheme labiiities 350 367
{695} 15200

A portion of the above aswtMability s expected to be realisedisettiod after mare than one year, However,
it is mat practicable to segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the nokt 12 months, as fulue

conributions will also relate 1o future senvices rendered and fulure changes in actuanal assurnptions and
miarke! conditions.

fiiy  Movements in the present vahee of defined benefit obligations of the Schemes are as follows:

o 2020
§ million 3 millign
AL T lanuary EX- ] 3,459
Current service cost &0 59
interest cost 4 61
Ermployes contributions paid 1o the Schemes 1" 13
Actuanial (gainskicsses due to:
- liakslity experience {18) 23]
- change in financial assumpiions (a7} 214
= change in demographic Jssumptions 35 20
Benefits paid {288) 1395)
Trarsder cut i 4}
At 31 December 3 3,401
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fil)  Mevements in fair value of plan 2ssets of the Schemes are a3 follows:

2021 2000

5 millien § miflicn

At 1 January 3,921 3,900
Interest mcomse on the Schemes’ assels 24 63
Return on Schemes' assats, excluding interest income n7 195
Employer contributions pasd to the Schemes L] a4
Employee contributions paid to the Schemes 1 13

Berefits paxd {288} {356

Transter out [E)] (4]
Af 31 Decamber 3816 3921

The Groups expect to contribute $45 million to the Schemes in 2022,

{v)  The expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit o loss, prior 10 any capitalsaton of
employmient costs attnbutable 1o additions of property, plant and equipment, & as follows:

2021 2020

S millian % millicn

Current service oost (1] 59

Met interest income on nel defined benefil assebfability - (8]
60 51

i) The expenses are recognised in the following line tems in the consolidated staternent of profit or loss

2021 2020

5 million 4 milion

Direct costs a 13
Other operating cosis _1_9 18
(1] 51

141

256/530



#» HE Electric investments Anrual Repart 3021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

[Expriised & Hong Kong doflars unless othenswse indicabed)

142

27.

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
Ooooooooooooboooononoad

{a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”) {continued)

il The cumulative amownt of actuanal gains recognised in the consolidated stalement of comprehensive income &

as foliows

At 1 January

Femeasurement of net defined benefit assetTiability recognised
ini the corsalidated staterment of comprehensive income

during the year
At 31 December

Flirs] 2020

5 million 5 million
489 403
19 &5
686 483

iwil)  The major categories of assets of the Schemes are as follows:

2020
1 millioy
Hong kong eouiths a2
European equities 214
North American equities [AD]
Aua Pacilie and other equities 57
Global bonds 2,40 2,165
Deposits, cash and others 104 52
3,816 3,921
Strategic imvestment declssons are taken with respect 1o the risk and return profiles,
iwill) The principal actuanal assumiplions used a5 a1 31 Decerniber are a5 Tollows:

202 2020

Discount rate
~ The Pension Scheme 16% 1.0%
- Thie Guaranteed Return Scheme 1.2% 04%
Long-term salary increase rate 5.0% 5.0%
Future pension increase rate 2.5% 2.0%
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(1) Tha Pension Schome
Increase/{decrease] ln
defined benofit obligations
2021 2020

5 million 5 mifion
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
- increase by 0.25% {58} (59
- dacrease by 0.25% 62
Penslon moiexse rale
= increase by 0.25% 53
- decrease by 0255 54) (58]
Mortality rate appbed to specific age
- set forward one year (74} (#7)
= sl backoward one year 75 78

(¥ The Guaranteed Return Scheme
Increase/{decrease) in
defined benefit cbligations
2021 2020

£ million % milion
Actuarial assumptions
Dascount rate
- inCrease by 0.25% (20} (28]
= decrease by 0.25% n 26
Interest to be credited
= increase by 0.25% 20 25

Thie abowe sensitivity analyses are based on a channe inan aSsumption while holding all other assumplions
canstant. In practice, changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated, When caloulating the sensithaty
of the defined benefit obligation to slgnificant actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unil credit mathod at the end of the reparting period)
has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit lability recognised wathin the consolidated statement
of financial pesition, The analysis has been performed on the same bass as for 2020,
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27. Employee retirement benefits (continued)

{a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”) {continued)

)  The foliowing lable sets out the weighted average durations of the defined benefit obligations aof the Schemes:

2021 2020
The Pension Scheme 12.9 Years 13.2 Years
The Guaranteed Return Scheme 6.0 Years 6.5 Years
(b) Defined contribution retirement schemes
2021 2020
% millien 1 million
Expanses recoinsed in pralit or oes (23 63

Forfoited contributions of 31,857,000 (2020: 11, 148,000} have been received duning the year.

28. DOther non-current liabilities

2021 2020

Smillion 3 million

Provisons (see note (a) below) 1.314 1121
Lease likiltes (see note (b below) - 1
1,314 1,122

{a) Provisions

2021

5 millian

Pravisions for aset decommissioning abligation

At Jamuary 1421
Additional provisions made 194
Prowisions uilised (1}

Al 31 Decambaer 1314

Ui SoCA, provison which represents the best estimation of sxpenditune required 1o setthe asset decommissioning
oblgation has to be made to the extent that HE Electric incurs an obligation for the costs of dismantling and
emaoving property, plant and equipment and restonng the sites on which they are located efther when the assels are
acguired or a8 a consequence of having used them during a particular period for alectricity-ralated activities.
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(b} Lease liabilities

The ‘ollowing table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Groups” lease Rabilities at tha end of the
current and previous reporting penods

2021 2020

Present Present

value of the value of the
minimum ease Total minimum  minimuim lBate  Tobal measemim
payments  lease payments paymonis  lease paymonts
5 million % million § million 5 miicn
Within 1 pear 1 1 1 1
After 1 year bul within 2-years - - 1 |

1 1 i F
Less: tortal future interest expences - -

Prasont value of loaw liabiltes 1 )

29. Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position

2021 2020
5 millien 5 milion

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Provision for Hong Kong Frofits Tax for the year 414 d52
Halance ef Prefits Tax proviion relating 1o pror year 97 B
506 541

ib) Deferred tax liabilities
2027 2020
5 million 5 mificn
Deferred tax lisbilibes 9,942 9,597
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29, Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

iy The components of deferred tax liablitesfassets) recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the moverments during the yoar ae as follows:

Depreciation
allowsances Daefinad

inexcessof  Fuel Clawse benefit
the related Recovery  retirement

$ millian depreciation Arcount sehemes. Others Total
AR 1 January 2030 9573 (an 16 56 8540
Chargedoredited) 1o prolit o loss 136 24 [ (] 116
Chargedforedited) 10 ciher

compehemae income - - L] (81} 167
Charged directly in equity - - - 4 B
At 31 December 2020 and

1 Janusary 2021 9,708 {131} L] (17} 8,557
Chaigedforedited) 1o prodit of loss 152 173 4) 1 i
Charged 1o other comprehenshe

Irvcceme - - 3 30 B3
At 31 December 2021 9,851 42 65 14 5,082

{i}  The Groups had no material unprovided deferred tax assets or liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
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30. Capital, reserves and dividends

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconcliation between the opening and dosing balances of each componant of the Groups’ consobdated equity
i set out i the consobdated statement of changes in equity, Detads of the changes in the Company's indhidual
companents of equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Tha Company
Proposed/
Share Shane Hedging Revenue dedared
capital prosum ] e dividend Total
§ milficn (nete 300N rm}g(::u:l inate 3000 [nods IE0 Imiz 14)
Balance a1 1 fanuary 2020 B AT AT ] 2437 1402 51,347
Chanpes in equity for 2000
Proit for the yaar = = - 3161 3 3181
Other ormgrerensae income - - (335 - - (335)
Totl cormpuetiensive income = = (3351 EALY = 2RI
Second intenm drwdend in respect al
predous year apgeoved and paid
[ TR - - - - .422) an
Firs? inferim diwidend paid (see rote 14B] - - - (1,408 = {1,408
Propesed second intenm didend
{see note 1400 ¥ = - (1420 1422 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 and
1 Ranuary 2021 ] 47412 m:mn 1 me8 140 §1.343
Chariges in equity for 2021
Praiit e the year - = - 1369 - 3349
(Cither comgeekensae inoome - - 131 - - Fird
Total compeehensive ncome - - 13 138 - 3801
Second intenm dimdend in respect of
preios weat approved ond pasd
{wee node 1l - " = b 14221 (1422
First insenem devickend pad (see pote 14600 - - - (1,408 - (1,408)
Propased second intedim divdend
{see note 14501 - - - (1422 1422 i
Balance at 31 December 2021 B 47472 [5) 3307 1422 5214

Adl of the Compary's share premium and revenue resende & avadable for dstribution. The Company Board declared
the paymint of a second nterim dividend of 16,00 cents (2020, 16,09 centsl per ordinary shane, amounting 1o
$1.422 million {2020: $1,422 milion], in lieu of a final dvidend and therefore no final dasdend was proposed by the
Company Board,
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30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(b} Share capital

The Company
- — “21 - -
Number of Shares HNominal value
5
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of $0.0005 sach
At 1 January and 31 Decernber 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
Preference shares of 50,0005 each
ALY Jamuary and 31 Deoormdser 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
ksued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of $0.0005 aach
ALY January and 31 Decernber B,835,200,000 4,418,100
Prefarence shares of $0.0005 each
AL 1 January and 31 Decernber B,836,200,000 4,418,100
070
Murmbes of Shares Nominal wvalue
5
Authorised:
Cridrary shares of $0.0005 each
A1 1 January and 31 Decernber 20, 000,000,000 10,000, 003
Praference shares aof 300005 each
AL 1 Jamuary and 31 Decormber 20,000,000,000 10.000, 000
Issued and fully pald
Ordinary shares of $0.0005 each
ALY January and 31 Decernber B.835,200,000 4.418,100
Pralerence shares of 30,0005 sach
A1 1 lanuary and 31 Decernber B.835,200,000 4 418,100
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Share premium

Shara preméum represents the excess of Shane Stapled Uit issuing price over the nominal vaiues of ordinary and
preference shares, after deducting undenwriting commisssons and Eting expenses pursuant to global offering that
hiave been charged to equity, The application of share premesum & governed by Section 34 of Cayman Companies
Laws and the prevsions of Company's amended and nostated Memorandum and Artsclps of Assoeation.

Mature and purpose of reserves
(i} Hedging reserve

The hedging resenve includes. cash flow hedge reserve and cost of hedoing resense. The cash flow hedge
reserse comprises the effective portion of the curmulative net change in the fair value of hedgang instruments
used in cash flow hedges (net of any deferred tax effect) pending subsequent recognition of the hedged cash
flowad i sccandance with the accounling policy adopted for cash flow hadges in note Hqilil). Under HKFRS 9,
Financiad Insiruments, if the Groups euclude the forward element of fonward contracts and the fareign

currency bass sproad of firanclal instruments {the “exduded elements ™) from the designation of the hedging
Imatruments, then the exduded elements may be separaiely accounted for as cost of hedaing, The far value
changes of the exchiled elements are recognised in a separale component of equity s cost of hedging resans
1o the extent that it relates to the hedged items,
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30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

{d) Mature and purpose of reserves (continued)
{} Hedging resarve (continued)

T foliiwang tables provide a recancikation of the components in hedging reserve and an analyas of other
cormprehensive Income by risk category that anises from hedge accounting:

(1) €Cash flow hedge reserve

§ milicn rasbe risk Total
Balance at 1 lanuary 2020 E? na 75
Effective partion of changes in fair value of hedging

Insdruments necegresd in ot comprediersiat Incame [BET} T (165
Redassificabon adjustments for amouwnts transiemed to

peafit of kass (soe note | below) dd (27 17
Mat deferred tax oraditedfcharged) o other comprehensive

ncorne Bl m (31}

[Tdd} 565 7%

Adngunts trarsloiied 1o the nftial carring smount of hedged

iterns, net of tax (see note 2 below) = (25) 25
Balance at 31 December 2020 and

1 January 2021 (see note 3 balow) 1657} 528 {129
Effectve partmn of chandges o fair waliss of hedong

instrumanis recognised in other comprehensve income in 92 463
Redessilication adjustments for amounts transiered to

profit or koss (see note 1 below) 152 - 152
Mot deferred 1ax charged to other comprehensva incomse (45) (15) (64)

a4 7 551

Amaunts ransiemed 1o the intlal carndng amount of

hesdged items, net of tax tsse note 2 below) - {5 (5
Balance at 31 December 2021 (=22 note 3 below) {183) B00 497

Hate | Aoty reclaiaied 1o profit o lows are recogneed in the “Fnance costs” ine nem m ke consoldated

statemeant ol peolit o losd

hate 2 Amounts transferned to the initial carming smount of hedged Bems ane recognned in the "Fropeny,
plarit and equpment” of “liwentosies” Ene ferns in the consalidated staterment of fmandial pesition.

Mt 3 Thae entire halsncs reldted 1o contining hedged
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{2} Cost of hedging reserve

Foreign
CUrTenCy Forward
4 milkon basis spread elemant Total
Balance a1 1 Januany 2020 82 167 248
Hidging foe time-ponad refated hodged items
= Effectiver porticn of changes m far value of hedging
Instruments recognisad in other comprebensive iInoome {h2ay (48T} 60T
- Riclassification adjustments fer amounts transforred to
profit or loss (see note 1 below] - 63} [[%1]
Hedaging for transachon related hedged tems
= Efiective portion of changes in fair value of hedging
nstruments recognised in other comprehensive inoome - L[] &
= Amounts trarsfermed 1o thi initial carrying ameunt of
hedged dems (s2a note 2 below) - 65 BS
Heet delerred tax aedited to other mmgeehensive income 20 92 12
Balance at 31 December 2020 and
1 Janiary 2021 (5o niote 3 bl (18) 232) (250
Hegging for time-period related hedged items
- Effective partion of changes in fak value of hedging
instrumients recognised in ether comprehinsive incom £ (132) (141
- Reclassification adjustments for amowunts transherred to
profit of loss {see note 1 below) - {63} (63}
Hedging for transaction refated hedged items
~ Effective partion of changes in fair value of hedging
mstuments recognised in other comprehensive inpome - 1 1
= Amounts trarfermed 1o the inibal carmang amount of
hedged items (see note 2 befow] - ] [
Net deferred tax credibed to ather comgeenensive income F 32 34
Ealance at 31 December 2021 isee note 3 below) (25) (388} (413
Hote 1 Amounts rechssilied 1o profit o loss ane recognised in the “Fnance costs™ Bne item in ihe consolidated

slatemant of piolit o loss

Mobe 2 Amourits trandfermed to the mitml camysng amount of hedged tems are recognined inthe “Property,
plant and equipment”™ or “Inventones” bne items in the corsolidaiesd staterment of financial pasition.

MNote 3 The entite halance relates to continuing hedges
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30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

td}

(e}

Mature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(i} Revenue resarve

Thar revemuse reserve comgames the scoumulatied profits retained by the Company and its subsidianes and
acoumulated actuanal gainslosses on remeasurement of net delined benedit assetfiability of HE Electric.

Capital management
The Growps’ pnimary ohéectives when managing capital are;

- iosafeguard the Groups' ability o continue as a golng concern, 5o that the Groups can conlinue to provide
retunms far holders of Share Stapled Units and benefits for other stakeholgers,

- ioprevide relurns 1o holders of Share Stapled Unifs by securing access to finance af a reasanable cost;
- o suppart the Groups' stabslity and future growdh; and
= o provede capital for the purpose of strengthening the Groups' risk managerment capability,

The Groups actively and reqularly review and manage the capital siruciume, taking inia consideration the future
capital requirements of the Groups and capital efficiency, forecast profitability, forecast operating cach flows,
forecast capital expenditure and projectied imvestment opporiunmities.

Thie Giowups manitor the capital structuna oh the basi af & nat debit-to-net total capital ratio, For ths puipose the
Groups define net debt as interest-bearing borrowings {as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position)
levs Bank degesits ol cash, Mt totad cagital rehudis el debst gl eguity which comprises all components of equity
{as showwn in the consoldated statement of financial posiaon)

Duming 2021, the Groups' strategy, which was unchanged from 2020, was to control the Groups' keve! of debt in
onder o secure access 1o finance at a reasonable cost. In order io malntain or adjust the kevel of debt. the Groups
may adjust the amount of dstributions paid to holders of Shase Stapled Units in accordance with the Trust Deed,
msue nesw Shone Staphed Unats, mse new debt finanang or 508 assets to reduce debt
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The net debit-to-ne total capitad ratio at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

2021 2020

) 5 millien 3 mifion

Bank kans and other interest-beanng borrowings 46,626 4,890
Lesa; Bank deposits and cash (34 {52

et diebt 46,592 &4, 838

Total equity 48,393 47,743
Met debt 46,502 adﬁa&_

Met o2zl capital 94,985 92,581

Net debt-to-net total copital rato 49% A8%

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments

The Groups ase exposed 1o credil, liguaddly, interest rate and currency nsks in 1he nosmal course of its business. In
accordance with the Groups” treasury policy, dervative financial instrements ane only used to hedge its exposure to Toreign
exchange and interest rate risks arising from operational, financing and investment activities. The Groups do not hold or
issue dervaiive financial instrumenis for rading or speculaiive purposes.

{a) Credit risk

The Groups” credit risk 5 primarndy atinibartable to trade and other recelvables relating 1o dectncity customers, bank
deposits and over-the-counter derivatve fimancial instrements entered into for hedging pusposes. The Groups hawe a
credit pobicy in place and the exposures to these credi risks ane monitored on an engosng birsis,

Ir respesct af trade and other recoivabies relating To slectricity austomers, HE Elecine obtains colateral in the form

of security deposts or bank guarantees from customers in accordance with the Supply Rules. The ocolateral covered
$399 milbon of rade and other receivables at 31 December 2021 (2020: 3293 million), The credit policy i set out in
nate 21,

The Groups have defined minimum credit rating requirements and transaction Bmits for counterparties when dealing
i financeal derivatves or placing deposits 10 memmise cledit exposune. The Groups do not expect any counlarparty o
fail ta meet it abligations.

The Groups have no significant concentrations of credit fsk in respect of trade and ather recawvables ralaling to
electnicty customers, as the fve largest qustomers combinead did not excead 30% of the Groups' 1otal revenue.

153

268/530



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
Ooooooooooooboooononoad

#» HE Electric investments Anrual Repart 3021

154

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

(Expriciued i Hong Kong doflars unless othersse indicated)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

{a) Credit risk {continued)

The maximum ekposwre 1o credi risk s represented by the carrying amount of each fmancial asset, including
dernvative fmancial instruements, in the consolidated staterment of financial podition,

Further guantitate dadosures in respect of the Groups' exposure to cedit sk ansing lrom rade and other
recewvabiet ane 588 oul in note 21

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Groups' denvative transactions are executed with financial institutions and governad by eithes Insemational
Swaps and Derivatives Association Master Agreemants {*ISDA" ) or the general terms and conditions of these
financial insmations, with & conditinal rght of set afl wnder certain clreumstances that would result in all
ourtstanding transacbons being terminated and net sattied

As these fmancial institulsons curently have no legal enforceable right to set off the recognisad amounts and the
Groups do not Intend to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and setile the labllities simultaneously, all sach
financial instruments are recorded on gross bass at the end of the reparting persod.

Thie following tabie presents tha recognised lisancial instrurnents (et are subject 1o enforceable master nelling
armengements but are not offset at the end of the reporting penod

un 2010
Grens o
ameunti Amounts
of finaeeial ol fnancid
imtruments iminmenty
n the Relared inthe Ry
consolidated Financial ool deterd Inercil
statement  btuments siafemest  sirumenn
of fnastil  thataee ot offrancisl  that are it
§ milion Motz pasitisa offset Kt amount poskon offiel  heg amount
Financlal assets
Krterest eati fwvaps LT 15 ] - . - _
forward forscnexhange confracs 1) 545 {180 i3 £ HaE i)
Total [ 185 L] B9 W5 hl:x]
Financlal Esbalities
Cross cumency vaeps L 1] n [26) " 5 [E12] 15
nkercsl eali st i 15 e ] 2% “n Frij
Fosward foreon exchange (omracs L1 11] n E_H - 15 {14k 1
Total 16 {195) kil 00 (] mn
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(b} Liquidity risk

The Growps operate a central cash management system in order to achieve a better control of risk and minimse the
cots of funds. The Groups' policy is 10 regulary mantor current and expected liguidity requirements and comipliange
waith loan covenants, 1o emsure that the Groups maintain sufficient resenses of cash and adequate committed lines

of funding to maet liguidity requirsmants i the shor and longes term, The Groups hisd undrawn committed bank
facilities of 36,250 milion at 31 December 2021 (2020 35,150 millon).

The fallewing tables show the rermaining conitractual matunties at the and of the reportng pesod of the Groups'
non-dorivatwe financial lisbdites and dervalive financial mstruments, which ame based on contractual undscounted
cazh flows (incheding intevest payments compuied using contractual rates or, if floatng, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting persod) and the earliest date the Groups can be required 1o pay

021
_ Contrachual uridiscanted cash outflows/Tinflows)
More than  More than

Within  Tyearbat 2 years bt Carrying
1 year or kess than lessthan  More than amawnt at
S millios o demand 2yean 5yean 5 yean Tetal ¥1 Detomber
Man-derivative Bnancisl Rabilities
Bank loars and other berowngs and

inferest accriial 014 14072 16,445 338 80,916 46,773
Crodhions and accrued chasges e - - - 3
50

1472 54 33 TR 50619

Desvative financlal insirements

Het settlod
Interest rale swaps ard related
InSenest accruals 139 13 % 4] kE: ] 155
Gross settled
Cress cunency weaps and related
Inferest accrusls n
- outfles Lot m fro] 19 1,042
- inflaw (187} [157) [5a5) mmn 16200
Forwand forsgr exchange contracts held
2 tash fow hedging instrumentc 578
- oifflees 147 L4 4 16,750 18,274
- inflow 1,378) (1429 (£1] 17523 (15,044)
(Orhher forward foesign echange conviracs: kL
- oufflwy i+ ] - - Tar
~ infiow M3 [45) + = (755
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

2o
Confractual urcliscounted cash outfiowstinfiows)
More fhan hior= than

Withn  Tyearbut 3 yeans but Cairying
1 yoar o less than lewthan Mone than amount at
§ millicer o demand 1 s 5y 5 yuars Total - 31 December
Nen-derivative financal [Rabilite
Bank loars and other bormoweangs and
Inberest accrualy 4,530 300 338 48245 5 TE 45,008
Crediors and sooned charges 1528 - - - 1628 1618
7,558 ERrL] 3385 48245 2412 47,663
Durivative financlal instruments
Mt settied
Irtereest rate Swagrs and related
Interest actruaky L] 128 ] m Bl 637
Gross settled
Cross currency swaps and related
inkenest acrrualy 50
= outfiow 202 o 805 i35 1,243
= inflow 1198 [158) [542) 230 11218y
Feeward foresgn aichange cantracts heid
a5 cash flow hadgng instruments: (615
- putflow 1836 55 o 16,750 1872
= nllow (2.902) [55 28 (17,523 (20,508)
Otner forward foemgn eecnange conracts: n
= putfiow FilH] I56 FL - 1%
~ inflow [200) (148 a% - 355
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Interest rate risk

The Growps are exposed fo intorest rate risk on its interest-baaring assets and liabilses. Interest rate risk & the rsk
that the fair value or futune cash flows of a fnancial instrument will fluctuace because of changes in market interes
rates, The Groups® interest rate risk arises primarily from kong-t2rm external borrowings.

o

Hedges of interest rate nsk

The Groups' palicy is 1o maintaln a balanced combination of fied and vanable rate borrowings to reduce [is
Imerest rate risk exposure. The Groups also use onoss currency swaps and interest rate swaps to manage the
exprnure inaccondanoe with the Grou” reasury policy,

Thi Greups classify cross curmency swaps and interest rate swaps a5 cash fiow or fair value hedges and states
them at fair value in accordance with the policy set out in note 3ig). Foresgn currency basis spread of oross
currency Swaps are excluded from the designation of the hedging instrument and are separately scoounted for
&5 a oos1 of haedging, which is recognised in equity in a cost of hedging reserve.

The Groups seek to hedge the benchmark interest rate compaonent onky and apply a hedge rabo of 1:1. The
extstence of an economic relatiorship betwean the cross currency swapsfinterest rate swaps and the fied and
variable rate borrowings & determined by matching their critical contract 1erms, mcluding the reference mterest
rates, tenors, interest repricing dates, maturity dates, intevest payment andfor recspt dates, the notional
amournits of the swaps and the outstanding principal amounts of the bomowings.

The hedge ineffectveness in thess hedging relationshaps can arise from:

= theeflect of the counterparty and the Groups” own credil sk on the fair value of the swaps: and

differences in repricing dates between the swaps and the borrowings.
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

{c} Interest rate risk (continued)
(i} Interest rate prafile
Thaer folicwang table detsds the mterest rate profile of the Groups' net interest-beanng assets and kabilities at

the end of the reporting period, after taking into account the effect of oross currency swaps and Interest rate
wwaps designated as cash Tlew or fair value hedging instruments (see (i} aboue).

2 2020
Weighted Waighted
avarage dyeTage
infterest intenest
rata rale
% 5 million % § milhon
Met fixed rate assetst(liabilities)
Eank foans and other bomowings 274 {37.108) 267 (36,955)
Met variable rate assets/i{liabilities)
Cash at bank and in hand 0.03 3 0.3 54
Eank loans and other borrowirgs 094 (9.518) 0.90 (7,934)
Cuwomers’ deposits * {2.317) A (2,268)
(11.801) (10,150
Less than 0.01%

(i} Sensitivity analysis

At 31 Decernber 2021, it i estimated that a general increasefdecreass of 100 bass poants o interest rales, wih
al othir vanables held comstant, wauld have decreaspdinoneased the Groups’ profit after taation and mveni
resenda by approdimately $92 million (2020: $84 million). Other components of conscldated eguity would have
increasedddecreased by apprommately $460 malon (2020; $570 malon) in response to the general
Increasatdecrease in Inierest rales.

The sensitaity analysis atove has been dotermined assuming that the change in mterest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting perlod and had been applied 1o the exposure to nienest rate risk lor both dervative

and non-dervative finandal instruments in existence at that date. The analysis has baen performed on the
sarr bags as for 2020,

158

273/530



EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
Ooooooooooooboooononoad

Financial Statements

{d} Currency risk

The Growps are exposed o cunency risk primarily throwgh purchases and bomrowings that are denominated ina
curmency other than the functional cumency of the Groups. The cumencies giving rise to this risk are prmarly United
States dollars and Japanese Yen,

o

Hedges of currency risk

The Groups” palicy is 1o bedge 100% of their forkign currency borravdngs and fo hedge their estimated
foreign curmency exposures in respect of forecast purchases in accordance with their ireasury policy. The
Groups use lorvwand foreign exchange contracts and o currency swaps (o manage currency risk and classity
as cash Hlow or fair value hedges and states them at fair value in accordance wath the policy set out in note
3iqh. The Grougs desigrate the spot clement of farward forcign exchange contracts 1o hedge the Groupy
currency nisk. The forward elements of forward exchange contracts are exduded from the cesignation of the
hedging instrument and ane separately accounted for as a cost of hedging, which is recognised in equity in a
cost of hedging reserve. The Groups’ policy s for the critical terms of the forward exchange contracts o align
with the hedged item.

The Growps apply @ hedge ratio of 1:1 and determine the existence of an ecanomic relationship between the
foneard exchange contracts and the committed and forecast transactionsforsign currency borrowings based
on their currency amounts and the timing of their respective cash flows,
Thie hedge ineffectveness in these hedoing relationsheps can anse from:

- the effect of the countesparty’s and the Groups” own credit risk on the fair value of the forward foreign
exthange contracts; and

changes in the tming el the hedged transactions.
The Groups' bormowings are either hedged inlo Hong Kong dallars by ways of forwand foresgn exchange

contracts and cnoss currency swaps or cenaminaled in Hong Kong dollars. Given this, the management does
ned expect that there would be any significant currency nisk associated with the Groups' barrowings.
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i} Exposure to currency sk

T foliiwang table detsds the Groups' exposune ot the end of the reparting penod 1o cumency rsk aming from
recognsed assets or kabilities denominated in a cumency other than the functional curency of the Groups.

201

‘million (expeessed in original currencies) uso I
Bank deposits and cash - 24
Trace and other payabies and conract Labiities {161} (2,478)
Bank loans and other borrowings (2.229) -
Gross exposure ansing from recogrised assels and liabilities (2,390) {3.454)
Hotional amounts of forward foreign exchange contracts

designated as hedging instruments 1.347 3,251
Notional amounts of CIoss CUMMnCY Swaps designated as

hedging instruments 950 -
et exposure ansing from recognisen assels and habilities {93} {203)

0z0

‘rillion lexpressed in eeigingl currences) usp Py
Trade and other payables and contract habilithes {74 {3,260
Bank fcans and other bormowings (2,208) -
Grods exposure ansing from recogrised assels and liabilities (2,283) (3,260
National amounts of forward loreign exchange contracts

designated as hedoing instruments 1,279 2,965
Hotional amounts of cross curmency swaps designaied as

hedging instruments 950 -
Nel exposure arising {nom recognised assels and liabilities {54} 1294)
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(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates that a 10 percent strengthening in tha following currency agaerst Hong Kong
duollars a1 the end of the reparting percd would have increasedAdecreased) the Groups' profi after taxation
{and revenue reserve) and ather components of consolidated equity.

2021 2020
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit after other peodit alter other
taxation and components taxation and comoonents
PEVENUE MESenE of equity PRV FESEG of aquaty
Increase/ Increases Increasel’ Increasa’
5 million (decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (dfacrease)
lapanese Yen 11 13 19 i1

A 10 percent weakening in the above currency against Hong Kong dollars at the end of the reporting penod
would have had an equal but oppesite effect on the Groups' profit after taxation (and revenue reserve) and
other components of corsolidated equity.

Thits sersitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instrumenits belel by the Groups which expose the Groups to currency risk at the end aof the
reparting period, and that all ather variables, in particular interess rales, remain constani. in this respact. it &
assumed that the pegped rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be materially
unatfected by any changes in moverment in value of the United States dollar agasrat other currencies. The
analysts has been performed on the same basis as for 2020
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[Expriised & Hong Kong doflars unless othenswse indicabed)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
{e) Hedge accounting

The following tables summasise the hedging instruments, hedged iems and hedged risks of the Groups for the year
ended 31 December 20271 and 2020

(i} Cash flow hedges

=i
Ohasge i Fa e e
Ly i sl Fotcaludabng gy
[enane: e Tre
Fraecid frusid  wdebe
] R e ke Haige
Vinghnd  amourtal wie  Tok ] i L
g il bedging vt aadethe omecomsl oeiod Rk Beded  wopiie
g ek it vl Ibitn  blie eseh b pfoks
Fedgny it Mty covuinis  mifis Sl §imilin fnilkn  inlke  imice Smlin  fnlke
{1 Por ging ey risk ol g curmeney Sormowings ane intesmet rat 5 = varable i ormings
(rummymmmad  kngngine my e ] - [En - moomy -
ek i cwag ATES
A0 hlgopcon ol e i
bl bmpadan  Lngagine L ncie L% u ] a m E ] -
oo Ak ]
ilda b v boms.
hmrdbmpodige  Dngngiee e e LU n - - - B =
e i R beiw
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mogified  hedgny  moncoe mdche meamet comd Megeg  beded  mogmiedin
e el [ ] s ite nhees B plivim
Fepeg ety Miryar condms  fnle inlen  feden fmlee ol Smie Indee  fnllm
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[Expriised & Hong Kong doflars unless othenswse indicabed)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

{e) Hedge accounting {continued)

(i} Falr value hedges

m - -
sy i ot
o candaneg e
Lieryeg st incuded M
[anaim Tenae Tra
Franca frusid  dvbw
gt e ey pbin Kl
R [ u e " refagnem
wbbe  Moted  serome  edwde  mmomsl  oeind ek Fekel wugmde
[T [ lbdltes  Gblte mmeh b peftorks
g it M ceminn Sl fmlie  §nilion il imilee  fmlice fmll sl
Fraipadey  Lngnyfes o m - L] un 1} |
L] f O A bilzw
.
Carying amoust of bedged inms
(inchdng amumalaied Far rakae herumiid fair vl adge Lint ftmm i thet czescidaie
badgn sdimmien) s tists 2| badged i stiamist o Fiatidl pritive &
Hedged fens imiliza 1 nilin whigh th hedped e it inchded
oupcyl lubd'tet M5 n “rht ded yilar payablas
o] contract ot
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b
Chasges 1 o valon o
ot ey e
Uiy amtd mckdet netpcrrey
Crruic [tnat = ]
gl fnd ke
B e BhEs pdia k-]
TR [ T o o et
v Metoal ol mdetw mmamet  oetd Neoeg Mo eogmein
s ot [ ] ks ite nhees B plivim
Fegey enmety Miryar condms  fnle inlen  foden fmilr  fmlle Snie lnle  Snllm
bradeppcy i e ot - - - i m m n
oriads XN X8 s
ik
Carmyrog armoart of heded tema
[ruding acumudated far vl Aorarulited {2 valoe hedge Linz item in the comnidated
hickge afuerminss achesamines of hodoes e strrmen of francid pouson in
Lo i ] L]
firanoal kabities 54 ] Trade ard sther payabies

e oniract e

Mate: The loliowing Lable peovides mfonmation on the weghtied sarage contract rates of cuttanding fonsard foreign
exchange contracts at the end of 1he reposting penod:

2021 2020
Waightsd averace contract rates
USKHKD TAE7S 7as85
P HED 00752 D075
GEPHED 12134 10.0586
EURHKD 95059 94779
Iusn 107.0041 1040172
GEPLSD 13345 -
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(f} Fair value measurement

The following table presents the fair value of the Groups’ financial instruments measured at the end of the reparting
period on a rocurming basks, categonsed into the theee-bvel fair vakee hisrarchy as defined in HICFRS 13 Faw Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurerment is classified is determined with reference to the
olrsesvability and significamce of the npuls used in the valuation technigue as lollows:

Lewl 1 virhaations: Fair value measured usng only Level 1 mputs 1.2, unadjusted quoted prces in active markets
for idantical finandal assets or liabdites al the maasurement date

= Lewel 2 valuations: Fair value measured usng Level 2 inpuls e, obsenvabde inputs whach fal to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable mputs are inputs for whech market data is not
evailabie

= Lewel 3 valuations: Falr value messured using sgnificant uncbservable inputs

(i} Recurring Tair valus meastrements

Level 2
2021 2020
HNote § million § milliony
Financial assets
Darivatwe financial instruments:
- Interest rake swaps N 15 -
= Fonward foreign exchange cornracts 31ial 585 619
600 613
Financial liabilities
Daerivatve financial instruments:
= Lross currency swaps ANfab En 57
= Interest 1ate swaps iay 150 623
- Forward foreign exchange contracts EREH] EL 15
226 700

166

281/530



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
Ooooooooooooboooononoad

Financial Statements

(i} Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value

Trade and other receiables, trade and other payables and contract Rabilities, and ako axtemal borrowings
are camed al cost or amortised cost which are not matenatly diflerent from their fair values as at
31 December 2021 and 2020,

(i} Valuation techniques and inputs in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair values of forwara foreign exchange contracts are determined wsing forward exchange market rates at
the end of the reporting period. The fair values of cross curency swaps and interest rate swaps are determined
by disccunting the: future cash lloves of the contracts al the current markel interest rates

Thi fair values of medium term rotes ane estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at
current market interest rates for smilar finandal instruments.

32. Commitments

{a) The Groups” capital commitments oulstanding at 31 December and not provided for in the financial statements were

a3 follows:
2021 2020
5 millbon § million
Contracted for
Capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment 5,840 7,140
Authorised but not contracted for:
Capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment 13,111 14,303

{B) At 31 December 2021, the Groups” share of capital commitments of a jeant vertung was §147 million (2020:
$343 malbion),

At 31 December 2021, the Groups” share of the kease and other commitments of a joint venture approximated fo
$1,628 milllon {2020: $1,970 rmallian].

33. Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2021, the Groups had no guarantes or ndemnity to extemal parties (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

(Exprririied i I-|nn|_'_| lf[.ulg doinr unless othéraee indicaled)

34. Material related party transactions

The Groups had the following material transactions with related parties dunng the year

{a) Holder of Share Stapled Units
Support service charge recovered from Power Assets group
Other aperating costs included suppen sorvice charge recovered froem Power Assets group amaunting 1o $42 million
(2020: 341 million) for provsion of the support services and office facilities to Power Assets group, The support
service charge was based on the total costs mounied in the provison of procurement of the provison af the sendoes
and facilities and aliocated to Power fAssats group on a fair and equitable basis, taking into acoount the time spent by
the: relevant perscnne| when providing such services.

Al 31 Deceswibes 2021, the totad outstanding balance recevalile frarm Power Assets group was $4 million (2020
$4 milicn).

(b) loint venture

{il  The datals of Shareholder Loan Facility provided 1o HELTL by the Groups and the oulstanding loan balance as
a1 31 December 2021 are disckesed in note 19,

{ily  Imenest income recenedirecenable from HELTL i respect of the Shareholder Loan Faclity amounted to
$13 millian {2020: 56 milion).

{iily  Under a Joint Development Agreement enteted into between HE Electric, CAPCO and HELTL for the
develaprient of LNG terminal, HK Electis and CAPCO will porfonm progact managament and provide supports

to HELTL in the development ard construction of the LG terminal. In 2021, HELTL reimbursed related costs of
311 million (2020: 36 milbon) 1o HE Electic,

(c) Key management personnel remuneration

Rernuraration fof key managemant persoanal of the Grougs are disclosed in note 12.

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions
Thee related party transactions in respect of note 34(a) above constitute continuing connected transactions as defined

in Chagiler 144 of the Listing Rules. However, the framsactions are exempt from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 144 of the Listing Rules.
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35. Statement of financial position of the Company

2021 2020
Note 5 millon § milkon
Non-current assets
Inwestments i subrsidianes 60,882 60,338
Curment assols
Trade and other recenvables 12 i1
Bank deposits ard cash 1 1
13 a2
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables {22) (14)
Current portion of bank loand - iZ._E’ElﬂJ
22) {2,712)
Nat current liabilities 9 (2,670
Total assets loss currant liabilitios 50,873 57,668
HNen-current Habilities
Bank loans {6,664} {5,948)
Derivatve financlal instruments 195} {327
(8, 759) (6,325
Nat assats 52,114 51,343
Capital and reservas 30{a)
Share capital 8 8
Reserves 52106 51335
Total equity 52,114 51,343

Approved and authonsed for Fswe by the Boards on 15 March 2022,

Wan Chi Tin Chan Loi Shun
Director Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

(Expriciued i Hong Kong doflars unless othersse indicated)

36. Substantial holders of Share Stapled Units of the Trust Group

The Share Stapled Units of the Trust Group ane livted on the Main Baard of the Stock Exchange and are widely held by

the public. Power Assets, State Gnd Corporation of China and Qatar Investment Authonty hold approximately 33.37%,
21.00% and 19.90% of the msued Share Stapled Units respectvely as at 31 December 2021 and are considersd substantial
holders of Share Stapled Units of the Trust Group.

37. Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The methods, estimates and judgements the Directors used in applying the Groups’ accounting polices have a significant
impact on the Groups' financial position and operating results. Some of the accounting polices reguire the Groups 1o
apply estimates and |udgements on matters that are nherently uncertain, In adohteon 10 nates 27 and 31 which contain
Infarmation about the assumplions and their risk factoes felating to valuation of defined benefit retirement scheme assets
and labilities and financial instruments, certain oribcal accounting judgemeanis in applying the Groups' accounting poloes
are described below,

(a) Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives after taking
o accourt the estimated resicual value, The Groups review annually the useful e of an asset and its residual
value, d any. Interests in keasehold land ane amortised on a strasghi-ine basis owver the shorter of the estimated usetu!
Fves of the leazed asets and the uneapired lease term, Both the perlod and methods of amortisation are reviewed
annually. The depreciation and amortisation expensas for future periods are adjusted if there ase significant changes
Tromm previous estimares.

(b} Impairment

The Groups review at the end of each reporiing period to entify any ndization that the Groups' praperty, plani
and equipment and nterests in leasehold land may be mpafred and test annwally whether goodwil| has suffered amy
mparment in accordance with the accounting polcy (see note 3(hiiilh.

In consdering the imparment losses that may be required for the property, plant and equipment, intemssts in
leasenodd land and goodwill of the Growps, their recoverable amounts need to be determined. The recoverakle
amxar is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the vakee in usa. It & difficult to preckely estimate
thia fair value less costs of disposal because quoted market prices for these aswets may not be readily available. In
determnining the value in uwse, expected cash flows generated by the assets or CGU 1o which the geodwall has been
allocated are discouniad 1o their present value, which requires significant judgement. The Groups use al' readily
avilabile (nformation in deerminng an armount that & 3 reasonable approximation of the recoverable amaunt

Any Increase or dedredse in impanment losses, recognised a5 501 ouft above, would aflect the net profit in fulue
RS,

See rote 17 for key assumptions used i goodwill smpairment test for the year ended 31 December 2021
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38. Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

Up to the date of ssue of these financiad statements, the HKICPA has ssued a number of amendments to HEFRSs
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 Decernber 2021 and which have not been adopted in 1hese financlal
staternents. Thesa developments include the loliowing which may be refevant to the Groups.

Effective for

aceaunting porods

beginning on or after

= Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intendad Use 1 January 2022
* Aol Improvements 1o HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cryole 1 Joswary 2022
= Amendments to HEAS 1, Classification of Liabilites as Current or Non-curent 1 January 2023
& Amprdments to HIKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statemanit 2, Disclasure af Accaunting Pabicies 1 lanuary 2033
= Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimales 1 January 2023
= Amendmints 1o HKAS 12, Deferred Tax Aulied (o Assets o LisbWities Arsing frorm & ¥ hanuary 2023

Single Transaction

The Graups a4 i the process of making an assessment of what the impact of thess amandments i eaectod to be in the
pericd of inftial application. So-far it has concluded that the adoption of the above i unbkely to have a signdficant impact
on the Groups' results of operations and firancal position,
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2020 12 31

HK

2020 2019
10,389 10,739
(5.334) (5,485)
5,055 5,254
148 37
(1,063) (1,078)
4,140 4,213
©7D) (1,004)
10 3,169 3,200
1
(452) (547)
(116) (67)
(568) (614)
2,601 2,595
13(b) 131 (268)
HK 2,732 2,327
HK
15 30.92 26.33
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2020 2019
147,939 152,923
(75,956) (78,106)
71,983 74.817
2,108 527
(15,137) (15,351)
58,954 59,993
(13,827) (14,297)
10 45,127 45,696
11
(6,436) (7.,789)
(1,652) (954)
(8,088) (8,743)
37,038 36,953
13(b) 1,865 (3,816)
HK 38,904 33,136
HK
15 4.40 3.75

173
HK

HK
14
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HK
2020 12 31
2020 2019
HK 2,732 2,327
86 252
14) 42)
72 210
8 16
- O] @7
2
2 9
74 201
an) 1)
17 (51)
. (607) 600
- (63) (63)
81 (80)
(745) 385
K 2,061 2,913
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2020 2019
HK 38,904 33,136
1,225 3,588
(199) (598)
1,025 2,990
114 228
- (85) (384)
28
28 (128)
1,054 2,862
(2,464) (299)
242 (726)
. (8,644) 8,544
. (897) (897)
1,153 (1,139)
(10,609) 5,482
K 20,349 41,481

99 173
HK
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HK
2020 12 31

2020 2019
68,814 66,601
5,620 5,815
16 74,434 72,416
17 33,623 33,623
19 278 42
26 616 649
27(a 887 809
109,838 107,539
20 726 819
21 951 1,060
22(a 52 299
1,729 2,178
23 (2,820) (2,980)
24 (796) (647)
25 (4,184) (6,010)
- (33)
29(a (541) (577)
(8,341) (10,247)
(6,612) (8,069)
103,226 99,470
25 (40,706) (37,002)
26 (697) (14)
(2,268) (2,241)
29(b (9,597) (9,540)
27(a (367) (368)
28 (1.122) (955)
(54,757) (50, 120)
13(c) (726) (878)
47,743 48,472
30(b 8 8
47,735 48,464
47,743 48,472
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2020 2019
979,911 948,398
80,029 82,806
16 1,059,940 1,031,204
17 478,792 478,792
19 3,959 598
26 8,772 9,242
27(a 12,631 11,520
1,564,093 1,531,355
20 10,338 11,663
21 13,542 15,094
22(a 740 4,258
24,621 31,015
23 (40,157) (42,435)
24 (11,335) (9,213)
25 (59,580) (85,582)
- (470)
29(a (7,704) (8,216)
(118,776) (145,917)
(94,155) (114,903)
1,469,938 1,416,453
25 (579,653) (526,908)
26 (9.925) (199)
(32,296) (31,912)
29(b (136,661) (135,850)
27(a (5.226) (5,240)
28 (15,977) (13,599)
(779,740) (713,709)
13(c) (10, 338) (12,503)
679,860 690,241
30(b 114 114
679,746 690,127
679,860 690,241
2021 16
99 173

HK
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HK
2020 12 31
HK
30 30 30 30 "
b (c a a (
2019 8 47,472 (54) (461) 1,778 48,743
2,327 2,327
376 210 586
376 2,537 2,913
2 2
14 (1,778) (1,778)
C
14 b (1,408) (1,408)
4 b (1,422) 1,422
2019 12 31 8 47,472 324 (754) 1,422 48,472
2020
2,732 2,732
(743) 72 (671)
(743) 2,804 2,061
40 40
14 c (1.422) (1.422)
14 b (1.408) (1,408)
b (1.,422) 1,422
2020 12 31 8 47,472 (379) (780) 1,422 47,743
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HK
30 30 30 30 14
b (c a @ (CI¢
2019 114 676,001 (769) (6,565) 25,319 694,100
33,136 33,136
5,354 2,990 8,345
5,354 36,127 41,481
28 28
14 (25,319) (25,319)
c
14 b (20,050) (20,050)
14 b (20,249) 20,249
gg%g 12 3 114 676,001 4,614 (10,737) 20,249 690,241
38,904 38,904
(10,580) 1,025 (9,555)
(10,580) 39,929 29,349
570 570
14 c (20,249) (20,249)
14 b (20,050) (20,050)
14 b (20,249) 20,249
2020 12 31 114 676,001 (5,397) (11,107) 20,249 679,860
99 173

HK
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HK
2020 12 31
2020 2019
2 b 7,351 7,371
(936) (829)
16 6
(488) (107)
5,943 6,441
(4,614) (3,543)
(201) (199)
(236) (42)
1
(5,050) (3,784)
2 ¢ 973 2,048
2 ¢ (1,250) (1,500)
2 ¢ 10,249 500
2 ¢ (8.267) (330)
2 ¢ ®) Q@)
2 ¢ 291 315
2 ¢ (264) (269)
(2,830) (3,186)
(1,101) (2,424)
(208) 233
266 34
®) &
12 31 22 a 52 266
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2020 2019
22 b 104,678 104,963
(13,329) (11,805)
228 85
(6.949) (1,524)
84,628 91,720
(65,703) (50,452)
(2,862) (2,834)
(3,361) (598)

14

(71,912) (53,884)
22 ¢ 13,856 29,164
22 ¢ (17,800) (21,360)
22 ¢ 145,946 7,120
22 ¢ (117,722) (4,699)
22 ¢ “3) (28)
22 ¢ 4,144 4,486
22 ¢ (3,759) (3,831)
(40,299) (45,369)
(15,678) (34,518)
(2,962) 3,318
3,788 484
(85) a4
12 31 22 a 740 3,788

99 173
HK
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HK
HK HK
2011 2013 23
HK 44
HK
HK HK
HK 2014
HK
HK
HK
HK
HK
2020 12 31 HK
2020 12 31 HK
HK
HK 2020 12 31
HK
HK HK
HK
HK
HK
HK
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o)
VIO

2018
HK

39

2020 2019
10,363 10,694
Q) ®
10,359 10,690
30 49
10,389 10,739
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2020 2019

15 7
101
32 30
148 37
2020

2020 2019
344 343
231 218
170 207
193 182
125 128
1,063 1,078
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2020 2019
1,236 1,283
(250) (261)
(15) 18)
971 1,004
2.9 2019 3.1
10
2020 2019
- 2,817 2,790
- 2 2
196 196
6 7
3,499 3,884
12 16
740 734
125 128
6 5
301,000 2019 314,000
11
2020 2019
452 547
29(b)
116 67
568 614
2020
16.5 2019  16.5
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8.25 16.5 2019
2020 2019

3,169 3,209

523 529

73 88

1) ®

™
568 614
2020
16.5 2019  16.5 2020
8.25
16.5 2019
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12
HK
HK
2020 2019
9
0.12 0.76 - . 0.88 | 0.76
0.07 8.94 - 9.30 18.31 | 17.81
0.07 3.32 - - 3.39 | 3.25
0.07 2.89 0.02 | o0.56 3.54 | 3.45
’ 0.07 4.22 0.02 1.84 6.15 | 6.02
0.07 0.31 - - 0.38 | 0.36
HK
A H - 0.07 - - . 0.07 0.07
0.14 0.05 - . 0.19 | o0.18
0.07 - - . 0.07 | 0.06
- - - . - 0.01
0.07 - - . 0.07 | o0.07
0.07 - - . 0.07 | 0.07
’ 0.09 0.01 - - 0.10 | 0.10
0.07 0.02 - . 0.09 | 0.08
0.14 0.02 - . 0.16 | 0.16
0.07 0.02 - . 0.09 | 0.09
0.16 0.01 - . 0.17 | 0.17
0.07 0.03 - . 0.10 | 0.10
, . 0.06 - . 0.06 | 0.07
. 0.02 - . 0.02 | 0.02
2020 1.49 20.68 0.04 | 11.70 33.91
2019 1.49 19.55 0.04 | 11.82 32.90

HK
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2019 26
2019 26

2019
2019
2020 2019
9.34 8.97
1.26 1.20
3.42 3.60
14.02 13.77
2020 2019
0 - 1,000,000 2 -
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 -
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2 -
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2 3
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 4 6
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 1 -
5,000,001 - 5,500,000 2 2
2020 2019
71 70
2 2
73 72
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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13
HEC HEC
VIO
HEC
HEC
HEC
2013 2009-2018
2018 12 31 2019
HEC 2019 2033 12 31
65
2020 2019

(164) 222
8 14
11 -
14 32
(131) 268

24,767,000 2019 32,379,000 HEC 2020

10,509,000 2020 14,258,000
2020 12 31
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/
/
2019 620 6 22 648
6 (6) - -
222 14 - 236
2019 - - (6) (6)
2019 12 31
2020 848 14 16 878
14 (14) - -
(164) 8 - (156)
2020 - - 43 43
2020 - - (39) (39)
2020 12 31 698 8 20 726
14
2020 2019
2,732 2,327
4,693 5,188
149 (208)
(223) 25
7 11
(488) (107)
(555) (279)
(4,850) (3,585)
(1,121) (1,022)
899 2,629
14. HK
1,931 201
2,830 2,830
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1.1
HK
HK
HK
14.1
c 2020 12 31
HK
2020 2019
HK
15.94 1,408 1,408
2019 15.94
HK
16.09 1,422 1,422
2019 16.09
2,830 2,830
2020 12 31 HK
16.09 2019 16.09 1,422 2019 1,422
HK
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2020 12 31
16.09 2019 16.09 1,422 2019 1,422
2020 12 31 HK
8,836,200,000 2019 8,836,200,000
HK
2020 2019
HK

16.09 1,422 1,778

2019 20.12
15 HK
HK

HK 2,732

2019 2,327 HK
8,836,200,000 2019 8,836,200,000
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16
2019 16,673 | s3,2m gs2 | 7,025 77,701 6,958 | 84,749
3 4 101 48|  a328| 4574 1| 4,575
152 . 1,366 76| (1,594 - _ .
an . (364) (20) - (401) _ (401)
20%82012 3 16,811 4| 54,434 956 9,750 | 81,964 6,950 | 88,923
- 2 94 31| 5,130| 5,257 1| 5,258
1,436 _| 3,804 62| (5,302 - - -
(12) (€)] (447) (25) - (487) - (487)
020 12 31 18,235 3| b57,885| 1,024 9,587 | 86,734| 6,960 | 93,964
2019 2,506 | 9,866 370 S| 12,742 948 | 13,690
) . (220) (19) . (244) - (244)
511 2| 2,047 105 - 2,865 196 | 3,061
20%82012 i 3,012 2| 11,808 456 -| 15,363 1,144 | 16,507
(©) A (307) (25) - (339) - (339)
525 2| 2,260 109 -| 2,89 196 | 3,002
b020 12 31 3,533 1| 13,846 540 | 17,820 1,340| 19,260
020 12 31 14,702 2| 44,039 484 | 9,587 | 68,814| 5,620| 74,434
b019 12 31 13,799 2| 42,541 500 | 9.750 | 66.601| 5.815| 72,416

250 2019
261
77 2019 73
17
2020 2019

12 31 33,623 33,623
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HEC Cou
CoU 16 2019
16
HEC
5.54 2019 5.50
Cou 16
1.0 2019 1.0
2020 11 30
6.74 2019 6.66 CoU
2020 11 30
18
2020 12 31
HK
100
100
2,411,600,000 100
9,004
1,750
100
1,056
400
25
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19
(LNG)
( 10 30
HKLTL )
HKLTL LNG HEC
CAPCO HKLTL
HEC  CAPCO
HKLTL
HKLTL
2020 2019
- 4
231 1
231 5
699 165
(€)) 29
(927) (141)
1
2020 2019
278 42
278 42
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HEC HKLTL  LNG HKLTL
HKLTL
20
2020 2019
430 522
296 297
726 819
158 2019
21
2020 2019
a 470 513
358 414
828 927
26 3 86
120 47
951 1,060
312 2019
2020 2019
451 476
19 30
12 - 7
470 513
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16
2020
2 438 (10) 428
6 9 () 8
0 34 - 34
481 (1) 470
2019
2 502 1) 491
8 12 [€h) 11
0 11 - 11
525 (12) 513
HEC 31(a)
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2020 2019
12 1
- 12
(1) (€D)
12 31 11 12
22
2020 2019
- 263
52 36
- (33)
52 266
- 33
52 299
2020 2019
3,169 3,209
(15) ©)
971 1,004
15 18
10 2,819 2,792
10 196 196
10 125 128
28(a) 170 207
4 -
13(c) (€1)) ®)
98 164
70 57
149 (208)
(385) (194)
7 11
28(a) 3) -
7,351 7,371
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( 28
( 25 b )
C 25
C ) ¢
2020 18,333 | 24,679 2,241 3 (459) - 44,797
973 - - - - - 973
(1,250) - - - - - @.250)
-| 10,249 - - - -| 10,249
- (8.267) - - - -1 .267)
- - - @ - - ®
- - 291 - - - 201
- - (264) - - - (264)
e 1,982 27 3) - - 1,729
- 15 - - - - 15
- (58) - - 67 685 694
- - - 2 - - 2
24 192 - - - - 216
2020 12 31 18,080 | 26,810 2,268 2 (392) 685 | 47,453
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( 28
25 ’5 )
2019 17,755 | 24,210 2,195 - (562) 235 | 43,833
2,048 - - - - - 2,048
(1,500) - - - - -l @,500)
- 500 - - - - 500
- (330) - - - - (330)
- - - @ - - @
- - 315 - - - 315
- - (269) - - - (269)
548 170 46 Q@) - - 762
- 7 - - 103 (235) (125)
- - - 5 - - 5
30 292 - - - - 322
2019 12 31 18,333 | 24,679 2,241 3 (459) | 44,797
23
2020 2019
2,794 2,921
28 b 1 2
26 3 39
2,798 2,962
b 22 18
2,820 2,980
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2020 2019
1,189 1,778
616 270
12 989 873
2,794 2,921
2020 2019
18 38
10 5
(6) (25)
12 31 22 18
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24
HEC
2019 2.3
2020 2019
647 855
(1,823) (2,051)
1,972 2,087
- (244)
12 31 796 647
25
2020 2019
18,080 18,333
(4,184) (113)
13,896 18,220
8,946 6,465
752 727
9,698 7,192
13,534 11,697
3,578 5,790
17,112 17,487
- (5,897)
17,112 11,590
40,706 37,002
2.4 2019 2.55
1.875 2.875 2019 2.875 4.25
1,056 2019 12 31 1,056
3.5 2019 3.5
2020 250
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2020 12 31 400 2019 12 31 650
4.375 2019 4.375 4.8 2022 10 12
18
31(b
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 2019

2,500 15,222

1,298 3,596

36,908 18,184

40,706 37,002

26
2020 2019

- G 24 -

- (628) 230 -
619 0)) 407 (1)

- - 70 -
- (1) 4 )
619 (700) 735 (53)
3 ®) 86 (39)
616 (697) 649 14)
619 (700) 735 (53)
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27
27(b)
MPF MPF
MPF
2000 12 MPF
MPF
27(a)(
2018 1 1
FSA
2020 12 31 19
2011
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2020 2019
3,401 3,459
(3,921) (3,900)
(520) (441)
(887) (809)
367 368
(520) (441)
12
2020 2019
3,459 3,463
59 62
61 69
13 14
- (25) 11
- 214 99
- 20 9
(396) (268)
(©) -
12 31 3,401 3,459
2020 2019
3,900 3,663
69 72
295 371
44 48
13 14
(396) (268)
@ -
12 31 3,921 3,900
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2021 48
2020 2019
59 62
® ®
51 59
2020 2019
33 40
18 19
51 59
2020 2019
403 151
86 252
12 31 489 403
2020 2019
382 365
214 224
610 576
197 173
2,466 2,468
52 94
3,921 3,900
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12 31
2020 2019
1.0% 1.8%
0.4% 1.8%
5.0% 5.0%
2.0% 2.5%
2020 2019
- 0.25 (59) €D
- 0.25 62 60
- 0.25 59 57
- 0.25 (56) G4
- an (72)
- 78 74
2020 2019
- 0.25 (26) (26)
- 0.25 26 26
- 0.25 26 26
2019
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2020 2019
13.2 13.2
6.5 6.2
2020 2019
63 58
1,148,000 2019 1,148,000
28
2020 2019
a 1,121 954
b 1 1
1,122 955
2020
954
170
®
12 31 1,121

HK
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2020 2019
2 2 3 3
2 3

29
2020 2019

452 547
89 30
541 577
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2020 2019
9,597 9,540
2019 9,546 (141) (31) (1) 9,353
27 34 5 1 67
- - 42 78 120
2019 12 31
2020 9,573 (107) 16 58 9,540
136 @4 6 @ 116
- - 14 (81) 67)
- - - 8 8
2020 12 31 9,709 (13D) 36 an 9,597
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
30

HK
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HK
30 30 30 30 y
(b) (c) d) (i) d( )
2019 8 47.472 29 2.295 1.778 51.582
2019
. - - 2,972 . 2,972
- - 1) - . 1)
- - (21) 2,972 - 2,951
¢ uEe ) - - - - @78 | @78
C uw ) . _ - (1,408) . (1,408)
¢ uw ) - - - (1,422) 1,422 -
ggég 12 3 8 47,472 8 2,437 1,422 51,347
2020
. - - 3,161 - 3,161
- - (335) - - (335)
- - (335) 3,161 - 2,826
( Y@ ) - - - - (1,422) (1,422)
C uw ) . _ - (1,408) - (1,408)
¢ uw . - - 1,422) 1,422 .
2020 12 31 8 47,472 @20 2,768 1,422 51,343
HK
16.09 2019 16.09 1,422 2019 1,422
HK
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HK
2020
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
2019
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100

34 HK
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(@(

2019 136 ) 131
O] €H) ®)

(51) - (51)

6 - 6

(49) €Y (50)

- ® ®)

ggég 12 3 87 12 75
(869) 704 (165)

a4 @D 17

81 (112) (3D

(744) 565 179)

- 25) 25)

2020 12 31 657 (528) (129)
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2019 95 (280) (185)
h (16) 616 600
_ - (63) (63)
h - @n @n
h - 8 8
3 87 (84)
2019 12 31
2020 82 167 249
- (120) (487) (607)
_ - (63) (63)
) - ® ®
h - 65 65
20 92 112
2020 12 31 18) (232) (250)

HK HK
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2020 2019
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 2019
44,890 43,012
- - 33
(52) (299)
44,838 42,746
47,743 48,472
44,838 42,746
92,581 91,218
48% 47%
31
HEC
2020 12 31 293
2019 12 31 353 21
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30
21
1SDA
2020 2019
31(H) (i) - - - 94 @) 93
31(H) (i) - - - 230 (28) 202
31(F) (i) 619 (459) 160 411 (23) 388
619 (459) 160 735 (52) 683
31(F) (i) 57 (38) 19 - - -
31(F) (i) 628 o7) 221 - - -
31(H) (i) 15 14 1 53 (52) 1
700 (459) 241 53 (52) 1
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2020 12 31
5,150 2019 12 31 5,950
2020
12 31
4,930 3,224 3,385 48,245 59,784 45,035
2,628 - - - 2,628 2,628
7,558 3,224 3,385 48,245 62,412 47,663
121 128 386 1mn 806 637
50
202 201 605 235 1,243
(198) (198) (592) (230) (1,218)
(615)
2,886 55 30 16,750 19,721
(2,902) (55) @8 | @7.523) | (20,508)
11
202 156 38 - 396
(202) (148) (35) - (385)
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2019
12 31

7,194 15,913 4,773 31,945 59,825 43,157
33 - - - 33 33
2,744 - - - 2,744 2,744
9,971 15,913 4,773 31,945 62,602 45,934
122) (80) 237) 178) (613) (236)
(98)

373 170 511 254 1,308

417) (168) (505) (252) (1,342)
(356)

2,486 68 240 16,750 19,544

(2,437) (63) 16) | (@17,523) |  (20,239)
@

767 - - - 767

(769) - - - (769)

(@
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2020 2019
- - 2.61 263
2.67 (36,956) 3.02 (30,224)
(36,956) (29,961)
0.03 52 0.03 36
0.90 (7,934) 3.19 (12,788)
- - - 5.00 (33)
* (2,268) * (2,241)
(10, 150) (15,026)
*0.01
2020 12 31
84 2019 12 31 128
570 2019 12 31 522

2019
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100%
@
2020
) (3,260)
(2,209) -
(2,283) (3,260)
1,279 2,966
950 -
(54) (29%)

348/530



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019

- 13
(89) (1,834)

(2,243) -
(2,332) (1,821)

827 1,566

1,500 -
) (255)

10
2020 2019
19 21 9 87
10
2019
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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2020
/

(€))

2021 -

2035 2.15% (19,768 - -| (685) -1 (869) 869 -
@

2021 -

2032 10,383 | 224 3 @ @| 285 (285) -
(€))

2027 -

2032 9,338 | 392 - - - 419 (419) -
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2019
/

@

2020 -

2029 2.18% | 18,772 | 242 12 - - 4) 4 -
@

2020 -

2032 14,004 | 272 -1 @ @ 5 ) -
(€))

2027 -

2032 5,540 | 135 - - - (6) 6 -
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2020

/
2021 -
2023 396 - - (10) o v 11 -

2020
(384) 11
2019

/
2020 3.10% | 4,272 - 70 - - 7 6 -
2020 -
2024 767 - 4 - 0 2 0 -
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2019
(4,341) 70)
@71) 0}
2020 2019
USD HKD 7.4985 7.4965
JPY HKD 0.0775 0.0759
GBP HKD 10.0986 -
EUR HKD 9.4779 9.2545
JPY USD 104.0172 102.2087
13
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2020 2019
31(a) - 94
31(a) - 230
31(a) 619 411
619 735

31(a) 57 -
31(a) 628 -
31(a) 15 53
- 4,341

700 4,394

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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32
12 31
2020 2019
7,140 5,465
14,303 18,412
2020 12 31 343
2019 29
2020 12 31
1,170 2019 1,170
33
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
34
PAH
PAH
41 2019 41
PAH
2020 12 31 PAH 2019
HKLTL 2020 12 31 19
HKLTL

2019 243,000
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HEC CAPCO HKLTL LNG HEC
CAPCO LNG HKLTL 2020
HKLTL HEC 2019

34 14A
14A
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3B HK
2020 2019
60,338 60,041
- 8
60,338 60,049
41
1
42
(7)) (25)
(2,698) -
,712) (25)
(2,670) (19)
57,668 60,030
(5,998) (8,683)
(327) -
(6.325) (8.683)
51,343 51,347
30(a)
8 8
51,335 51,339
51,343 51,347
2021 16
36

2020 12 31 PAH
33.37 21.00 19.90
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38 2020 12 31
2020 12 31

39
16 2021

16 2022
2018 -2020 2022
2023

2023

2020 —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

v [he year ended 31 Docember 2020
(Exprassad in Hong Kohg dollars)
2020 2019
Mate 5 million 5 malkion
Revenue 5 10,389 10,732
Direel costs (5,334} 15,485)
5,055 5,254
Oiher revenue and oiher nel incoms T 148 a7
Other operaling costa 8 {1,063) {1,078)
Operating profit 4140 4,213
Finance costs @ {Iﬂ} {1,004}
Profit before taxation 10 3169 3200
Income tax: 11
Current (452) (547}
Dafemed (116) (5T}
(56:8) (G14)
Profit after taxation 2,601 2,505
Seheme ol Controliansfads 134} 131 (268}
Prafit for the year atiributable to the holders of
Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company 2,732 2,327
Earnings per Share Stapled Unit/share of the Comp any
Basiz and diluted 15 30,92 cents 26.33 cenis

The nales on pages 99 to 173 form part of these consodated financial statements,
As explained in nate 2, the consolidated fnancial stalamends of the Trust and the consalidated financial stalements of the

Company are présanied together.

Datails of distnbutions/devidends payable ko holders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company afinbautable o the profit for

the year are et out in note 14,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

Far tha year ended 31 Decambar 2620

TExpre

ed im Hompg Kong di

2020 2019
% million 5 million
Prafit for the year attributable to the holders of Share Stapled Units/
shares of the Company 2,732 237
Other comprehengive income for the year, after tax and
reclassification adjustments
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Defined benefit relirement schemes:

Remeaswremani of nei defined benefil asselkabilty 86 252
Net defemed lax charged o other comprehensive income (14) (42}
T2 210
Cash flow hadges:
Effective porton of changes in fawr value of hedging instruments
recogresed duing the year 8 16
Cost of hedging - changas in tair value (6) 27}
Mat doferrad tax credded bo olher comprabansive incama - 2
. [1:]]
T4 201
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges:
Eftective portion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments
recagrised during the year (173) [21}
Reclassificaton adjustments foramaunis fransferred to profitorloss 1T 51}
Cost of hedging - changes in fair value (B0T) 00
Cost of hedging — reclassified fo profl or loss [B3) [63}
Met defermed tax croditedi{charged) 1o ather comprehensive mcome 8| (80}
(745) 385
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable
to the halders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company 2,061 2813

The nates on pagee 59 to 173 form part of these consolidated financial statemants.
As explained in note 2, the conschdated financial statemants of the Trust and the consolidated financial statamants of the
Campany are presenied jogether
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

Al 31 Deoembar 20020

2020 2019
PMabe 5 millicn 5 milion
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipmaent 68,814 BE. 801
Imterests in keasahold Band held for own use 5,620 5815
16 T4 434 F2.4186
Goodwill 17 33,623 33823
Interest in & joint yenlune 18 278 42
Derivative financial instruments 26 G186 549
Employes relirement beneft scheme msols e} Ba7 Bl
108,838 107,539
Current assats
Invaniones 20 T26 B19
Trade and ather receivables 21 951 1,060
Bank deposiis and cash Z2ia) 200
1,729 2178
Current liabilities
Trade and other payabias and contract liabikties 23 {2,820) 12,9800
Fissl Clause Recavery Account 24 (T986) (647}
Current porton of bank ioans and other inleresi-bearing bomowings 25 (4, 184) {6.010)
Bank ewerdrafls — unsacured - 33}
Current tax payable 2a)  [541) 1577}
[8,341) (10,247)
Mot current liabilities (6,612) {8,069)
Total assels less currant labilities 103,226 60,470
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans and other iferest-beanng borowings 25 (40, T08) {37,002}
Derivative financial instrumenis 26 (687T) (14}
Customers' deposis {2,268) {2,241)
Dafermed tax Eabidties Xib) (9,507) 8,5400)
Employes relrement benefl scheme liabilities 27(a) (36T) {368}
Cther non-cument liebilities 28 (1.422) (955)
(54,75T) (50,1200
Scheme of Control Fund and Resenve 13(e) (T2E) (BT8)
Net assets AT, 743 A8.A4T2
Capital and reserves
Share capilal b} B B
Rizrssryes. 47,735 A8 464
Toftal aquity AT, T43 48,472

Approved and authonsed for issue by Be Boards on 18 March 2021

Wan Chi Tin Chan Lol Shun
Drrecior Directar

The notes on pages 89 to 173 form part of thesa consoldated financial statemants.
As sxplained in note 2, the consofidaled fmancizl statements of the Trest and the consolidated fnancial statements of the
Company are presenied (ogether
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

F of tha year endoed 31 Decambar 2020
(Expresised in Hompg Kang dolars |
Attributable to holders af
Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company
Proposed/
declared
Share Share Hedging Revenue  distribirtion
capital premium  resenve (nole resarve dividend Tetal
5 milian [male 300b))  {nols 300e)) SHAN)  gnote 30K incta 14)
Balance &t 1 January 2018 8 4T 472 (54) (4E1} 1,778 48,743
Changes n aquily for 2019
Profit for the yaar - - . 22T . 2321
Other comprehensive ncome - - are 210 - 558
Tolal comprebensive income - - 1] 2537 - 2813
Amcunts transherred 1o the inial camying
amaount of hadged items, net of fax - - 2 - - 2
Final dsiribution/second interim chadend
i respect of prewious year approved and
peaid {see mote 14{ci) - - - - {1,778y (1778}
Inderim dstibutionfimst inberm dividend
paid jes note 14(b)) - - - 11,408] - {1,408}
Proposed fnal destriution'secand interim
dendend [ea nole 14(B)) - - - {1.420) 1432 -
Balance at 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020 B 47472 324 [754) 4R 48,472
Changes in equity for 2020:
Prafit for the year - - = 2.752 - PR
Ovhar comprehansive incoma - - (T43) T2 - (E71)
Total comprehensiva incomsa - - (743} 3804 - 2,081
Amounts iransfemed bo the initial carmying
amount of hedged items, net of ax - - 40 - - 40
Final distnbutcn'sacond infenm diidend
in respoc] of prinvious yoar approved and
paid (52 nole 14(c]) i i = = (1.422) 11,422}
Imtesim distribution/firsd interim dividand
paid (se note 14b]) - - - 11.408) - {1,408)
Prapcssd final disribubon'secand inberim
Ohvicend {mog: ke 14(5) o ! o Az M. =
Balance at 31 December 2020 L] 4T AT2 {378} (T80 1422 47,743

The notes on pages 50 to 173 form part of these consolidated financial statemants.
As explained in note 2, the consclidated financial statements of the Trust and the consclidated financial statements of the
Company are presented ingether.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
Mate % million 5 million
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 23b) T.351 7371
Intersst paid (B36) (829}
Interestracened 16 L]
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (488) 1107)
Net cash generated from operating activities 5943 6,441
Investing activities
Payment fos the purchase of property, plant and equipment
and capital stock [#,614) {3.543)
Capitaised interes! pald {201) (168)
Wew loan be a join! vesure (238) 42
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equspmaent 1 -
Net cash used in investing activities (5,050) {3.784)
Financing activities
Praceeds: from bank loans 2Hc) a73 2048
Repayment of bank loans 2ie) [1.250) {1,500)
lssuance of mediumiarmnotes 23] 10,249 500
Redemgption ol medium larm noles 2He) (B8,267) (330}
Fayment of lease liabiliies 2] 2 12
New cusiomers’ depoails 2He) 201 35
Repayment of customers’ deposits 23c) {264) (268}
Distbutioraidividends paid [2.830) {3.186)
Met eash used in financing activities {1.101) {2.424)
Net (decreasepincrease in cash and cash eguivalents (208) 23
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 266 M
Effect of foreign exchange rale changes 8} it}
Cashand cash equivalents at 31 December 22 52 266

The notes on pages 89 to 173 form part of thesa consoldated financial statemants.
As sxplained in note 2, the consofidaled fmancizl statements of the Trest and the consolidated fnancial statements of the
Company are presenled together

364/530



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
OooOooooOooooooooooood

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

{Expressed i Hong Kong dollons unless cthanyine indcsled
1. General information

HE Electric Investments Limited (tha “Company’) was incorporated in the Cayman Iskands on 23 September 2013 as an
exempied company with lmited lisbility under the Companies Law 2011 (as consclidated and revised) of the Cayman
Isfangs. Tha Company has eslablished a prncipal place of business in Hang Kong at Hongkang Electric Conbra, 44 Kennady
Road. Hong Kong. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

On 1 January 2014, HK Electric Investments (the “Trust’) was constitubed as a trust by a Hong Kong law governed Trust
Deed enlered inlo between HE Electric Investmenls Manager Limited {the “Trustes-Manage:”, in ds copacity asthe
trustes-manager of the Trusl)and e Company. The scope of activity of the Tiust es provided in the Trust Deed islimited
e investing in the Company

The Share Slapled Units struclure comprises (1) unl in he Trust; (2) @ beneScial infienest in a specficaly denliied
ordinaery share in the Company which is linked to the unit and held by Trustee-Manager as legal owner in ds capacsy as
Irustee-msnager of the Trust and (3) a specifically ientified praference ehars in the Company which s "stapled” 1o the
unit. The Share Stapied Units are jointly sssued by the Trust and the Comgpany and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”],

2, Basisofpresentation

Pursuani 1o the Trust Deed, the Trust and the Company are each requred o prepare thes own sels of financial stalements
on a consolidaled basis. The consclidaled financial stalements of the Trust for the year ended 31 December 2020 comprise
the consalidated financial statemants of the Trust, tha Company and fs subsidianas (tagether the *Trust Greup™) and

1w Tl Geoup's inberest in @ joant venture, The consolidated financial statenwents of the Company for he yee ended

31 December 2020 compnse the consoidaled financial stalements of the Company and its subsitiaries (together the
“Group”) and the Group's inferes? in & joind vanture,

The Trust contrals Ihe Company and the sole actvily of the Trust curing the year ended 31 December 2020 was invesling
in tha Company. Therefora, the consolidated resulis and financial position thal would be presented in the consolidaled
financial sistements of the Trust are icentical to the congolidated results and financial posibion of the Compary with the
only differences being disclosures of share capial of Ihe Company. The Direclors of the Trusiee-Manager and Dinectors of
the Company believe that i is clearer jo present the consolidated financial stalements of te Trust and of the Company
together. The consolidated finoncial statements of the Trust and the consolidated financinl stalements of the Company ara
presented fogether lo the exient they are identical and are hereinafier referred s the “consolideted financial statements of
he Trusl and of the Company™,

The consolidated statement of prof o loss, consolidated staternent of comprehensive income, consolidabed statement of
financial position, consolidated stalemant of changes in equity, consolidated cash Bow stalement, significant accounting
plicsae and the ralaled axplanatery miermation are comman o ihe Trusl and the Company. Information specific to the
Company are disclosad separately in the relevant explanalony informatbon in notes o the conscldabed financial statemends.

The Trusi Group and the Group are refermed as the "Groups™.
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ImveEstnenss Annaal Repoan 20020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

3.

(a)

(b)

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

Thase financal stalements have been prapared in accordance wilh all applicable Hang Kong Finaneial Reparting
Standards ("HKFRSs7), which is a collectve lerm thal inchudes all apphcable individual Hong Kong Financial Reportng
Standarms, Hong Kong Accounting Standasds (*HKASS") and Interpretations |sswved by the Hong Kong Institule of
Cartifiod Public Accountants ("HKICPA”), accounting principles ganefally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosura
requiremants of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Thess financial stalements afsa comply with the applicable
disciogure provisions of the Rules Gaverning the Listing of Securibes on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kang Limiled,
Significant accounting policies adophed by the Groups are set oul below.

The HKICPA has lssued a number of amendments to the Concoplus! Framework for Financial Repovting 2018 and
HKFRSs that are frsi eflectve or available Tor early adoplion for ihe curren? accounling period of the Groups. Notbe 4
prowides informabion on any changes in accounting polickes resulting from initial application of thase developmants
to M extent that they are rebevant bo the Groups for the cument ard prior scccunting pencds reflecled in these
financial statamants

Basis of preparation of the financial statemenis

Thia maasurement basss ueed in the preparation of the financial statemeants s the histoncal cost bass excepl as
eaplained in the sccounting polces sed oull below,

Tha praparatien of financial slalements in conformity with HKFRSs nequites managemant 1o make judgements,
astmaies and assumptions that afect the applcation of policies and reporied amounts of assets, bablties, income
and expenses. The estimales and associated assumplions are based on historical expenence and various oiher faclors
that are believad to be reasonable under the circumsiances, the results of which foem the bass of making the
judpaments about carmying values of assets and liabikties that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual
resulis may difler from ihese estimates_

Thia estimates and underiymyg assumpbons are roviewed on an ongoing basts. Revisions 1o accounting estimatas are
recognised in five pediod in which the estimele is revesed I the revision affects only that period, or n the period of the
ravision and fulure periods if the revesion affects both curtent and fulurne petiods

Judgements made by management n the applicabon of HEFRSs that have signficant effect on the fnancial
stalemenis and major sources of estimation uncertanty are discussad n nobe 37
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Flnanclal Statements 101

Subsidiaries

Subsidisries are enlities over which the Groups have contrel. The Groups contral an entity when the Groups are
exposad, or have the nghts, lo vanable relums from thair involvement with the enhity and hawve the abidy 1o affect
these retums Ehrough Ehelr power over the enbly. \When assessing whelher the Groups have power, only substantive
rghits (held by the Groups o olher parties) are considered.

Imvestrmants in subsidiaries ane consclidated inlo the consclidated financial statemanis from the date that contral
commences until the date that conbrol ceases. Infra-group balances, fransactions and cash flows and any urdealised
prafits ansng fom inra-group ransaclions are elminated in full in prepanng the consolidated fnancial slalements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-greup transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
1o the exlend that thare & no avidence of Empairment

Changes in the Groups’ interests in a subsidiary that do not resull in a loss of control are accounisd far as equity
transactions, whentby adjustimeonts are made lo the amounts of controlling and non-conbroBing intorests within
consolidated equily 1o reflect the change in refative interests, bul no adjusiments are made 1o goodwill and no gain
o loss |5 recognised

VWhan the Groups ose control of a subsidiary, & is accounied for as a disposal of the entine interest in that subsidiary,
with a resuiling gaan of koss being recognised in profit or loss, Any Inferest retained in that former subsidiary al the
dale when control Is lost is recognised al fair valua and this amount = regarded as the Faar value on initial recognition
of a fmancial assel of, when appropriate, the cost on initial recogniion of an investment in & poinl verlure or an
a0l

In Ihe Company’s sislemend of finoncal positon, investimenta in subsdianes are stated al cost less mpairment losses
(seernote 3h)fi}}

Joint venture

A |oin? venture s an arrangement wharely e Groups or the Company and other partes conlraciually agres 1o
shame condrol of the errangemant, and have nghis fo the nel assets of the amangemant.

An invesiment in a joint venlure i accounted for in the consolidated financial stalements under the equity method,
unless i s dassified as heid far eale (or ncluded in a disposal group that & classifed ag hald far eale), Undar tha
equity mathod, the invesiment s insally recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Groups shane of the
acquisiton-gate lair values of ine investee's identifiabie ned assets over the cost of the Investment (d any). The cost
of the investmant includes purchase price, other costs directly afiributable 1o the acquisilion of the immstmant,

and any drect mweaiment info the joint wenture thet forms part of the Groups' equity investment. Thereatfter, the
mvesiment is adjusied for the post acquisition change n the Groups’ share of the Invesiee's nel assets and any
mpairment loss relating to the ineestment (see note 3(hiE)). Any acquistion-date excess over cosl, the Groups' share
of the post-acquisitan, posl-tax results of the invesiee and any impairment losaes for the year are recogniaed in the
consglidated slatemen! of profit or loss, whareas he Groups” share of the post-acquisition posi-lax items of the
mwesiea’s ather comprehensive nooma & recognsed n the consolidated staternant of comprehenarse income
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ImveEstnenss Annaal Repoan 20020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continuad)

(d)

(e}

(U]

Joint venture ([continued)

‘When the Groups’ share of losses exeesds ther inlerast in tha pint venlune, the Groups' mleres & reduced to nl and
recognition of furthes lossas is disconlinued excepl io the extent that the Groups have incurmed legal or constructive
abligatens or made paymends on behalf of the invesiee, For this pufpose, the Groups' inlerest i the carmying amount
of he mvasimant undar the equity mathod, tegather wilh any other lang-1erm inlenesis Ehal in subslance form par
of the Groups' net mwestment in tbe joint venture (after applying the expected credd loss ("ECL") model 1o such
afer lang-1em intenests whire apphicable (see nobe IR

Unreaksed profits and losses resuiting from iransactions babween the Groups and their joint venlune are sliminated 1o
the extent of the Gioups' interest in the invesiee, excepl where unrealised losses provide ewidence of an impasrment
ol the assef ransferrad, in which case they are recognised immedabely in prafil or loss

ITan svvesiment in @ jeinl venture becomes an awesiment n an associale, the relained nberest is nod remeasuned,
Inslead, the imvestment continues 1o ba accounted for under the equity mathod In &l other cases, when the Groups
ceass 1o have joint conltrol over a joint venture, il is accounted for as a disposal of the enbra nterest in 1ha! nvestee.
with a resulting gamn o loss being recognised in profil or loss. Any interest reladned in that former invesiee at the
daie when joint conlrol is lost (s recognised at fair value and thvs amouni is reganded as the faw value on initial
recognition of a financial assel

Goodwill

Gooedwill represents the excess of:

{iy e aggregate of the fair velue of the consideration transfemed; over

(i} e net fair value of the acquree’s idantifiable assats and liabiliies measured as at the acquisiton date.

‘Whan (i) is greater than (i), then thés excess is recognised immedsataly in peof or loss as @ gain on a bargamn
purchass.

Goodwill i slated at cost less sccumuiated mpainment losses. Goodwill ansing on a business combination s allocaed
o each cash-generabng unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that = expecied lo benafid from the synergies of
tha combinaton and = tested annually lor impairment (s2e nate ().

Property, plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land and depreciation and amontisation

(il Propery, plan and equipmand ncluding nght-ol-use assets ansing from leases over leasehald propartas whora
tha Groups are nol registared owner of the propery interes], olher than assets under consbruction, are stabed
af cosl less actumulated depreciation (e note 300 nd Impaimment losses (sed naté I

{i}  Assets under constructan are stated at cosl leas impairment losses (see note 3(hj(i}), and are not depreciated,

Assats under construction are transferred lo appropriaie ciass of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use,
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Flnanclal Statements 103

(i)} The cost of salf-constructed ilerms of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
Ihe inflial estimale, where relevant, of the cosls of dismanlling and remaving he dems and restering the sibs
on which they are localed and an appropriate proportson of produchion overhesds and bormowing costs (see
noile 3v))

(W) Subsequent expendiure to repiace o component of an Aem of propedy, plant and equipment that is
accounted for separalely, of ko improve s operational performance s incleded in the iem's canmying amount
or recopnsed &s a separale dem as appropnate when it = probable that fubure economic benefils in excess of
tha crginaily assessod standard of parformance of the exsling assol will Row ta the Groups and the cost of the
Iterm can be measwed reliably. All other subsequent expanditure & recognised as an expense in the penod In
which Il ks incurred.

{v) Gans or losses ansing from Ehe relirement or disposal of an dem of property, plant and equpment ans
delemmined as the difference between ihe net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the Bem and are
recogniged in prefit of lass on the dale of retrerment or disposal,

{¥l) Leasenold land held for own use |s staled al cost less accumulaled amotisalion (see note 3(fHvi)) and
Impasmant lossas (sea nabe 30 (i)

{vii) The cost of acquinng inberests in keasehold land is amortised on a siraighi-Ene basis over the shorlar of the
eatmated usaful ives of the lesses assels and the unespired lease femi

{win) Depreciation is calculaled to wrile off the cost of flems of property, plant and squipment less their estimated
residual valle, if any, wsing the straighl-line mathod ower thair estimated useful lves as follows:

Years
Cabia funnale 100
Buidings &0
Ash lagoon and gas pipaline B0
Transmission and disiribuion equipment, ovarbead ines and cables B0
Generating plant and machinery 35
Gas turbines and gas turbing combined cydle ]
Mechanical melers 30
Phatavaltaic systems 25
‘Wind turbinas 20
Elsctronic matars, mecrowave and oplical fibre equspment and
trunk radio systems 15
Fumitune and fixlunes, sundry piant nd equipment 10
Computers Sto 10
Motor vehiches and marine craft Stof
‘Wiorkshop tools and office equipment 5
Properties leased fof own usa Sharter of the unixpired lem

of lease and the propertes’
eslimated usedul e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expressed in Hang Kong dollars wnless of g (sl ed)

3. Significant accounting policies (continuad)

(f) Property, plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land and depreciation and amortisation
[continued)

kmmiovable assets are amorised on a siraight-line basis over the unexpired lease terms of the tand an which
the immigwable 2ssets are situated If the unexpired lease 1erms of the lend are shorer than the estimated useful
Inves of tha immavable assols.

Whene parts of an dem of properly. plant and equipmeni have difienent useful lives, the cost of the property,
plant and equipment |s aliocated on a reasonable bass between the parts and sach part is depreciated
separabely. Both the useful Be of an asse! and its residual value, if any, aee raviewed annualy,

{g) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Groups assess whather the condract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or confains,
& leass il the eonfracl eonveys the right 1o contrel the use of an identified assst for a periad ol time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed whesa the customar has both the right 1o direct the use of the identified asset and
1o oblzin substantialy sl of the economic benefits from Ihal use,

Al the lease commencamant date, the Groupe recogniss a nght-of-use asset and a leass liability, except for
short-term leases (hal have a kease term of 12 menths or less and leases of low-vahie assets, When the Groups enfer
inio & ksase in respect of a low-value assel, the Groups decide whether to cepitaliss the bease on a lease-by.lease
basis. The lease payments associaled with thosa leases whach are nod capialsed are recognised as an expenss on a
sysbernabc basis over the leass term.

‘Where |he lease is capitalised, tha lease ligbdity is nitially recogresed a2 the presen] value of the lease payments
payable over the lease lerm, discounied using the interest rale implc in the lease or, if that rale cannol be readily
detarmined, using a relevant incremental barrowing rate. After inktial recognition, the |ease liabiity is measured at
amarfised cosl and nferesl sxpenge jo caloulated vsing the afective interest method

The right-of-use assel recognised when a lease is copilalised s mitsally measured a1 cosd, which comprises the

iniial amount of the isasa lisbility ples any lease payments made 3l or bafore the commancement date, and any
initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the nght-of-use assel also mchudes an estimale of costs o
dismaniie and remove the underlying assef or 1o resione the underlying assel or the site on which it is located,
discounted 1o hair pregent value, less any leass incenlives received, The night-al-use asset i subseguently stated a1
o8l less accumulated capreciation and impairment losses (sae notes (1) and (ki)

Ths ksase labdity s rereasured when thens s a chande in fulune ledse paymants arsing from b change i an ndex
or rate, or there i a change in the Groups' estimate of the amount expected lo be payable under a residual value
guarantes, o there is o change arising from the neassesament of whelher the Groups will be reasonably cerinn

%o exercise a purchase, exlension or larmination opbon. When the leasa liabilily 5 remeasured in this way, a
cofrisponding adjusimeant s made to the camying amount of the nght-al-use assel, of & recorded in probE o loks IF
the camying amoint of the nght-ol-use assel has been reduced fo 2ero,
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The lease kability is also remeasured when there s a change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease
that i& nat ongsally provided for in the lease contract that is not accounted for & & separals leass, In this case the
leasa liabdity is remeasured based on the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effectwve date of the modification,

The current portion of lang-jerm lease Habilihes is delermaned as the present value of contraciual payments that are
due bo be seflled wilhin 12 months after the repoding period

Credit losses andimpairment of assets

(i} Creditlosses imomlinancial instrumants
The Groups recognise @ loss aPowance for ECLs on the financial assets measured al amorlised cost (ncluding
cash and cash equevalents and trade and other receivables) Financial mssefs measwed ab fair vale, ncluding
derivalve financial assats. are nal subject to the ECL assessment
Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are & probetslity-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credil losses ere measured as ihe present value of all
expecied cash sharfalls (i @ the dfferenca batwean the cash flows dus io the Groups n accardance wilh the
contract and the cash flows that the Groupe expect to recaive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using e follwing escount rates where the effect of discounting
Is matemal:

- Irnce and clher receivables and fxed rate financial assats effectve imlares! rate determined al infliy
recognition or an approxmation thereaof,

- variaale rale financial assets: cument effectve inferest rate.

Thi maximuen penod considered when eatimating ECLs is the maxmum contrachual pericd over which the
Groups are exposed 10 oedil risk,

In measuring ECLe, the Groups take nto sccound ressonable and suppertable information hat = availabls

without undue cosi or efforl. This ncludes infermation about pasi events, current conditions and forecasts of
futura econamic condiions,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continuad)

(h) Creditlosses andimpairment of assets (continued)
(i} Credillossesfromfinancialinstruments [confinuad)

ECLs are measurad on enhesr of the lallowing bases

= 12-manth ECLs these are lossesthal are expected lo resull from possibie default events within the
12 months alter the reporting dale, snd

= lfetime ECLs: these ane leases that are expected bo meult fram all possible detaull events over the
expecied kves of the tems to which the ECL medel applies.

Loss allowances fof trade recervables are abways measured ol an amoun! equal lo fetime ECLs. ECLS on these
fnancil Ase Ak sabmalsd SAg & HROVIah Malri bassd on 1his Groups’ ekloncal oredd o8 axpansnos,
atpusted for factors that ane specic to the deblors and an assessmant of both the curment and forecas! general
economic condibans at the reparting date.

For all gther financial instruments, e Groups recogniss a loss alowance equal o 12-month ECLS uniess here
has been a sgnificant inerease in credil sk of the financal inslrument since indlal recegnibon, in which case
the loss alowance & measured al an amount equal fo likelime ECLs.

Significant increases in crodit risk

Inassessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significanity since inital recognition,
the Groups compare the risk of default occurring on the financial instrumen! assessed at the reporiing date
wilh that assessed atihe date of miial recognition. In makmg thes reassessment, the Groups considerthat a
dafault evenl occurs when (i) the debior is uniikely io pay fs credit obiigations o the Groups in full, without
recourse by the Groups fo actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the receivebles are 90 days past
due and the deblor does not response (o the Groups' collecbon aclivities as histoncal expenence indicates thal
receivablas that meet those crieria are paﬂmlh- nolrecoverable. The Groups consider both quanlhathnm
qualitative information that is reasanable and supporiable, including histoncal expenience and forsard-looking
Infgrmation that is available without undue costor affort

In particular, the following information is aken mio accounl when assassing whether credil risk has nceased
significantly smce initial recognition:

- Tailure 1o make paymenis of prncipal or inberest on their confractually due dates,

- an actual of expected significant deledoration in a financial instrument’s extamal or internal cradit rating
(davailabla);
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= an actual of expecied significant daterioration in the operaling resulls of the debbas, and

- exiskng or forecast changes in the lechnolegecal market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debior’s ability 1o meet s obligation fo the Groups,

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significan! mcrease m credit risk s
performed on either an individual basis or a collactive basis. When the assessmenl is pecformed on a collective
basis, the financial mstrumants are grouped based on shared credil risk charactenstics, such as past due status
and credd nisk ralings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date o reflect changes in the financal mstrument s credd nsk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amournt is recognised a8 an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Groups recognise an impairment gain or loss for all fmancial instruments with a comesponding adjustment
ta thair camying amount through a koss allowance account,

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance wilh note 3(riil) i cafcuated based on the gross caming amount of
the fimancial asset uniess the financal assel § credi-mpaired, in which case inferes! income is calculated based
on he amonised cost (Le, the gross carrying amount |ess ioss allvwancs] of the financial asse

Al each reporting date, the Groups assess whether a financia assel is creds-mpaired. A fnancial asset 5
undl#npa.imd wiekn ohe of mone svenls hal have a detnmental |W“t on (he esbmaled fulune cash flows af
tha financisl sseet have occurred

Evidence iha! a financial asset is credit-ampaired includes the following observable evenis

- significant financial difficulties of the deblor,

= & breach of contract, such as a defaull of past due event;

- it bacoming probabla that the borrowar will enler inte bankruptey or other fnancial recrganisaton; o

- significant changes in the lechnological, markel, econamic or legal environmeni thel have an adverse
effect on the deblor

Write-off policy

Tha geross carrying amount of a financial assel s wiitlen off {elther partzally or in full) io the extenl that there s
no realistie prospect of recovery, This & genarally the case whan the Gioups detenmana that Be deblor dods nol
have assels or sowrces af income thal could genarate sufficient cash flows o repay the amounts subject 1o the

write-off

Subsequant recovenss of an assel thal was previousty written of are recognised as a revessal of impairment in
profit or less in the penod in which the recovery occurs,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continuad)

{h) Credit losses and impairment of assels (continued)
(i} Impairmant of ather non-current assals

Internal and extemal sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
Indszations that the fallowng assels may be mpaired or, exeepl in the case of goodwil, an impoirmen! loss
previously recognised no longer exisks or may have decreased.

- property, plant and equipment, mchuding right-of-use assels and interests in leasahold land;
= poodwill, and
- invastments in subsidiarses and joint ventures in the Company™s slatament of financial positon.

¥ any such indicabon exisis, the ssset's recoverable amount is esSmated. In addibon, for goodwall, the
recoverable amaunt s eslimated annually whether ar nol thene = any indication of mpairman,

- Caleulalion ofrecoverable amoum

The recoverable amount of an assel s the grealer of its fair vaiue less cosls of disposal and value in use,
In agsessing value n usae_ the astimated fulure cash flows are discounted fo thar present value using a

pre-tax discount rate thal reflects currenl marke! assessments of the trme value of money and the risks
speciic o the assel. Whene an assel dos nol generabe cash mfows langely independent of those from
oiher assels, the recoveraiie amound is determined for the smabkest group of assels thal peneraies cash
infiows independentlty (|8 a cash-genaraling unit)

= Recogniton of impairment losses

Anmpairmant logs i recognised in profit of loss if the canrying amaunt of an assel, of the
cash-generatng unit io which i belongs. exceeds (s recoverable amount. impairment losses recognisad
in respec of cash-penerating unils ane allocated firsl bo reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated o the cash-gonerating unil (or group of unils) and then. lo reduce the camying amount of the
oiher assels in the unit (of group of units) on & pro-fata bass, excepd that the camying value of an asset
will net ba redwced balow its individual fair value less cosls of dispasal (if measurable), or value in use {if
daterminabla).

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of essets olher than goodwill, an impainment loss is reversed d there has been a lfavourable
change in the esimates used [0 deleming the recoverable amaunt. An impairment 1058 in respect of
goodwill is nol reversad.
A revensal of an impairment loss is bmited [0 the asset’s camying amouni that would have been

detarmined had no impairmant lass baen recognised in pror years Reversals of impairment losses are
credited io profit of loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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(EH}  Interim financial reporting and impalnment

Under the Rules Governing the Lisling of Securtieson The Steck Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Groups
are required 1o prepare an mianm financial report in compliance with HKAS 34 Intenm fnancal reporting, in
respect of the firel six months of the inanclal year. At the end of the interm penod, the Groups apply the same
Impairment testing, recognition and reversal criteria as it would atthe end of the financial year | see notes Mhjii)
and 3

Imipairmend kass recopnised in an inberim pericd in respect of goodwill = not reversad in 8 subsaguent peniod.
This is te case even I no loss, of & smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year io which the interim period refates.

(i} Short-term employes benefils

1]

Salaras, annual bonuses, paid annual laave and tha cosl of nor-manelary banefs ane ascruad in the year in which
the associaled services are rendered by employees. Whene payment or saitlemant is deferred and the effect would be
I'I'I.BIEﬂl]. Ihese amounts are stalsd lTiHBI’F‘E‘B-El'ﬂ valies

Retirement scheme obligations

Cefined benefit retirement scheme obligations

The Growpa” nel cbligason in respect of defined benefit retirement schemes is caleulated separately for each
scheme by eslimaling the amount of fdure benaf thal emplayess hove eamed in return far thair senvice n
the curment and prior periods; thet benefit is discounted o determine the present vakee and the fair value of
any scheme assels is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the &nd of the repoding pened on Hong Kong
Spedial Administrative Region Govemment Exchange Fund Mates that have maturity dates approximating tha
terms of the Groups' cbligations, The calculation s parformed by a qualified aciuary using the “Propacted Unit
Credt Method"

Where the calkcuation of the Groups” net obligation results in a negatiee amount. the asset recognised is limfed
to the present value of any future refunds from or reductions in fulure contributions 1o the defined benefit
reliremant schama

Remeasurement, comprising actuaral gains and losses, 1he effecl of the changes 1o the asset celing (if
applicable ) and the relurn on plan assets {exciuding Inlerest), is reflecied immediately in the consoldated
sialement of financial postion with a charge or credil recognised in other comphehensive noome in the pericd
In which they cccur, Remeasurement recognised in olher comprehensive income is reflecied immedsately in the
rsvisnas resene and will nol be reclassifed to profd or loas.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1]

(k)

m

(m)

Retirement scheme obligations [continued)
(I} Defined bensfit retirement scheme obligations (continued)

The Groups detarmine the nel inlerest expenss o income 1or the panod on the nat defined benedit kabddy
arasssl by applying the diseount rate usad to measure Bhe defined benaht obbgation at the beginning of the
annual period to the nel defined benefit iakdity or asset, taking imo sccount any changes in the net defined
fiabllittes or assels during the year a5 a resull of contnbutions and benefit payments.

{iiy  Contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes

Chigations for coniribulions 1o defined conlribution relirement schames, includng coniributions pavable under
e Hong Kong Mandatery Prowvident Fund Schemes Ordinancs. ane recognised &S an expense in pralt of loss
&8 |meurned

Inventories

Imventories are cadried al the lower of cost and not reaksable value,

Coal, stores, fuel of and nalural gas ane vaiued al cost measured on & weighled average basis.

Coat comiprises all coate of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the invenlonies 1o thair
present locaton and condition. Cost of inveniones recognised as an cxpense includes the writa-off and al losses of

Inwenlanes,

Mel realisable value is the esbimated selling price in the ordinary course of business bess the estimated costs necessany
o make tha sale.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable ks recognisged when the Groups have an unconditional nght 1o receive consideration. A night to receive
consideration is uncenditional if only the passage of tme s requined balore payment of that conslderation is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the efective inherest mathod less allowance for credi losses (see
ot 3L

Interest-bearing bormowings

Interesi-baarng bormewings ara recognised indinlly at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent fo initial
recognition, with fhe exceplion of fivad nterest borrowings thal are designated as hedged items in fair value hedges
{sea nabe Mq)ii)), mterest-bearing borrowings are stated al amortised cosl using the effectve interes! methad.
Intarast axpense s recogrised in accordance with The Groups' accounting polcy for borrowing costs (sea nobe 3{v})

For fixed interest bosrowings 1hat are designaled as hedged items in fair value hedges, subsequant to inital

recognition. the inleresi-bearing borrowings are staled al fair vaiue wilh the fair valee changes thal ame allribulable
to this hedged risk recognised in profit of loss (sea nate Jq)ii.
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A call opton embedded in a host debt mstrument is closely related bo and not sepamted from the host debt
nastrumant Il the oplion's exefcss phee & approximately equal on each exercse date to the amortised cost of the
host debl mstrument.

Trade and other payables

Trade and olher payables are intially recognised at fair value, and subsequently staled at amortised cost unless the
affiect of discounting wauld be immaleral, in which case they are stated a1 cost

Contract liabilities

A controct liabdity = recognsed when the customer pays non-refundable consideration before the Groups recognise
the refated revenue (see nole 3r)). A contract Eabilly would also be recognised if the Groups have an uncondibonal
mghil 1o recave non-refundable consideration balore tha Groups recognise the related revanue in such cases a
comesponding recelvable would also be recognised (ese note 31

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative fmancial instruments ase recognised al fair value. Al the end of each reporting pefied the far valug is
rameasured The gam or less on remeasurement 1o fair value & recopnised mmediately in profit or loss, excegl
whare the dervatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting, n which case recognition of any resullant gain o loss
depends on the nature of tha item being hedged [see nole 3{g))

Hedging

The Groups designete certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the vanabidsy in cash flows associaled with
highly probabie forecast fransactions asising from changes in forsign exchange rtes and variable rate bomowings (cash
flow hadges), or as hadging instruments fo hadge changes in the fair value of 8 recognizad asset or lisbdity (tair value
hedges).

() Falr valus hedges
Changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as fair velue hedges are recognised in
profit or less, along with any changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or linbilities thal ore atinbutable
the hedged risk.

(i} Cash flow hodgas
Whare a dervative financial mstrument is designated as a hedging mstrument in a cash flow hadge, the
effective portion of any gain o lcss on the derivative financiad insirument is recognisad in ather compeehensive

incomee and accumulaled separately in equily in the hedging resence. The neleclive porbon of any gain or loss
18 recognisad immadiately m profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{q) Hedging{continued)

Cashflow hedges [continued)

Farward element of forward foreign currency contracts and foreign currency basis spread of fnanciad
instrumends may be separaled and excluded fram the designated hedging insfruments, I the Groups exchde
the forward element of a forward foreign exchange conlract or the forsign cunency basis spread of a financial
instrumend (the “excluded elements’) from the designation of a hedging nstrument, then the excluded
elaments may be separalsly accountad for as a cost of hedging. The fair value changes of the excludad
elements are recognised in 8 sepatate companant of equity 1o the extent that it relates to the hedped items,

¥ a hedge of a forecast Iransaction subsequenty results in the recogniion of a non-financial assef such
o inventory, the associnbed goin of loss is reclassified from equily and included in the initial cost of the
non-fnancial assat.

For ail olhar hedged forecast ransactons, the amount accumulatad in the hedping reserves is reclaasified from
equily 1o profil or kss in the same penod of pesods duing which le hedged cesh fows alfect proft or loss (such
as when interest expense i racognised)

i & hedge no longer meels the critena for hedge accounfing (including when the hedging instrumen? expies
of s sald, lenvenated o exercsed), then hedge acoounting is dscontinued prospectivaly. ‘When hedge
accounting is discontinuad, but the hedged forecast transackion is shll axpected o occur, the amount that has
besn accumulated in the hedging réserve ramains in equity until the ransaclion sccurs and il is recognesed in
accordance with the above policy. If the hedged fransaction ks no longer expected 1o fake place, the amaunt
that has been accumulaied in the hedging reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss immediately.

(r} Revenue recognition

HI?'!_',I:J:-'IT-E'-IL of earmings under the Schemae of Conirol Agreement

The eamings of the Groups’ major subsidary, HE Eleclric, are regulated by tha HESAR Gowemment (the
‘Govemnmment”) under 8 Scheme of Contral Agreement ("30CA") which provides for a permitted lovel of
eamings based princigally on a retum on HK Electric’s capdal imvestment in edeciricity generation, transmission
and desiribution psseis (the ‘Pemmitied Return'). The SoCA alse provides for pesiornance based incentives:

and penalties which encourage customer senace quality, energy efficiency, demand response reduction and
rendwilbie enengy developmint. The Net Return of HK Eleciric under the SoCA s delemmined by deducting from
tha Permitted Retum interes and excess capacity adjustmants, & any, and adpusting for the abovemeantioned
incemives and penallies. HK Eleclric is required ta submt delailed Develapmen! Plans for approval by the
Government which project the key delerminants of the Mot Ratum fo which HK Electnic will be entilled over the
Development Flan perod

The Government has approved the 2018.2023 Development Plan covenng the penod from 1 January 2019 o
31 Decernber 2023 No furher Government approval Is required during this period unless a nead for signifcant
Basic Tariff increeses, over and above thoss sel out in the Development Plan, & idenbified during the Annual
Tariff Review conducted with the Government under the lerms of the SoCa
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Fusl Clause Recovary Account

Under the SoCA, any difference between the standard cosl of fuel, as agreed with the Governmen, and
the actual costof fusl consumed is transferred (o the Fuel Clause Recovery Account [ “Fuel Cast Account
Adjusimenls®).

Fued Clause Chasges (or Rebates) are charged (or gven) bo customers by adding to (or ceducling from) the Basic
Tariff lo produce a Net Tarilf payakle by customers and are credited (or debsted) to the Fual Clause Recavery
Ascaounl.

The balance on the Fuel Clause Recavery Account st the end of a financial year represents ihe difference
between Fuel Claise Charges (of Rebates) and Fuel Cosl Ascount Adustments during the year, logather with
any balanca brought forward from the prior year and inberest thereon based on prevaiing market inberesi rates.

Inceme recognition

Incame is classified by the Groups as revenus when it anses from the sale of elecinicily, the provision of senices:
or tha use by others of the Groups’ assats under lzases in the ordinary course of the Groups’ business.

Revenus 18 recognised when control over a product or senice s transfermed to the cusiomer, or the lesses has
the right bo use the assed, at the amount of promised consideralion 1o which the Groups ane cxpecied fo be
enliled, excluding those amounts collecled on behall of thind parties. Revenue is afler deduclion of any irade
discouns

Further details of the Groups’ revenue and other income recognilon palicies are as fallows:

{1}  Ebectricity income s recognesed based on e actunl and accrued units of electricity consumed by
customers during the year at the Basic Tasff, which is the unit charge agreed with the Government
dunng the Annuai Tariff Rewvew for each financial year

{2)  Electriciy-related inoome is recognised when the relaled services are rendened

{3} Interest income is recognised as @ accrues under B effectne inferesd method using the rade hat exaclly
discounts estimated fuitue cash recaipts throwgh the axpectad Me of the financial asset fo the gross
carmying amount of the fimancial asset. For inancial assets measured a1 amorlised codl, the effective
ineres] rabe =5 appled to the gross camying amound of the assel. For credil-impaired fnancial assels, the
effective intares! rade & applied o the amortisad cost (Le. gross carmying amount nel of loss allowance) of
the assol {see nole JThj)).

{4} Government granis are recognised in the staternent of fnancial position initially when there is reasonable
aasurance that they will be received and that the Greups will comply with the conditions atiaching to
them. Granls thal compensate the Groups for expenses mcurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on & syslematic basis in the same periods in which the expanses are incuered,

379/530



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Oooooooooooooooooad

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continuad)

(s)

(U]

{u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign eumency ransactions dusing the year are iranslated inlo Hang Kong dollars af the loresgn exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dales, or al contrac! rades il foreign curmencies ara hedged by forward foreign exchange
contracts. Monetary assets and liabilties danominated in forelgn cumencies are ranslated inlo Hong Keng dollars at
tha foraign axchange rales ruling at the and of tha repoding panied

Exchange gains and losses in respect of assels undar construction ane. up o the dale of commissionng, incomporated
in the cost of the assats. All other exchange differences are dead with in profit or less.

Mon-monetary essets and lisbiliies thed are measured in terms of histoncal cost in a foneign currency are ranslated
using the fareign exchange rates ruling al the iransaction dales, The lransaction date is the date on which the
Groups initially reccgnised such nen-monatary sesats or llabfities. Mon-monetary assats and lisbiliies danominated in
foreign currences Mal are stabed al Tair value are anslated using the foreign exchange rates ruling af the dates the
fair value was measured

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compriee cash at bank and in hand, demand deposas wilh banks and other financial
ins¥tuticns and shorl-barm, highly bguid invesiments that are readily convertible inte known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an inssgnificant nsk of changes in value, having been wilhin ihree monihs of matunty

al acquisiion. Bank overdrafts thal ane repayable on demand and farm an inegral part of Ba Groups” cash
managemeni are also ncluded as a component of cash and cash equivalents for e purposa of the consolidated cash
flow statermenl. Cash and cash equivalenis are assessed lor ECLS in sccordance wilh the policy set ot in note 3(hjI).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprses current tax and movemeants in deferred lax assels and abilifies. Current tax and
mavements in defered 1ax assels and liabilites ans recognised in profit or lods except to the extent tat they relate 1o
items recognesad in other comprehansiva income or directly In equity, n which case the mlavan amounts of tax are
recognsad in other comprehensive income or drectly in equily, respectively.

Currend tax is the expected lax payable on the laxable income for the year, using tax rates enacled or substantively
anactad at tha end of the reparting pariod, and any adgistment io tax payable in respect of prevaous years

Dwberred (ax assels and Rabilities arise from dedwectible and taxable temporary differences respectvely, baing (he

differences babwean 1he carrying amounts of assats and liabdbas for inancial reponing purpeses and their lax basas
Doborred lax assets also anse from unused tax losses and unused lax credis.
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All deferred tax liabllities and all deferred tax assets, to the exient that i is probable that future taxable profils will be
avallable agains! which the astel can be uliised, ane recognised

The amount of defered lax recopnised is measured based on the expecled manner of realsation o settiemenl of
the carrying amoun of the assats and liabilties, using tax rates enacted or substanfvely enactad al the end of the
repeeting poriod. Deferred tox assels and kabilties are not discounted

The carrying amount of a defemead tax asset is reviewed at the end of sach reparting penod and is reduced o the
aathen thiad it is no longer probable that sufficient laxabke prafils will be avaiable 1o allew the retated tax banafil o
e utilised Any such reducton is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available

Current lax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, ane presenied separately from each other
and are nol offsel.

Borrowing costs

Bomowing costs that are directly afiributable 1o the scquesiion. consirucbon of production ol an assel which
necessanly iakes a substantial pesiod of time fo get ready for ils intended use or sale are capilalised as part of the
cosi of thal assel. Other borrowing cosls are expensed in the period i which they are incurred.

The capilaksation of berrowing oosts as part of the cost of a quaktying assel commencos when expenditure Tor the
assel |5 being incumed, borrowing costs are besng incurned and activilies that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended wsa o sae are in progress. Capitalisation of bomowsng eosls = suspended or ceases when substantially all
the aclintios necessary 1o prepare the qualitying asset for ils inlended use or sale amn interrupled of complate.

Provisions and contingentliabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Groups or the Company have a legal or construclive obligation ansng as a resull
of & past event Il is probabile that an outhow of economic benefits will be required o setlle the obigation and &
reliable estimate can be made. Where the fime value of money is matenal, provisions ane slated at the present value
of the expendilure axpected to selle the oblgation,

Where il i nol probable that an outfiow of econcmic benefils wil be required, of the amount cannot be estimaled
reliably, the obligation @ disclosed os o contingent Eabilty, unless the probabilily of cutllow of economic benefits s
remala. Possible obligations. whose existence will only be confirmed by the occumence or non-cocunmence of one or
mare future @vents, ane algo disclosed as contingent latlibes unless he probabsity of outflow of Beonsmic banedils
s remole,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

3. Significant accounting policies (continuad)

(i)

()

Related parties

[I} A person, ef & clese member of thal persen's family, @ relaled to the Groups if that person
(1]  has control or joint control over the Groups;
(21 has sagnificant influence over the Groups; of
(31 s 2 member of the key managameant perscnnel of the Groups,

[} An entty is related 1o the Groups if any of the foliowing condtions apphes:

{11 The entity and lhe Groups are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fediow subsidiney % relaled to the obhars)

(2] One enbty s a pinl veniure or an assocale of the ather enlity {or a jonl venlure or an associsle of a
member of 8 group of which the ofher entity is a member)

{31 Bolh enfities sme joinl veniures of the same thind party.
(4) Owne enkty is a point veniure of a third anbity and the other entiy is an associate of tha third entity

(51 The enity = a post-employment benafil plan for the benefit of emplayees of either the Grodps or an
enbity redated to the Groups,

(81  The enlity is controlied or jsintly controlled by a person identfied in note 3(x){1)

(M) A person identfied in note 3(x)(iM1) has significant mfluence over the enlity o i 8 member of the key
management parsonnal of the enlity (or of a parent of the antity).

(8)  The enity, or any member of @ group of which it is @ par, provides a key managemeni personnal services
1o the Groups.

Cloes members of the famiy of a person are those family members who may be expected 1o influence, of be
influenced by, thal parson in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in & mannar consistent wilh the internal reporting proviced to the cheal operatng
decision-maker of the Groups for the purposas of resource allocation and performance assessment

382/530



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Oooooooooooooooooad

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments o the Concepival Framework for Fnancial Regorfing 2018 and HEKFRSs
Ihart g firsd aflectoe for (he cument sccounting penod of the Groups. OF Meae, e foliosing smendments o HKFRSs e
redevvant (o the Trust's and the Company’s conscidated financisl statements:

- Amendmeants io HLAS 1 and HEAS 8, Defintion of Maferal
-~ Amendments o HKFRS 0, HKAS 30 and HKFRS 7, interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phass 1

Theadopbon of these amandments does not have 8 material mpact on Mg Groups’ resulls and inancial posibons for

the cumant or prior penods. The Groups have not applied any new standard, amendment or interpretabion that is not yet
efective for the eurrent decaunling period.

Revonuo

The principal activity of the Groups is the generation and supply of electricity to Hong Keong lsland and Lamma leland.
Disaggregation of revenus by bype of oufput and services is analysed as follows:

2020 019

§ milllian S million

Sales of clecticty 10,362 10654
Less. concessionary discoun] on sales of eleciricty [d) Ay
10,359 10,680

Ebectreity-related income kN a9
10,389 10,738

Segment reporting

Thi: Groups kave ong reponing segment which is thi genération and supply of eleciricly 1o Hong Kong 1stand and Lamma
Island. All segmaent assets are localed in Horg Kang. The Groups' chief operating decision-maker reviews the consclidated
resuits of the Groups for the purposes of rescurce aliocabon and perfoermance assesament. Therefore, no addisanal
regariably segment and geographical inffarmation has bean presenlad.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

7. Other revenue and other net income

2020 2019

5 million 5 mallion

Imeres! income on financial assels measdred al amorised cost 15 T
Government grants (see nobe balow) 101 -
Sundfy ncome 3z a0
148 ar

In 2020, the Groupe sucocesshully applied for funding support from the Employment Support Scheme under the
Anti-epidemec Fund sel up by the Govemment, The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to enterprises to
redain their employees. Under the lerms of the grant, the Groups are required not to make redundancies during the subssdy
peniod and o spend all the funding on paying wages to the employoes.

8. Otheroperating costs

2020 2019

§ million 5 mallion

Adminstrative expenses, government rent and rates a4 33

Stall costs in relation bo corporate and adminisiralive supports 2 218

Provisions for asse! decommessioning oblgalion 170 207
Porian of depreciation and amorisation of leasehold land included in

olher operating costs 193 182

Met lzss on disposal and written off of property, plam and equipment 125 128

1,063 1,078
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Less: inleres! expensa and other fnance costs capisised to assets under

conatruction
mterest expense iransiemed bo fugl costs.

Tolal inberes! expense arising from financial iabdites not o fair vaiue through

profit of loss and other fmance cosis

2020 2019
$m|l|inq ] 5 million
1.236 1,283
[250) (261
Eh'l'l_ (18]

a7 1,004

Interest expanse has been capdaksed a1 an averape rale of approximately 2 8% [2015; 3.1%) per annum for assels undar

construcon,

10. Profit before taxation

Praofit balora taxation s arived at after charging
Depreciation
= awned praparty, plant and squipment
=~ preparlies leased for own use
Amortisation of leasehold lamd
Expensas of short-term leasas wilth remaining kease term ending on
or botora the end of reporting pariod
Coals of mwentones
Write down of inventories
Staff coats
Mt loss on disposal and wrillen off of praperty, plant and equipment
Audilor's remuneration
- auidit and audd related sandces
- non-audit senices (see nobe below)

2020 019

§ million % million
2817 2,780

2 2

186 196

[} 7

3,488 3884
12 [

740 734

126 128

Auditor's remuneration for non-audil services amounted to $301,000 (2019; $314,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

11. Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

2020 2019
Ii 5 million | 5 millson
Current tax
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 452 5T
Deferred tax (soo noto 2Hb))
Qriginationand reversaloftemporary dilferences 116 67
568 (3L ]

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2020 is calculated at 18.5% (2018 18 5%) of the estimated assessabla
paofits for the year, except for one subsidiary of the Groups which |5 & qualifying comoralion under the two-tiened
Profits Tax rate regime.

For this sub=idiary, tha first $2 million of assessable profis are taxed at B.25% and the remaining assessable profits
are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profs Tax for thes subsidiary was caloulabed af the same basis in
2019,

Pursuant o the niles and regulatons of the Cayman Islands and the Briish Virgin Islands, the Groups are exempt
from any incams 1ax in thase jurisdictions.

(b} Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2020 2019

5 million 5 mallaon

Profit before taxation 3169 3,209

Hobonal lax on polil before laxalion, calculaled & the Hong Kong Profils

Tax rate (see note balow) 523 529
Tax effaci of non-deductble expenses T3 88

Tax eflect of non-laxable income (21) (3
Tax effest of recognition of previewsly unrecognised lemporary differences n =
Actual tax expensa 568 B4

For lhe year ended 31 Decamber 2020, the nolional tax is calculated al 18.5% (2015. 18.5%), excepl for one
subsidiary of the Groups which is a qualifying corporation under the two-tbered Profils Tax rale regime. For this
subsidiary, tax on the first 52 million of profits is calculated at 8,26% and lax on the remaining profils is caloulated m
16.5% The notonal tax of this subsidiary is calculated at the same basis as 2019,
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12. Directors’ emoluments and senior management remuneration

Directors' emoluments comprise paymeants to Direclors by the Company and its subsidiases in connection with ha
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidianes. The emoluments of each of the Direclors of the Company

are a5 follows:
Baslz salaries, Bstiruaat For) ko]
allowances and schese Tekal Toial
Fees  ofharbemafits™®  conbributions Benests emalmists okt
Name of Ditectors § maliicn § million § milios § millizn § milkon § milon
Executive Ciractors
Fok Kin Mg, Caening =
Chadrsn (5] (4] - - L1 =] k]
Vi i Tim ™
(ol Eracotivg Dfficer Qo L] - L] 14 T8
(Chan Loi Shany om 10 - - RE] 1%
Chen Dacking Ll 18 oo 058 15 145
Cheng Che Ying, Feancn Ll L] ooz 1M &1 am
Nea-treestive Oiechees
Vil TEL®
Deputy Charman o ms Company Boamd ot (k] - - 03 03
Fahae Hamad A M A Nohasnsd o - - - T oy
Blorald Josaph Arculi™ LAT] 065 - - [ 4}] (R ]
Duan Gaargmeg ™ aay - - - (1 o8
Jarg Wiasin @ - - - - - [Li}|
Devent Anmnd Kamit ot - - - (1] oy
I Guangrhan aar - - - T oar
Indegandan Hen-gessutive Dinectees
Fong Chi W, Kuex =5 am oo - - &10 (8]
Mwan sl Chaang am o - - (1] nos
LeeLan Ve, Fronce ™2 014 o = . L5 ] 0.1
George Coin Magees o7 7] = - (1] ]
Diorald Jelirey Roberis ais oo - - BAr o
Raiph Rarymond Shaa @ o 63 - - [5]] 0t
Afternabe Direcicrs
o Mg Fomyg, Sutan
{afas Chow Woo Mo Fong, Susan)® - o - - (1] o
Fran ot Sl - l!:l@ = - “! a2
Tokal for the year 2020 14 2068 bo4 1.0 s
Total or the year 2010 144 1955 oo e £l i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

12. Directors’ emoluments and senior management remuneration (continued)

Hofes:

(1) Member of t Trustes-Manager Audit Commition and fha Company Audit Commities:

{3 Mamber of fe Remunemion Commitine

13 Member of the Nominaban Commitiee.

{4 Momber of e Sustainabilty CommiZos.

1% AnAlermabe Director to Mr, Fok Kin Ming. Canning.

(B An Alternate Director to Mr, Victoe T K Li

{7} Appoinicd os Non-executve Direclor with efiect from 24 February 2019

(&) Resigned as Non-executive Diector with effect from 26 Febnary 2018,

{#  Other banefits inciude slechricity alicwances io Direclors for residential use. For Direclors who are employess of the Groups. othar
benafits also include insurance and medical benefits antited by the smployess of the Groups

The five highesl paid individuats of he Groups incleded two direclons 2019 wo) whose lolal emoluments are shown
above The remuneration of the other three individuals (2018: three) who comprse the frve highest pasd individuals of the

Groups is s out belew:
2020 2012
§ million 5 mallion
Basic salanes, slowances and olher banefils 9.34 BT
Raotiramant schema contributions 1.26 1.20
Bonmmes il 300
14.02 1297
The tetal remunevation of senior management, exchuding Directors, is within the following bands:
2020 2018
s Humber Humber
Hil - 51,000,000 2 =
1,000,001 = 51,500,000 1 -
52,000,001 - 52,500,000 2 o
$2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2 3
53,000,001 — 53,500,000 4 &
53,500,001 = 54,000,000 1 -
$5,000,001 — 55,500,000 2 2
The remunaration of Direclofs and semoaf managemant is as follvws:
2020 2018
$ rl'll|1l_un = million
Shon-term employee benefits ™ 7o
Pogl-employment bensfits 2 2
T3 T2

At 31 December 2020 and 2018, there was no amount due from Directors and senior management
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13. Scheme of Controltransfers

(a)

H

The financial operations of HE Electnic are govemned by the SoCA agreed with the Govemnmmant which provides for
HK Electing o earm a Permited Retum (sae note 3(rki)]. Any excess or deficiency of the gross tanl revenus aves the
sum of total oparating costs, Scheme of Contrel Met Raeturn and Scheme of Control takation charges is transfarred
feiifram) & Tanf Stabilisabon Fund fromi(io) the stalement of prafil or loss of HK Eleetric. When tranader from

the Tarift Stabilisation Fund 1o the statement of profil or loss is reguired, the amount frans’ermed shall not exceed
ihe batance of the Tarill Stablesalion Fund. in additeon, a charge calculaled by applying the average one-month
Heng Kong Interbank Offered Rate on the average balance of the Tarff Stabilisation Fund is transferred from the
statement of praft or loss of HK Electric 1o a Rate Reduction Reserve

Undar currant SeCA, a Smar Power Care Fund was sstablished on 1 Jansary 2010 with iniSal funding provided by
fhe ned closing balance as &l 31 December 2018 of the Smart Power Fund, which was eslabished pursuand io 2013
mid-term rewiew of 2009-2018 SoCA, to pramote energy efficsency and conservation, such 88 scoelarating end-use
onahgy afficienay through programmes designed b hedp residontial, industsal and commencial customars, and alsa
dizadvaniaged customersigroups o replace or upgrade end-use appliances 1o mode enangy-eMicient elecincal models.
HE Eleciric consented 10 deduct an amaunl equal o 55% of the Energy EMiclency Incentive Amount of each year
during the peried from 1 January 2018 1o 31 Decamber 2033 for funding the contributon to the Smart Power Care
Fund provided that thene is an Energy Efficiency Incentive Amaum in respect of that year

Seheme of Control transfers (lo)from the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

2020 2019

£ million S million

Tarnif Stabsation Fund [164) 222

Rale Redudion Rasarve B 14
Smarl Power Care Fund

— Provisional sum injected in curnant year 11 -

- Provisional sum to be injected in the following year 14 32

[131) 268

A provisional sum of 824, 787,000, representing deduction of HK Electric's 2020 financial incentive (2019
$32,3709,000), was transfemed from the consolidalad statement of profit orloss, of which 510,509,000 was
mjected inio the Smart Power Care Fund in 2020 with the remaineng 514,258,000 was included in the trade and
ofher payables and contrect kabilities as at 31 December 2020 for ingection into the Smart Power Care Fund inthe
Tollowing year,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased i Hang Kong dollam whless o ]

13. Scheme of Control transfers (continued)

(e} Maowemenis inthe Tasiff Slabilisaton Fund, Rate Reducton Resense and Smart Power Care Fund are as follows:

Tarifi Rate
Stabilisation Reduction  Smart Power

5 million Fund Reserve Care Fund Total
At 1 January 2019 620 1 22 G48
Transfer from Rate Reducton Resane

1o Tarfl Stabikeation Fund

(see note below) (] 1) - -
Transler rom ihe consalidaled

stalemant of profit or boss 222 14 - 235
Disbursement for the year - - (4 {6)
At 31 December 2019 and

1 January 2020 848 14 16 878
Transfer irom Rate Reduction Reserve

1o Tariff Stabilisation Fund

(5o mode below] 14 [14) - =
Transfer (lojfrom the consolicated

siaterment of profit or loss {164) B - (156)
Inyection for the year = = a3 43
Disbursement for the year - - (38) (39}
AL31 December 2020 LL 8 n L]

Pursuant to SoCA, the year-end balance of the Rale Reduchon Resanie of a year has io be transfered to the Tarf
Stabilisation Fund in the Tolowing year.
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14. Distributions/dividends

{a) The distributable income for the year was as follows:

2020 2019
5 million $ million
Audited consolidaled profit atirbulable lo the holders of Shane Stapled Units 2,732 2327
Aftar;
{i} aliminating tha effacts of the Adusiments (see nole 1 balow) 4,693 5188
(i) addingideducting)
= movement m Fusl Clause Recovery Acoount 148 {208}
= changes in working capital [223) 25
= sdjustment for employes relirement benefit schames 7 n
- laxes pad [dB8) [107]
(555) [279)
(i} capital expenditure payman {4.850) {3,585)
() nel fingnce costs i1121) (1,022}
Desinbutabie income BO9 2620
v adding discretionary amount as delemmined by the Company Board
pursuant to clause 14.1(c) of the Trus! Deed (see nole 4 balow) 1.8M am
Disiributable income afler adjusiment of the discreBonary amount 2,830 2830
Hale 1 Puarsuan io clouse 1.1 of the Trust Desd, “Adustments” inchudes, bul not imibed o (i) ensbens lodrem the Tard!
Slabiisatan Fund and e Rate Reduction Rederes undal the Schm of Conlrol; (i) unoalmed revahuston gaine orbes,
including impairnent provisions and revensals of impairment provisians, (i) npaiment of goodwilirecogntion of
negative goodwal fivimalerial non-cash gainafosses; (v) costs of sny public oflering of Share Stapled Linis that are
sapensed Frough he consaidated statement of profil of loas Bt ane Sundid by protesds from (e 42 ares af sueh
Share SlapledUnis; (v deprecation and amaortisation; |vil] Exchanges & shown inthe consoldatad statamentaf
pecin of boss, and {viii)nel inance iInCome/cosls as Shown in the consalidated statement of profl o oss.
ota 2 Thett Tt Detotd resuires the Trusdesa-ansgesr (on bahall of e Trosl) & detibute 100% of e dividends, defrButons
and olfe ameunts received by Se Trustee-Manager in respect of the cedinary shares fram the Cemaany, afler
deducion of sl amolunis pemrilied o be deduched of paid under the Trasl Deed
Moba 3 Thi dalnbatons. recensd by v Trutbes-Manager frofm Bhe Company will be defvad frem e Golup Deiribilabie
Income which i8 refenred &8 audiled consobdated profil attribdable io he holders of Share Slapled Uris jor (he
refenvant financial year or gisYiDution period, afler maiing adusiments in 1espect of Bems &8 S8t cul in the Trust Deed
ot 4 In dhbrrdning st distrilarion amount, the Company Board has taen inko sécount the Groug's inandal perfemance

achieved during The yesr and s siabls cashfiow from cperaiions, and consider § approprste 1o adusl the dairituiabie
ncome for the year ended 31 Decamber 2020, a8 calculated pursuant to the Truet Deed, by e above discietionany
amount, pursuant ¥ clause 14.1(c) of e Trusd Deed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

14. Distributions/dividends [econtinued)

(b} Distributions/dividends payable to holders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company
attributable to the year

2020 2019
§ million % millson
Interim distnbutionTirst mtenm dividend declared and paid of
15.04 eents (2019: 15,64 eenls) per Share Stapled Liniishare 1,408 1,408
Fenal distribution/second interim dividend proposed after the end
of the reporting period of 16,09 cenls (2018: 16.09 ¢ents)
per Share Stapled Unitfshare 1422 1422

2830 2,830

Forthe yearanded 31 Decamber 2020 the Company Board declared the paymeant of a sacond interm dividand

of 16,08 cents per ordinary share (2019; 16,09 cenis per ordinary share), amounting 1o 51,422 mékon (2019
51,422 milien), in lieu of a final dividend afier the end of the reporting period and therefore no final dividend was
propased by the Company Board.

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2020, the Trusiee-Mansger Board declared a final distribution of 16.09 cents par
Shate Stepled Unil (2019, 16,09 cents per Share Stapled Und), amounling 1o 51422 milkon 2019 51,422 million),
after the end of he reportng penod

The firial distribubon/second intedim diwdend declared afler the end of the reporting pericd s based on the

number o Shares Staphed Unilsfordnary shases of the Comgarny of B.E36,200,000 as al 31 December 2020 2019
8,836 200,000). The final distribulion/second interim dividend declared after the end of the reporting paried has not
been recogniaed a3 a liability at the end of the repofing penod,

{c) Distributions/dividends payable to holders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year

2020 2019
5 million 5 million
Fmnal desinbution/second imerim dividend in respect of ihe previous
financal year, approved and paid during the year, of 16.08 cents
{F018: 20 17 canig) per Share Stapled Uintiahare 1,422 1,778

15. Eamings per Share Stapled Unit/share of the Company

The caleulation of basic and dduted eamings per Share Stapled Unit'shars of the Company afe based on the profil
afiribubable to the hobders of Share Stapled Urds/ordinary shares of the Company of 52,732 milkon (2018: $2 327 millicn)
and the weightad average of 8 836,200,000 Share Slapled Unitsfondinary shares of the Company (2012 8,636,200,000
Shate Stapled Unilslordinany shares of the Company] in issie durng the year
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16. Property, plant and equipment and interests in leasehold land

Pl Fatres, Intereityin
Frepartes  machmay Ienegn LB
iz lormatien leasedfer n md moler  Rasel endir a5 Seld
Smillen o] miabdregy mmse d L fubdelal  Rrowmunt Tetal
=]
1 nany ZW 1687 = EUR Y e 135 T ke BT
ddeitery 1 ) il ] 418 451 1 4575
Transler 12 - 13 b 15 - - -
Diagoasls 1] - 364 . - L] . (]
A3 Decermba 2013 and 1 Janwary 110 1111 4 RN 550 ] Lk 1] L]
sty - 1 L A A ¥ 1 (+. ]
Tramsler 1458 - ] 3] (13 = - =
Dragenaly 13 Ll (35} = 1 = 4
A H Decenbar 2 18258 ] B L] 150 Wi [4:] UEM
Bazumijaled tiptecianan snd amarkiation
& 1 Joany 20 5% - B m - e I H 1160
Ylter buch 0 dsmsy & - 4] L] - ) au
Crge Eor Bt it s ? M ] - 185 " A1
Ak H Decambent 240 and 1 Javeary 100 12 ] 11883 15 - 15363 1 L1
Weer back o1 dcpocat “ ] I ] - o = 138
Ca e I S B B
& 1 Decenbar 1228 155 1 11 i - (LF ] 13 Thike
Nt ook vadee:
At M Decembes 3 wm 2 uin & L1 B L1+ ] T
31 Decantber 2014 13T i 3! £ 0] LI L] L T4

The above are mainly electricily-ralated property, plant and equipment in respact of which Enancing costs capilalised
curing the year amounted 1o 5250 milion (2018: 5261 million)

Depreciabion changes for the year included $77 milien (2019: 573 millien), relating 1o assets wlilised in devalopment
pctivities, which have boen capinbsed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

17. Goodwill

(a) Carrying amount of goodwill

2020 2019
5 million | 5 mallion

Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 33,623 33,623

(b} Impairment test for goodwill
HK Eleciric |s the Groups' only cash-generaling unit ("CGU") to which the goodwill has been aliocated.

in the case of tnggenng events and at least annualy, the Groups les! whether the goodwill has suffered any
impairment. Recoverable amount of the CGU. 1o which e goodwill has been allocated, was determined based on
walue-in-use calculalions, These ealeulalions use pre-1ax cash fow projectons based on financal budgels approved
by managemen covenng a 16-year penod (201% 18-year penod) Projectons for a penad of grealar than five
years have bean used on the basis thal a longer projection period represents the long-ived neture of ganenation,
transrmission and distiibution assels and a mone approphate reflechon of hrure cash Bows of HK Electric under the
regulatory regime. The cash fiow projections are discounied using a pre-lax discount rate of 5.54% (2018 5.50%).
The discount rate used reflects specific ricks relaiing lo the relevant CGLI, Cash Nlows beyond the 16-year poriod ane
axirapolaled using the ferminal growih rabe of 1.0% (2018 1.0%)

There was no indication of impairment arising from review on goodwill as at 30 November 2020,
If the discount rale rose o 6.T4% (2018 6.66%), the recoverable amount of the CGU would be aporoximately

equal 1o its carrying amount. Excapt this, any reasonably possible changes in the olher key assumplions used in the
value-in-usa calculation would not affect management's view on impairment fesl resull as al 30 NMovembar 2020.
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18. Investmeonts in subsidiaries

Details of the subsidianes al 31 December 2020 are as follows:
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Issued share Percantageof Place of
capital and debt  equity held by incorporation!
Hame of subsidiary securities the Company operation  Principal activity
Century Rank Limited uss1 100%  British Virgin islands!  Investment hoiding
Hang Kong
Treasure Busness Limited U5 100% '™  Brlish Virgin kslands!  Investment holding
Hang Kong
The Hongkong Electric 52,411,600,000 100%™ Hong Kong  Elecinicity generation
Company, Limied and supply
Hongkong Eleciric Financa LI5S 100%™ British Vingin kslands! Financing
Limited HK$9,004 million Heng Kong
Hang Kong dollar
fixed rale nobes
551,750 million
Uniled Siales dollar
fixod rate nobos
HKS1,056 millicn
Hang Kang dallar
Zam coupon nobes
USS400 millicn
Uniled Stales dollar
callable 2eme
coupon nates
{see nolz 25)
1) Indirecty hold
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)
19. Interest in a joint venture

Dedaits of the Groups' interest in a joint venture, which & accounted for using the eguity method in the consolidaled
linancial stalements. are as follws:

Issued Groups' Place of

share effective  Incorporationd
Hame of joint venture capltal interest operation Principal activity
Hong Kong LMNG Terminal Limited s10 30% Hong Kong Develop, consiruct, cparale,
{"HKLTL") mankain and own 8 kuefied
natural gas (LNG) termimal in
Hong Kong and providing
ralated services

HKLTL ta jointly owned by HK Electric and Caslle Peak Power Company Limited ("CAPCO") for the developmeant of an
LMNG terminal in Hang Kong. HELTL is a joint venture of HK Electric and CAPCO as its significant operabonal and financsal
decisions require umanimous consenl of balh sharehaldess,

HKLTL, the only foinl venture in which the Groupe paricipale, is an unlisied corporate entity whese quoled markel price s
nol available

Sum | fimancial informabon below represents amounls shown in HELTL's financial stafermants prepaned in accordance
with HKFRSs and the Groups' share of results and net assats:

2020 2019
£ million £ mallzon
Currerd assets
Bank deposits and cash - 4
Oither current assats 31 1
21 5
Non-current assels (] 1685
Currem liabiities 3 (29)
Non-current liahilites
Laars frarm sharehaldsns {927} (141)
Wl pasels - -
Reverus 1 1
Prafit for the year - -

Othar comprahensive incoma - =z
Telal comprehensive income - -
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2020 2019

5 million 5 million

Groups share of nel assels = -
Loan fo joint vendure (see nole helow) awa a2
2TB 42

HE Eleglrie entengd into & Shareholder Loan Faclity Agreamenl wilh HKLTL under which bvo tranches of loan Taciliies
tataling $E699 millien are provided by HE Elactic to finance HEKLTL's cbisining the land lease and constructicn of the jetty
far the LNG tarminal. Both tranches of loans sre unsecured and irferest-bearing with the rates benchmarked with market
rates.

20. Inventories

2020 2019

§ million % millon

Conl_ fusl oil and natural gas 430 22
Slores and maleriagls (see nobe below) 206 =7
T26 E19

Incluced in stores and meatenals s capital siock of 5158 millon (2018° 5153 millon) which was purchased for futune
maintenance of capital assats.

21. Trade and otherreceivables

2020 2019

£ million % millicn

Trade deblors, net of loss allowance (ses nates (a) and (b) below) 470 513
Ciher receivishbes {See nols belaw) 358 414
EB28 27

Dexveative financial instnaments (see note 26) 3 il
Deposits and prepayments 120 47
851 1,080

Al of (e brade and othar mcaivables are aipectad 1o ba recovared within one year

Cithee recervables of the Groups indede unbilled electricty charges of 5312 milion (2018: 3341 million) to be recelyed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)
21. Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a) Ageing analysis of trade debtors

The ageing analyss af irade deblars bassd on mvalee date, which are neither indevidually nor collectvely considered
o be mmpaired, is as folkows:

2020 2019

5 million 5 mallion

Current and within 1 month 451 ATé
1 o 3 months 19 30
Mora ihan 3 months but less than 12 months - 7
470 513

Elesctricity bills issued o résidentzal small industial, commerncial and miscallansous customers Tor esectioily supplies
arer dug upon presentaton whereas maximum demand cusiomers are allowed a credd period of 16 working days. If
setllements by maxsmum demand cusiomers are received afler the credit pencd, a suscharge of 5% can be added 1o

(b} Expected creditlosses of trade debtors

The Groups measwre loss allowances for trade debtors &t an amount equal fo [fetme ECLs, which s calculaled using
a provision matrix, The Growps delermine the provision for ECLs by grouping fegether frade debbors with similar
credil sk chasacteristics and collectively assessing them for likelihood of recovery, taking indo accounl prevailing
aconims envionmend, For rade deblors relaling bo acoounts whach are long overdue with sgnihcant amounis or
lencrwn nsalvencies or non-responsa o collection aclivities, thay are essessed mdividually for impairment allowance.

The Groups classify trade debtors by naiure of customer accounts namaly Iive accounds and final accounis. The
following table provides information about the Groups' exposure 1o credit risk and ECLs for rade deblors

- m -
Gross earying Lifetime Melcarrying
ECLrate amount ECLs amatnt
% 5 million 5 million § million
Live accourts
Pravisaon on colfective basis 2 438 (10} 428
Final accounts
Provisson on indevidual bass 6 o (1 8
Other trace deblors
Pravisian on collactive basis 0 34 - 3
AB1 {11) AT
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2019
Gross camying Lifelima Net carrying
ECL rale amount Edls amount
% 5 million S mallion 5 mullion
Live Booounis
Provision on collective bass 2 502 {11} 481
Final accounds
Prowision on indwvidual basis B 12 (1) 1
Ciher trade debiors
Prowisson on collactve basis 0 1 - 11
525 (12} 513

HK Ebsciric oblained collaleral in the form of security deposits or bank guarantees rom cuslomens (sea nobe 31{a)}

Maovemant in the less allowance account in respect of trade debiors during the year is as follows:

020 2018

5 million S million

AL January 12 1
Impairmand kxsses recognised dunng tha year - 12
Amounts wiilten off dursng the year {1} (1}
AL 31 December 1 12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

Z2. Bank deposits and cash and other cash flow information

(a) Bank deposits and cash comprise:

2020 2019
5 million 5 mallion

Deposits with banks and other financial inskiutions with 3 months or less io
makurity when placed - 263
Cash at bank and in hand 52 8
Bank overdrafts — unsecuned = {33}

Cash and cash agquivalents in the consalidaied cash flow stalemant 52 268

Bank cverdrafis — unsecured - =
Bank deposits and cash in the consolidated slatement of financial posibion B2 sl
(b} Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from operations:
2020 2019
Hole £ millien £ million
Profit befora taxation 3160 3,209
Adjustmentsfor
Interest income l (15) ]
Finance cosls 9 a7 1,004
Iritarest expanss transferred to fuel costs k] 15 18
Depraciation 0 2,819 2,782
Amartisation of lzasehold land 10 196 196
Net lass on disposal and wiitlen off of property, plant and
equipment 10 125 128
Increase in provisions for assel decommissioning obligation 2Ea) 1o 207
Net financial instrumand revaluation and exchange loeses 4 -
Serart Power Cate Fund desbursement 13 (39) (6}
Changes m working capétal
Decrease in inventosios a8 164
Decrease in irade and other recaivabies T 57
Mowvements in Fusl Clause Recovery Accourt 149 [204)
Decrease in trade and other payables and contract Eabifties (3B5) (104
Increassldacrease in nel employes refimment benafil ssels
liabdites T "
Payment for assel decommissioning obligation expendiiure 28(a) (2 -
Cash genaraled from operabons 7351 731
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising frem financing activities:

The table below details changes m the Groups’ kabiblies (rom financing aclivibes, inciuding both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilites ansing irem financng aclivibes are Eabilties for which cash flows ware, o fulure cash llows will
be, classfind in the Groups' consolidated cash fiow sialement as cash flows from financing activitis:

Desivatve  Derniative

frascil fnaseial

strumenl  isatrement

Il R Badige  boeif b hecige

Medus  Cusiamer lesw  Bomowngs  bomowisgs

Bk leami  dermnales depesis  fabiles feiiels)  finbiiSes) Tatal
§milen imote-25) |rote 25 ]
M1 Jansary 200 130 MET 1M 1 -] - um
Changes o Fnansmgessh fowic
Fracessis ko bani ks m = = - = = i
Repayrest of bark ars (1250 - - - - - (1281
Ieszancant nadunismrolas . fore - - - - e
Fiasermpion ol madum e rotes = [L%T) 2 : = 2 ([%i5]
Faymenl of 'ease habliies B - - ] - E ]
Mew casiyren déqosty - - m - - - b 1|
Fopayrat of customen” doceads . - {284 - = = 1
Tokal chargus hom fruaneng cash S {2y 15 i m - - 17
Enchinge sfuiimesty - L] - - = = 18
Changes infairvalue - 58 - - (1] 1) En
Ot shanges:
Incriet 7 e Eatiten - = = 1 = = 1
riaresd om bomings and overfrance coshy b 182 s - = s H

R Decombar 230 1130 WA pe i ) EE 17148
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

22. Bank deposits and cash and other cash flow information (continued)

{¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (continued)

] Do
frencid fread
niseren Eram
heidnbedgs  heidhobedge
Medun  Clsiomeny Ltme  looowngy  bowings
Baihars  temnoties ceposts labimes ] Tabdtes: Told
$ malion ke 2y e ) incle J42)
Ab Jaruary 2013 11755 M 210 - 50 Fi ] Likeid
Changes frem financing cashfaws:
Priceecs o bank iars M8 . . = : ¥ 148
Razaymert of bani koars {15000 - - - - - 13000
barce ol e ieminoles - E 1] . - . - 50
Riedemption of mesfiors leem ke - 2 - 2 - = )
Pyt of bk kabsibet - - - [} - ~ o
e Coatoenery. degosts - - (-] - - - 5
Resayment of custmeny deppely - - [r.] - - - friz]
Torafchanges yom frencag cah fows 548 m & ] . - &
Changes infair vaiee - 1 - - b ri-] {15
Dtker changes:
e niease kabites - . . 5 . - L]
I o bonawings.and e fnance osle n w - - - - m
AEI Decomiber 2003 1333 uin L ) [e5) = o
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23. Trade and other payables and contract liabilities

2020 2019
5 million 5 million

Trade and other payables
Creditors measured al amortised cost (see note [a) below) 2,794 28231
Leass kabibties (sea nobe 28ib)) 1 2
Derivative financial instnaments (see note 28) 3 8
2,788 2962
Contract liabilithes (sea nole (b) balow)] 22 18
2,820 2580

All of the trade and other payables are expected o be sabtied wilthin cne year or ane repayable on deamand.

{a) Creditors' ageing is analysed as follows:

2020 2019

5 million 5 millign

Due within 1 month of on demand 1,168 1778
Due aftar 1 month but within 3 months 618 ey ]
Due after 3 months buf withan 12 manihs 950 73
2,704 2821

{b) Contract liabilities

iy The contract abisties relale 1o the advance consideration received from customers for electncy.-retated
senices, which consests mainly of (1) pesmanent supply senice, pnimanly associated with the supply of
electricity 1o customer substafions for large new developments and 1o small new developments without
cusiomer subsiation provisions, and (2] sfe sarvice primanly associated with the lemposary supply of
elechricity fo construction sfes or special functions, for which revenue is recognised upon complebon of the
eleclricily-relaled senices,

(i) Meovements in contract kabilties during the year i as fallows:

2020 2019

§ million £ million

Ap 1 January 18 <-4
Increase in contrach habakbies a3 a resull of biling in advance for

parformance of eleciricity-related servicas 10 5
Decreass in contracl habises as a resull of recognising revenus

dunng the yaar that was inclhsded inthe coniract liabilibes at the
baginning of the year ﬂ_] (251
Al 31 Decamber 22 18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)
24, Fuel Clause Recovery Account

HK Electric adjusis Fuel Clause Charge per unil for electricity sales on a monthly basis to reflect sciual cost of fuels in a
limedy manned, Mo Special Fuel Rebate was offéned to customers dunng the year (2019 Spacaal Fual Rebale of 2.3 cents
per unit fior electricity sales)

kovements in the Fuel Clause Recovary Account were as follows:

2020 2019

5 million 5 million

A1 January 64T BSG
Transtesred 1o profil or oss {1.823) {2,051}
Fual Clause Charges dusing the year 1972 2,087
Special Fuel Rebates during the year - (244)
Al 31 December TOG 547

This aceount, inclusive of mberest, has baen and will continue fo be used to siabilise dlecingity tariffs.

25. Bank loans and other interest-bearing borrowings

2020 2019
— Raehien. 3 -
Bank koans 18,080 18,333
Current portion _l_-_lﬂ_l-l:] (113)
bt i
Hong Keng dollar madium lemrn nates
Fingd rate nates (Sed note (4) below) 8946 B.465
Zero coupon notes (see note (b) below) 752 TIT
9698 7192
Unifed Stales dofar medum term notes
Fixgd rate notes (sea nols (a) bekie) 13,534 11,887
Zeno coupan notes (see nata (b} balow) 1,578 5. 700
17112 17487
Current partion = {5.897)
17112 11,500
Non-gumeni portion 40,708 37,002
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Tha Hong Kong dollar fixed rate notes baar imeres! al rates ranging from 2.4% bo 4% per annum (2019 2.55% to
4% per anmum)

The United States dollar fxed rate notes bear Interest atrates ranging from 1.875% to 2.675% per annum (2018;
2.875% o 4.25% per annum),

Tha Hong Kong dollar 2efo colipon natas which wane ssued al dscoum have nominal amount of 51,056 millon (7019
51,056 millien) and acerual yield of 3.5% per annum [2018; 3.5% per annum),

The Linted States dollar 2890 coupon noles embed wiih ssuar call ophons allowing sseer 1o early redeem the noles
In 2020, the Groups exercesed the issuar call oplions and redeamad US525) million of hesa nales

Az al 31 December 2020, the United States dollar 2ero coupon notes have nominal amount of LSS400 million {2015
US5650 milion) and accrual yield of 4 375% per annum (2016 accrual yields ranging from 4_375% to 4 8% per
annum). They are callable on 12 Oclober 2022 and annually thereafier unil the penulbmabe year o matunity.

Details of tha ssuer of the Hong Keng dollar and United States dollar madium tesm noles ane set out in nole 18

Same banking facilities af the Greups are subyeat bo the fulfilment of covenants retaling te certan of the Groups”
statement of financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending amangemenis with financial msbitutons. If
the Groups were to breach the covenants, the drawn dawn faciities would become payable on demand and any
undravwn amount will e cancelled, The Groups laﬂ.ﬂaﬂr manfiors its compliance with these covenants. Furlhar
details of the Groups' manegement of liquidity riek are set oul in nobe 31(b). As at 31 December 2020 and 2016,
none of the covenants relating lo dravwn down facilfies had been breached.

Hona of Ihe non-cumenl Inlersst-baaring bormowings & expected 1o be salted within one yaar. All the above
DOIToWINGs ane unsecunad

Tha non-current interest-bearing bormowings ara repayable as follows:

2020 010

§ million S million

After 1 year bul within 2 years 2,500 15222
Alter 2 years but within 5 years 1.288 3,500
Afer 5 years 36,908 16,184
40,706 37002
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

26. Derivative financial instrumenis

2020 2019
Assels Liabilrties Asspls Liabiles
% million £ million £ milion % million
Derivative financial instruments used for
hedging:
Cash flow hedges:
- Cross cummency swaps = (57} 4 =
~ Indevas! rade swaps = (628) 230 -
- Forward iofeign exchangs conlrecls 619 (4) 407 151}
Fair value hedges
- Cross cumency s$waps - - 70 -
= Forward foreign exchangs contracts = {11 4 (2}
G618 (700} 735 {53}
Analysed ms
Current 3 3 B4 {38}
Men-current 616 (E97) 649 (14)
618 (700} 735 {33}

27. Employee retirement benefits
The Groups offer thres retirement schemes which together cover &l permenent stafi

One ol the schemes (the “Pension Scheme”) provides pension benefils based on the employee’s final basic selary and
tength of sarvice. This scheme is accounted for as a defined boneft relirement schame.

Anoiher scheme s defined confnbuton in nature and offers its members various invesiment funds: in which they can invesl
One of the investment funds provides & guarantesd retum; the schems (8 accounted for a8 & defined benafit retirement
scheme i respect of this investmaent fund (the "Guaranteed Roturn Schama’). In respact of other imvestmant funds which
dia nod offer a guaranieed retum, the scheme is sccounted for & a defined contribulson retirement schame (sea
nabi 27 (b},

Bath these schemes are established under trust and are registered under the Hong Keng Ocoupationa! Retrement Schemaes
Ordinanca. The assels of the schemes are hald independenily of the Groups’ asseis n separale busies adminisbered funds.
The: responsibility for the govemance of thi schemes = includng nvesimant and contnbubon decisions = lies with lhe
independent trusiess in accordance with the trust deeds of the schemes.
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The Groups also participate in a master trus Mandaetory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme’) oparated by an
indépendent servioe proveder under the Hong Kong Mandalory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, The MPF Schema

is 8 defined condribubon refrement scheme with the employer and its employees each coniribuding to the schama in
accordance with the relevan scheme nues. The MPF Scheme rules provide for voluntary contritutions 1o be made by the
emphoyar calculated as a parcantage of the emoloyess’ basic salanas

Smoe the miroduction of the Mandalory Prondend Fund System in Hong Kong in December 2000, both the Pension
Schame and the Guaranteed Return Scheme have been closed 1o new enfrants and all new recruits are endolled in the MPF
Schama

{a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes")

The funding poficy in respect of the Pension Scheme is based on valuabons prepared pernodically by mdepandent
professonally quakhed aciuanes ab Willls Toweds Watson Hong Kong Limited. The palicy fae emplayers cantnbutions
i o fund Be scheme in accordance with the actuary's recommendabons on an on-gong basis. The principal actuanal
assumptions used indede discount rate, hong term salary increase rate and fulure pension increase rale which ane
disclosad in nabe 2T{a){viil) tegather wilh appropriabe provisions for mortalily rales. hemover and adjustments o
reflect the shod-lerm market expectation of salary increases. The mosl recent actuarial valuaton of the Fension
Scheme was carfied oul by the appointed actuary, epresented by Ms. Wing Lul, F5A, as al 1 January 2018, The
vah@tion revealed thal lhe assets of the Penskon Scheme were sulficient 1o cover the aggrepate vesbed kabilies as al
et viduabon dile

Bolh defined benef ralirement schemes expose the Groups ba invesiment risk, inferesd rale sk and salary risk while
thie Pension Scheme also axposas the Groups to risks of longevity and infation

T retirement scheme expensedncoma recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
detarmingd in sccordance with HKAS 198 (201 1), Employas banafils,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)
Z7. Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”) (continued)

{Iy  The amounts recopnised in the consoldaled slatamant of inancal posibon are as follows

2020 2019
5 million 5 mallion
Present value of defined benalit abligations 3401 3,459
Fair value of assels of the Schemes (3.921) {3.000)
(520) (441}

Represantedby:
Employee retrement benefi schama assats (B8T) (B09)
Employes retirement bemefit schemse liabilibes 36T 388
(520 (441)

A porlion ol the abave asselliabiity = expacted o be realsadisatled aler mare than one year, Hewever,
il is not practicable te segregate this amouwn! from the amounts payabla in the naxt 12 menths, as future

conlributions will alzo refate o fulure senaoes rendered and future changes in actuanal assumplions and

markal conditions.

(i} Movemends in the prasent walue of defined benalit chigalions of the Schemes are as follows:

2020 2019
$mililon. 3 milon
At 1 January 1458 3483
Current senves cost 59 62
Inberest cosl B1 69
Employee contributions paid (o the Schemes 13 14
Actuarial (gams Josses dus o
- liabilty axparienca (25) 1
= change in financial assumplions 214 99
— change in demographic assumptions 0 @
Benefits pad (396) (264)
Transler out (4) -
At 31 Decamber 3401 3,459
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(i)  Movements in fair value of plan assels of the Schames ane as fokows:

2020 2019

£ million $ million

At Januwary 3,800 3,663
Inberest income on the Schemes’ assets =] T2
Raturn on Schemes’ assels, excluding inleres! income 285 am
Employerconinbutions paidiothe Schemes 44 48
Employee contribulions paid to the Schemes 13 14
Benefits paid [396) [268)
Transher oul (4) -
At 31 Decambar 3821 3,900

The Groups expect (o coniribute 548 millkon o the Schemes in 2021,

(v} The expenses recognised in ihe consolidated statement of profl or l055. pror 10 any capitalisaton of
empioyment cosks atiributatle to adddtions of property, plant and equipment, s as follows:

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Current service cosl 59 &2
Mat inlerest income on nel defined benalil assetlabidy (B) 3}

81 53

{v] The sxpenses am recognised in the folowing line items in the consolidated stalemant of profil o loss:

2020 2019

5 million % million

Direct costs a3 a0
Other operating costs 18 19

51 50

409/530



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Oooooooooooooooooad

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)
Z7. Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”) (continued)

{w) The cumulsle amount of sctuanal gans recognised n the consolidaled statement of comprehensive meoms is

a5 follows:

2020 2019
§ million 5 mallion
At1.January 403 151

Remeasuremenl of net defined benelit asselliabiity recognesed in the
consalidaled sialement of comprahensive ncoma dusing the year BE 252
At 31 Decembar 489 403

(v} The major categories of asseds of the Schemes ane as follows!
2020 2019
£ million 5§ million
Haing Hong equiies 382 305
European equities 214 4
MNorth Amencan equties &10 &re
Asia Pacific and other equities 1697 173
Global bonds 2466 2,468
Deposits, cash and othars B2 B
3,921 3,900
Siraiegic mvestment decisbons ane faken with respect 1o 1he risk and refum profiles
ivil) The prncipal actuanal assumplions used as at 31 December are as follaws
2020 2019
Discount rale

= The Penon Scheme 1.0% 1.8%
— The Guaranbeed Return Scheme 0.4% 1.8%
Long-term salary ncrease rate 5.0% 5.0%
Future pansion mereasa fale 2.0% 2.5%

410/530



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)

Oooooooooooooooooad

() Saensitnity analysis

(1) The Pensian Scheme

Increasai{decroase) in
defined benefit ebligations

Z0Z0 2019
& million § million
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
= incrifs by 0.25% (59) (5T}
— decraase by 0.25% &2 4]
Pensicn (ncrease rale
— increass by 0.25% 58 a7
= decrease by 0.25% (56} (54]
Mortality rate applied io specific age
- gl farward one yaal 77y (72)
= 5@t hackward one year TH T4
(2} The Guarantesd Return Schame
Increasai{decroase] in
defined benefit obligations
2020 2019
£ million £ rillion
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
= increase by 0.22% (26) (28)
- decrease by 0.25% i)
Imtesressl o b crediled
— increase by 0.25% il

Thi abowe sensiivity analyses ane based on a change in an sssumpbon while hoiding sl olher assumptions
constant. In praciice, changes in some of the asswmplions may ba comelated. When calculaling the sensitivity
of the defined benelit oblgahon to significant schuanal assumpbons the same methad (present value of the
defined banefil cbligabon calculaled with the projected unil credit methad al the end of the reparting perod)
has been applied as when calcutating the defined benefit liabiity recognised within the consolidated statermeant
of fingncaal positsan. Thié analyss has been performed on (he same basis as for 2019,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expressed in Hang Kong dollars wnless ofersise indcaled)
Z7. Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”) (continued)

() The fabowing lable sels cul the weighlted average durabisns of the deflined benefit sbligabans of e Schemes:

2020 2019
The Pension Scheme 13.2 Years 13.2 Years
The Guaranieed Return Scheme 6.5Years 8.2 Years
(b) Defined contribution retirement schames
2020 2019
5 million S malaon
Expenses recognised m profit or loss [i%] 58

Forfelted contributions of $1, 148,000 (2019 1, 148 000) have been received during the year.

28. Other non-current liabilitics

2020 2019

§ million 5 million

Pravigions (see nole (a) below) 1121 B
Leass kabilities (see note (b) below) 1 1
1122 855

(a) Provisions

2020

§ million

Provisions for asset decommissioning obligation

AR January D54
Additonal provisions made 1mo
Provisiors utlised 3

At 31 Decembar 1.121

Under SoCA provision which represents the best estimation of expendiure required o setile asset decommissioning
abligation has to be made 1o the exient that HiK Eleslric incurs an obligation for the costs of dismanlling and
remaving proparty, plant and equipment and resioning the sies on which they are located either when the assets am
acquired or 85 8 consequence of having used them during a particular period for elecincily-relaled activiies,
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{b) Lease liabilities

The fallowing table shows he remaining conlractual matunties of the Groups” lease kabililes ai the end of the
curant and previous reporting panods

2020 2M8
Present Present
value of the valua af the
minimum lease Total minimum  mineum lease  Tolsl minemum
payments lease payments payments  Igase payments
S million % million S mallion £ millon
Within 1 year 1 1 2 2
Aftar 1 year bul within 2 years 1 1 1 1
2 2 3 3
Less tolsl fulre mierest expensas - -
Present value of lease fablties 2 3
239, Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial position
{a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position

2020 2019
5 million S million

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 452 547
Balance of Profils Tax pravidion relating 1o prias year B9 mn
541 577

(b} Deferred tax liabilities

2020 019
5 million 5 millicn
Daterred tax liabilibes 9,587 9,540
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased i Hang Kong dollam whless ofisrwise afed’}

29, Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

{lj  The components of deferred tax Labililea/assats) recognised in the consoldated statement of finaneial position
and the movements durmg lhe year are as foliows:

Depreciation
allowances Fuel Defined
inexcessof Clause benefit
the related Recovery  relirement
5 million depreciation Account schames Others Total
At 1 Jaruary 2018 0,540 {141} ) (21) 0353
Charged lo profit or loss 27 | & 1 67
Charged io olher comprehansye
incoma - - LF) 8 120
At 31 December 2019 and
1 Janusary 2020 9,573 {1am 16 58 8,540
Chargedcredied] to proft or less 138 [24) L] 12) 116
Charged'icrediad) o other
comprehensiye income - - 14 (81) (&7}
Charged directly in equily - - - 8 E
M Dooerwber 2020 - 5l LA % L} ST

(i) The Greups had no maledal unprovided deferred lax assels of kabilities a4 &l 31 Decambar 2020 and 2018,
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30. Capital, roserves and dividonds

{a) Movements in components of equity
The reconcikabon babavean Ihe opanng and elosing balances of each component of the Groups® consalidaled equity
s w6t out in the consalidated staterment of changes in equity. Delails of the changes in the Company’s mdividual
components of equity batweean the beginning and the end of the year Bne el out below;

The Company

Proposed!
Share Share Hedging Revenus declad
expital ERUmM  meserve inole Tesane dividiend Tedal
§ millon frote 300]  frote 334e) W ot NN (rele 1)
Batncs al 1 Jaruary 201% ] 4r4n -] 125 1,178 51562
Caanges in quly for 200
Priofit fox the yes - - - 2072 - 2512
Dhér comprifndivs NOoMe - - @1 - - Fit]
Tokdl comprehensig neome - - (il m - 2851
Sacord inteem dredand i respedt ol
previous year approved and paid
(e nale 14e)) . . - - (1778 {1,778}
First ietenie dedend pad (5en nole 14{b)) = = = {1,408 = {1408
Propesed second infarm dvidendl
(6o ol 148N = = - (142 1422 -
Balance af 31 Decamber 2019 and
1danuary 2020 B £1412 B a7 1422 51347
Changes in squiy for 2020
Prafi for the year = = 5 3981 = 3061
(rirer comprahernne ncome - = [335) - - [335)
Tokal comprehensive income - - (338 L8 - 2828
Sacord imenm dvdend in respect of
previous ‘per approved and pesd
s ot 4j25) - - - - {1,428 {1428
Firs! inferim dimcerd paid {362 nele 1403} = = - 11,408) - 1,408)
Peoposad second e dwdeng
12 ot 14{b) - - - 1!_.92_] 1_.1_.!'! -
Sbmooe 2l 1 Desembw 240 i LINE (il e 12 i o

Allalthe Company's share premium and revenue resernve is avallable for distribution. The Company Board declared
the payment of a second inlerim dividend of 1609 cents (2019: 16.09 cenis) per ordinary share, amounting o
51,422 mallion (2015, 51,422 million], in Beu of a fnal dwvidend and therefore no Tinal dividend was proposad by the
Company Board.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expressed in Hang Kong dollars wnless ofersise indcaled)
30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(b) Share capital

Tha Company

2020
NHumber of Shares. Nominal value
$
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of $0.0005 each
At 1 January and 31 December 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
Preference shares of 50,0005 each
At 1 January and 31 December 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of $0,0005 sach
At 1 Jamuary and 31 December B.836,200,000 4 418,100
Preference shares of 50,0005 each
At 1 January and 31 Dacember B,026,200,000 4,418,100
2018
MHumber of Shares Mominal value
]
Authorised:
Cudinuery shares of 30,0005 each
A1 1 Jenuary and 31 Decembar 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
Praference shanas of 30 0005 each
A1 1 January and 31 Decembar 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
lsswed and fully paid
Ordinary shares of $0.0005 each
AL January and 31 December B,B38 200,000 4.418,100
Preference sharas of $0.0005 each
Al 1 Jenuary and 31 December §,836.200,000 4.416,100
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Share premium

Share premium regresents the excess of Share Slapied Unil ssuing price over he nominal values of erdinary and
preference shares, after deducting underwnling commessions and lising expensas pursuant o global offering that
have been charged o equity. The appbcatan of share premsum is governed by Section 34 of Cayman Companies
Law and the provisions of Company's amended and restated Memorandum and Aricles of Association.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i Hedging reserve

Thie hiedgang resendag includes cash Now hedge meservwe and cost of hedgang resenve. The cash Now hedgs resene
compnses the effectve porbion of the cumulative net change in the tax value of hedgng mstruments usad in
cash fow hadges (ne? of any defered tax effect) panding subsequent recognition of the hedged cash fiow in
accardance wilth the accounting policy adopled for cash flow hedges in nole 3(g){i). Under HKFRS 8, Financial
Insiruments, it e Groups exclude the Torwand elemient of forward contracis and the foreign curmency bass
spread of financial instruments (the "exduded alemends”) from the designation of the hedging insinimants,
Ihen the excluded alaments may be ssparataly sccounted lor s eost of hedgng. The fair valus changes af the
exciuced slemants are recognised in-a separale comporent of equily as cost of hedging resarve to the axtent
that it relales to the hedged dems.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

{d) Matwure and purpose of reserves (continued)
(i} Hedging reserve [continuad)

The fobowing tables provide a reconciiation of the components in hedging resenve and an analysss of olhar
comprahansive income by risk category thal anses lrom hedge accounting:

{1) Cash flow hedge reserve

Interest Gurrency

5 mullon rate risk risk Total
Balance a! 1 January 2019 136 5) 1
Effective porlion of changes n fair value of hedging

instruments recognised in olher comprehansive income 4) (1 5
Reclassification adjustments for amounts transfemed 1o

prafit or loss (see note 1 below) [51) - 51}
Met delemed tax crediled o other comprenensive income 6 - ]

{49y {1 150

Amounts transfemed to the ininal camying amount of

hedged ilems, net of tax (see nole 2 balow) = (B} (&)
Balance at 31 December 2019 and

1 January 2020 (sen note 3 baiow) a7 12§ 5

Effectvwe portion of changes in fair value of hedging

insbruments recognised in ofther comprehensive income (864) To4 {165}
Reclassification adjusiments for amounts fransferred 1o

profit or loss (see note 1 balow) a4 (27) 17
et daferred tao credited{charged) lo other

comprehsnsive income 81 [112) (31}

(744 EES (179}

Amounts ransfered Lo the nikal carmyng amount of

hedged items, nat of tax (s2e nole 2 below) - (25) (25)
Balance at 31 December 2020 (see note 3 below) {B657) 528 {129)

Hote 1 Amounis reclassified 1o prodit of loss are mecognised in the “Finance cosis” ine fem in e congoldaded
statoment of profit or loss.

Hote 3 Amounis ramsiemed io the indial carmying amount of hedged fems are recogresed in the “Property. plant
and squipment” or "Ivveniones” Bne Bems n the consobdaled statement of financial position

Hate 3 Theenbre balance relaies o continuing hedges.
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{2) Costof hedging reserve

Fareign
curmreney
basis Forward

5 millicn spread clement Total
Balance at 1 January 2010 85 (280} {185)
Hedging for lime-penod related hedged dems
- Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging

nsiruments recognised in olfver comprehensive iNcome (16) G616 600
- Reclassification adjustments for amounts transfarred 1o

prafit or loss (4 note 1 belaw) - (53} (63)
Hedpging for transacton related hedged ilems
- Effectve portion of changes in fair value of hedging

instruments: recogrised in other comprehenshe Noome = (27} [
- Amounts transferred fo the initial carmying amount of

hedged dems (sea nole 2 below) - B ]
el deferred lax creditedi{charged) (o olher

comprahensiva income 3 (BT) [B4)
Balance at 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020 (sea nole 3 below) B2 167 249

Hedging for lime-period related hedged ilems
= Effective porion aof ehanges in fair valse al hedging

msiruments recognised in other comprehensive ncome {120} (4ET) (EOTH
= Reclassification adjustments fod amounls ansberred (o

profit or ks (e note 1 below) - (63 B3}
Hedging for transaction relaied hedged ilems
- Effective portion of chanpes in fair value of hedging

nstruemants recognisad in olhor compeshensive incoma - (6} 6}
= Armounis transfered bo the intial camying amound of

hedged fems (see node 2 balow) - &5 65
Het doferred tox credited 1o other comprehensive income 20 ez 12
Balance at 31 December 2020 (e nofe 3 balow) (18} [232) {250}

Mate 1 Amcunts reclassificd o profif or loss ane recognised n the “Finance costs” Ing ilem in e consoidaied
etatément of profit or loss.

Note 2 Amounts tranetemed to the inifisl carmying amount of hedged ilems ane reoognisd in e “Property, plant
and equipment” of “irverdonss” ine bams in the consoldated statement of fnancal position

Moz} Th bal foconlinuing hedges
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

30.

Capital, roserves and dividends (eontinued)

(d) Mature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(e)

[ii} Reavenua resarn/e

The revenus reserve compnses the accumulated profis retained by the Company and its subsidisnes and
accumulaied actuarial gainsfosses on remaaswremen of nel defined benef assetliability of HE Electric

Capital management
The Groups pnmaey obyectives when managing capilal are.

- to safoguard the Growps® abiity to confinue as a going concamn, so that the Groups can confinue 1o provide
relurns for holders of Share Stapled Units and benefits for obher siakeholders;

- fo provide relums 1o holders of Share Slapled Units by secunng access to finance al a reasonabls cost,
= tosuppor the Groups' stability and future growth; and
- o pravide capitad for the purpose of strengthendng the Growpa' risk management capability.

The Groups activaly and regulary review and manage the capital struciure, 1aking into consideration the future
copilal mequinements of the Groups and copited efficiency, lorecas! profitabilfty, forecast operating cosh fiown. fonscast
capital expenciture and projected investment oppariunies.

Tha Groups monitor the capital structure on the basis of a net debl-io-net takal capital rate. For this purposa the
Groups define nel delbit as inberesi-beanng borrowings (as shown n he consoldaled staberment of financial position)
less bank deposils and cash. Net lotal capial includes net debl and equsty which comprises all components of equity (s
sheswn in the eonsalidated sistement of Rnanzial position).

DQuring 2020, the Groups™ strategy, whach was unchanged from 2018, was 1o control the Groups' level of debl in
arder to secure access ko finance al a reascnable cost. In order lo maintain or adusi the leved of debt, the Groups
may adjust the amount of distribubons pasd bo holders of Share Stapled Uinils in acoordance with the Trust Desd,
s niw Share Staoled Lnils, raise new debl fingncing or sell assets to reduce debl
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The net debd-to-net 1otal capital ratio at 31 Decamber 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

2020 019

& million $ million

Bank leans and other interest-beanng bomowings 44880 43012
Bank overdrafts — ursecured - 3

Liess: Bank deposits and cash (52) {209)
Mat dabt 44 838 42,748
Tolal equity 47,743 48472
Met debt 44 838 42,748
Met folal capdtal 82,581 81,218
Mt debt-to-net total capital rat 48% 47%

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments

The Groups are axposed o credit. liquidity, interest rle and cumancy risks in the nomal cowrse of #s business. In
eccordance with the Groups' ireasury policy, derivative financial instrumends are only used io hedge fis exposure lo foreign
exchange and mberest rale rsks ansing from cperational, financing and invesiment activities, The Groups da not hald ar
Iesue demvative financial inslruments for rading or speculative purposes.

{a) Credit risk

The Groups' credil risk is pimarnly altnbutable (o rade and clher recenvables relating 1o electncly customers, bank
depesits and over-the-counder dervative financial instruments entered ino for hadging purpeses. The Groups have a
credit poficy In place and the exposures io fese credit risks are mondloned on an onpoing basis.

Im respect of irade and ofher receivables relaling ko electricity cusiomers, HE Eleciric obtains collateral in ihe form of
secutity deposds or bank guasanees from customers in accosdance with the Supply Rules. The collateral covered
5283 million of trade and ather recevables 8131 December 2020 (2019: 5353 milion). The credd policy i3 set oul in
mole 21,

The Groups have defined minimum credit rating requrements and transackon limits for countarpartes when dealing
i financial derivatives oe placing deposits fo minimise credt exposure. The Groups do nol expect any counterpasty 1o
T o Mt it obligations.

The Groups have no signdicant concentrations of credit risk in respect of irade and ciher receivables relabng lo
electricily customers, as the five largest customers combined did nol exceed 30% of the Groups' tolal revenue
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

31. Financialrisk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

{a) Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposwes 1o aredil sk = represanted by the earmang amoun! of each Anansial assal, including
dervative financial instruments, in the consolidated slatement of financial position.

Furthar quanhtatree disclosures in respect of the Groups' exposure to credit risk ansing from brada and ather
receivables ane sslout nnote 21,

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Groups' denvative fransactions are axecuted wilh financaal institubons and governed by edher Intemational
Swaps and Derivalaes Association Master Agreemants ("ISDA") or the general ferms and condiions of these financial
ins$iutions, with a conditional right of set off under cartain circumstancas thal would result in all outstanding
transactions being terminaled and net setied,

A Ihese financial inslitubons currently have no legal anfarcasble mght to sat ol the recognised ameunts and the
Groups do not intend 1o setile on a nel basis of 1o realise te assels and sedlle the Eabilities simulanecusly, all such
financial matruments are recorded on gross basis at the end of the reporting penod.

The folipwing lable presents the recogresed fnanciel instruments that are subject o enforceable masler natling
arrangements bul are not offsat al tha end of the reporting peniod

nN bl
Grasy Gy
arounts ol amguns of
finaneial financl
instruments inaburtch
] Reiates nie R
coniclidated firancal conoidaied fisancal
siabaminl  insinaments aislemant of i
of financial  that ans not fransdl  haterenol
§ milion bagts pesibizn offsst  Nel amount posbon oflset  Netemount
Financial xxsets
Crovis cumaicy swaps 1) - - - Y i =5
Fsresl rae w0 nin - = - bi | ] ki
Forwand formgn muchangs confracts um My il 18 41 [rad -]
Tolal iH] 433 150 L] (3] &3
Financtal ltatilties
Croet cumtancy svagn i & x5 " % = =
Ibates] re SeE0s Il v ] 2ln] = = =
Forwand e enchangs coninacs ) 13 14y 1 = (52 1
Tolal Teo g} E 5 | 1
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{b) Liquidity risk

The Groups opesate a central cash management system in order 1o achieve a batter contrel of sk and mnimise (he
costs of funds. The Groups' pobcy i5 1o regulasty manior curren] and expecied liqusdity requirements and compliance
with loan covenanis, to ensure that the Groups maintain sufficien? reserves of cash and adequate commitied lines

of funding to maat iquidity requirements in the shorl and longer term. The Groups had undrawn commitied bank
facilties of 55,150 million at 31 December 2020 (2019: 55,950 million ).

The follawing lables show the remainng corlractual maturties al the and of the reporting penod of the Groups® non-
derivalive financial labdites and dedvative financal instruments, which afe based on conlraciual undiscounted cash
fiowse (including interest payments compuled using contractual rates of, if floating, based on rates curent al the end of
the reporiing period) and Be ebrliest dale the Groups can be requited bo pay.

bl
Cortractualundiscounted cash cutfizeesinfiows|
More than lizrg than
Witkin 1 o bt 2y bl Camying
1 yearee less Ban less. tan e P wmeuitt o
§ milon | on demasd 2years HTT Syears Totd 3 December
Nenderivative firascal liabdies
Bk leans and ol Bomowings and
el acchie 3 L 1 a4ME e 45808
Crodilrs nd aowrued chamgss b1 - - - e %
15 LI 1W5 LG £412 A75E
Dertvative firaecial mstruments
et settied
et 1es mamgs Gl redalad mirest e 13 13 k] m L] (23]
(Giays seltied
Crats ooty Svaps nd rodaiad inferest oy ]
= utfiow vl Wl L] 205 1.3
= rfiw (158 {15) (= # 1185
Ferwart It dncharge ey bebd
tishiowhidgng meuments J15
- outflrw’ 185 & ] 750 Wi
=i fra el (55 e} TTE R
Oherbreadimegnanhangs confracs: H
- outfirw' m 168 n - =
- rflow k] i [ = 24
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expsmased i | {ang Kong dollam whless ofsnviss indcaled)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

21
Conieackal undscaeniad cash eiowninkeas)
More fan Mere han
Wit 1 yeae bt Iyeayht Camrg
1pearer mtan esitn Wate than moria i
S Oed  dpm  Gen S T Do
Hoee-derivarive inanzial dabénes
Rardk bt ] ety beviowiegs aad
el schy T 15883 am I 55825 Q15
Bark cverafts - secud n - - - 4] n
Dondroiy ind s ehadges 274 . - - AT 114
507 15683 am 3888 el £y
Dersvatve Franzialingtisenty
Wt 3ekied
inteemni e g e aisied et pcremly i) 8 m T 5] [r
Gros seffied
Cooma curreecy st anch islater] kvl erims -1
- outos m m 511 B 130
=itk Him 184) 5t =l (R
Forward torege iaciange corrach et o8
g Aw hedgrg raTUTENS: .}
- puion 1488 ] ] 18758 1854
- inow 2427 ey Fad (52 2
Ot i v exchirge coftracts: @
- uttow Tl - - - "
- wlgw i) = - . {3

424/530



)

EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Oooooooooooooooooad

Interest rate risk

The Groups are exposed 1o interest rate risk on ils inlerest-bearing assets and lisbiliies. Interest rate sk is the sk
that the far value o fubure cash flows ol a financzal instrument will flucluate because of changas iIn markal iMenes)
rates. The Groups' interest rale risk arises prmarily from long-lerm extemal bormowings.

(i)

Hedges of interest rate risk

The Groups® policy s ko maintain a balanced combmabion of fixed and variable rate bormowings 1o reduce its
Irleres! rabe reek exposure. The Groups also LS8 CRORS CUMency Swaps and inleresl rabe Swaps i manage e
exposune in accorcance with the Groups' freasury poscy.

Tha Groups classify cross cumancy $waps and inlenest rale swaps as cash flow of fair value hedges and slalbes
them at fair value in accordance wih the policy set out in note 3(g). Foreign cumency basis spread of cross
currency swaps ane excluded from the designabion of the hedging instrument and are separately accounied far
86 a cost of hedging, which =5 recognised in equity in a cost of hadging reserve

The Growps seek o hadge the banchmark interest rele component only and apply & hedge ratio of 1:1. Tha
mxigtence of an economic relationship bebween the cross cumency swapsfinterest rale swaps &nd (be ixed and
vanabie raie borrowngs 1s determined by maiching their criical contract terms, including the reference inferest
rales, tenors, inlerest repricing dates, malunty dates, inleres! payment andior receipl dates, the notional
amounts of thea swaps and the outstanding principal amounts of the bomowings.

The hedge meflactiveness in these hedging relabionsheps can anise from:

- the effiact of the countafparty and the Groups® own cradit sk on the fair value of the swaps. and

- differences in repricing dates between the swaps and the bomowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

{e} Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii} Inferest rate profile
The folowing table delails the inlerest rale profile of the Groups' nel inlerest-beanng assets and kabilties a1

the end of the reporling peried, afler laking inlo account the efect of cross currency swaps and inberest rate
swaps designaled as cash fow o fair value hedgng instruments (sea (i) above).

2020 2018
Weighted Weighted
average average
Interest irlarest
rate % 4 million rale % 5 million
Net fixed rale assels/{liabilities)
Deposits wilh banks and
piher financial instiubons - - 261 263
Bank loans and othar barrowings 287 {36,856) 3oz (30,224)
(38956 @
Met variable rate assets/(liabilities)
Cash at bank and in hand 0.03 52 0.03 3G
Bank loans and other borrowings 0.50 (T.834) 318 (12, 788)
Bank overdrafis — unsecured - - 5.00 (33}
Gustomers’ deposits - (2.268) . 2.241)
{10,150} (15,0:26)

= Lessthan( 0%
(i} Sensitivity analysis

At 31 Decamber 2020, it is estimaled that a general increasa/decrease of 100 basis points in interest ratas,
with all ather vaniables held constant, would have decreasedincressed the Groups' profit after taxation and
revenie resenve by approximately S84 milion {2018 5128 million). Ciher components of consalidated equity
would have increased/decreased by approximately 8570 milbon (20°10; $522 milicn ) in response jo the general
Increaseidecioase inmtorcal rales

Thes sensiinaty analysis abeand hiks been debermingd assurng thal the changs = intersst rates had ocewrsd &l
tha end of the reporing pencd and had been applied io the exposure o interest rate sk for both dervative
and non-dervative inancial instruments in existence al that dabe. The analyss has been perfommed on the same
basis s for 2019,
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(d) Currency risk

Tive Groups are exposed o currency fsk primanty Seough purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a
curency olher than the funchonal currency of the Groups The currencies giving nise 1o thes nsk are pnmanly Unifed
States dolfars and Japanese Yen.

(i)

Hedges of currency rnisk

The Groups' policy is 1o hedge 100% of thesr foreign curmency borowings and 1o hedge their estimated foreign
CUMMBNCY BXPOSUES i Mespact of forecas! purchases in acoondance wilh thewr treasury policy. The Groups use
farward foreign exchange confracts and roses currency séaps lo manage curmency risk and classify as cash flow
or lar value hedges and stales them al lair value in accordance with the palicy s&t oul in note 3(q). The Groups
designate the spot element of forward foreign exchange contracts 1o hadge tha Groups' currency risk. The
farward ebements of forsard exchange confracts are excluded from the desgnation of the hedging instumant
and are seporalely sccounted for as a cost of hedging, which is recognised n equily in a coat of hedging
resenve. The Groups’ policy ks for the critical terms of the forward exchange confracts (o align wilh the hedged
ibern

The Groups apply @ hedpe ralio of 1.1 and debermine the exiglence of an economic relasanship bebwean the
forward exchange conlracts end the committed and forecast fransactonsforeign cumency bormowings based
on thelr currency amounts and the Bming of thew respective cash Nows.
The hedge mefiectiveness in these hedging relabionsheps can anse from:;

- the effect of the counlerparty's and the Groups' own eradit Ask on the lair value af the forsvard foreign
exchange conlracts, and

- changes in the timing of the hedged transactions.
Tha Groups® borrowings ane aither hedged nbo Hong Kong dollars by ways of forward foreign exchange

conbracts and cro8s currency swaps or danominated in Hong Kong dollars. Given this, the manapement doas
nol expect thal there would be any significent cumency risk associated with the Groups” bormawings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)
31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)
[ii} Exposure to currency risk

The following table detalls the Groups' exposure atthe end of the reporting period to currency sk ansing from
recognised assels or labilities denominaled in a cumency other than the funcbonal cumency of the Groups.

2020

‘milbon (expressed n original currencies uso JPY
Trade and other payibies dnd contiac) kabiiies (T4) (3,260)
Bank loans and othar borrowings {2.208) -
Gross exposure arising from recognised assels and liabilties (2.283) (3.260)
Notional amounts of forward foreign exchange contracts designated

a8 hedging instuments 1,278 2,966
Nobonal amaunts of cross curmency swaps designated as hedging

ingirumants as0 -
Met exposure ansing from recognised assats and labilties (54) (284

2018

‘million (expressed in original cumencies) LD JFY
Bark deposits and cash - 13
Trade and other payables and contract liabilites (83} 11,634}
Bank loans and othar bormowings (2,243) -
Gross exposure arsing from recogresed assets and liabdibes {2.332) {1,821}
Nelional amounts of forward laregn exchanpe contracis designated

as hadging instruments aar 1,566
Nebonal amounts of aoss currency sweps designated as hedging

Instrumenis 1,500 -
Het exposure arsing from recognised assets and liabdites {5} (255)
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Sansitivity analysis

The following Lable indicates that a 10 percent slrengihening n Ee following cunency agamnst Hong Kong
defars at the end of the reporting penod would have ncreasad/{decreased) the Groups profit after laxation (and
revenus reserve) and other compenents of consolidated equity.

2020 2018

Effecton Effecton
profit after Effecton profit after Effecton
taxation and othar taxation and ather
revenue components nevenue componenls
ressve of equity rRsErn ol equity
Increasel Ivcreasel Increnssl Inerease)
& million (decrease] {decreasa) (decrease) (decreass)
Japanese Yen 19 21 g ar

A 10 percent weakening In the above currency against Hong Kong dollars at the end of the reparting peried
would have had an equal bul opposite effect on the Groups® profil after laxation jand revenue reserve) and
olher camponants of consalicated equity

This sensillvily analysis assumes Lhal ihe change in loreign exchange rates had been spplied 1o re-measure
thoss fimancsal instruments hald by tha Groups which expose the Groups to currancy ek a1 the and of the
reporting pencd, and thaf all eiher vanables, in partcular mterest rabes, remain constant. In this respecs, it is
assumed thal the pegged rale between the Hong Kong doliar and the United Stales dollar would be materially
unaffacted by any changes in mowvemant in value of the Uniled States dollar against other currencies. The
analysis has been performed on the same bases as for 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(e} Hedge accounting

The fallvadng lables summarse he hedging instrurmants, hedged dems and hadged risks of the Groups for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2018.

(i} Cath fiow hedgas
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

() Hedgeaccounting{continued)

[iy Fair valus hodges
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Note: Thi following table provides information on the weighted averape contract rades of outstarding foreard forsign
‘axchange coniracts at the end of the reporting paniod:

2020 2010
Weighted awirage contracl rales
USD:HKED T.4985 TABBS
JPYHED 2.07T78 0.0758
GAPHKD 10.0806 -
EURHKD BATTS 82545
JPTUED 1040172 102.2087
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

31. Financialrisk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

The fallswing table presents the fair vaiue of the Groups' fnanclal nabruments moasuned &t the end of the reponing
penod on a recuming basis, categonised inlo the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Far Value
Maasurement, The level ino which a fair velua measurement i dassiied s determined with reference 1o the
absenvabdity and significanc of the mputs used in the valuation technique as lollows:

- Level 1 valuations: Faif value measured using only Level 1 inputs |e. unadjusted quated prces in aclive markats
for idanlical financial assets or liabiliies ai the measwemanl date

= Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i, observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not wsing significant unchservable inputs. Uncbsenvable mpuls are inputs for which markel data is not
available

- Lewel 3 valuations: Fair value measwed using significant unobservable inputs

(i} Recarring fair valesmaeasurements
Lovel2
2020 2019
Mote 5 million 5 million
Finaneisl assats
Dermvalive financial instruments
— Cross cumency swags J(a) - 04
- Inberest rate swaps aa) - a0
= Forward foreign exchangs contracls Hm) G198 411
619 T35
Financial liabilities
Derrvative financial Insbruments:
= Closs cumency swaps Iia) 5T -
= Interest rate swaps I(a) 628 -
= Forward loreign exchengs contracls 3ja) 15 53
Madasm tarm notes subject to fair value hedgas =- 4,341
700 4394
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(W} Falrvaives of Ninancial assets and llabilties camed at other than falr valueg

Trade and oflser iecalvables, lrade and oller payabies and contract kabities, and &lso exlemal bomowings
are camed at cost or amortised cos! which ane nol madenally differend from thair fair values as at
31 December 2020 and 2019,

(i} Valvation technigues and inputs in Level 2 fair value measurements
The fak values of forward loreign exchanpe conlracts are determined using forward exchange market rales al
the end of th repoming period. The Tait valies of cross curmency Swaps and intefea rabe Swaps are dabarmindd
by discounting the future cash flows of the contracts at the cumant market interest rales.

Tha fair values of medium Berm notes are estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at
current markel nberest rates for semilar financeal imstruments

32. Commitments

() TheGroups capital commitments outstanding &t 31 December and not provided for in the financial statements were

g follows:
2020 2018
5 million 5 millign
Contracted bor:
Capital expenditure for propery, plant and equipment 7.140 5465
Authonsed bul not conracted fior;
Capslal expendilure for progerly. plant and egupment 14,300 18.412

[0y At December 2020, the Groups’ share of capital commitrmenis of a joint venture was 5343 milkon (2018 528 millon ).

Al 31 December 2020, the Groups' share of the lease and ather commitments of a joint venture approxomated 1o
51,970 million [2019: 51,170 millian],

33. Contingent liabilitins

At 31 December 2020, the Groups had no guarantee of indemnity o extemal parties (2010; Mil),
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expressed in Hang Kong dollars wnless ofersise indcaled)
4. Material related party transactions

The Groups had the following material transactions with related parties duging the year:

{2} Holder of Share Stapled Units
Suppart sarvice charge recovered from Power Assets group

(theroperating cosls included supportsenvice charge recovered from Power Assets group amounting o

541 million (2019 541 milion) ke provision of the suppon services and olfios faclibes 1o Power Asaats group. The
suppor service charge was based on the folal costs incurmed in the provision aor procurement of the provision of the
serveces and facilitsas and allocated 1o Power Assels group on 8 fair and equitable basis, taking nto account the ime
spant by the relevant personnel when praviding such servicas

At 31 Decamber 2020, the total outstanding balance recenvabla from Power Assets group was 54 million (2019
53 millkon).

(b} Joint venture

il Thadetails of Sharehalder Loan Faclity provided io HELTL by the Groups and fhe culslanding lsanbalance as
at31 December 2020 are gisclosed in note 19,

(il Interest incoma recaivediveceiveble from HELTL in respect of the Shareholder Loan Facilty amounted to
56 million (2019 5243.,000).

(i) Under a Jainl Development Agreament antared infa between HK Electrie, CAPCO and HELTL for (he
developmant of LMG terminal, H¥ Electric and CAPCD will parform project management and provide supports
toy HELTL in the developmant and conatruction of the LNG terminal, In 2020, HKLTL resmbursed related costs of
56 million (2015 57 million) o HK Electric

(¢} Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions
The relaled parly transsctons in respect of note 34(a) above conslitule continuing connacled trarsactone as defined

in Chapter 144 of the Lsting Rules. However, the transacbons are exemipt fiom the desclosune requinements in
Chapter 144 of the Listing Rukes.
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33. Statement of financial position of the Company

2020 2019
Hole 5 million 5 million
Non-gcurrent assets
Invesbkments in subsidaries 60,3138 60,041
Dervvative Bnancial inslruments - B
60,338 60,040
Current assels
Trada and other receivables 41 i
Bank deposits and cash 1 2
a2 [
Currentliabilities
Trade and other payables (14) 125}
Current portian of hank bans {2.688) -
12.712) [25)
Net current liabilities {2,670} (15}
Tolal assets less current liabilities 57.668 60030
Non-gurrentliabilities
Bank keans 5. 588) (8.683)
Desrvative financial instruments [32T) -
{6.325) (8.883)
Net assets 51,343 51,347
Capital and reserves Hia)
Share capdal ] B
Resenves 51,335 51330
Tatal equity 51.343 51.347

Approved and authonsed Tor issue by the Boards on 18 March 2021

Wan Chi Tin Chan Lad Shun
Dhirecfar Dirdclor
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE TRUST AND OF THE COMPANY

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

36.

ar.

Substantial holders of Share Stapled Units of the Trust Group

The Share Stapled Units of the Trusi Group are listed on the Main Board of the Siock Exchange and are widsly hald by

b pubse, Powes Assets, Stabe Gnd Corporation of China and Qakar Investment Authanly hold approcimalely 33 37 %,
21.00% and 19.00% of the msued Share Stapied Uinits respectively as al 31 December 2020 and are consdered substantial
haolders of Share Stapled Units of the Trus! Group.

Critical accounting judgemants and estimates

The methods, eslimales and judgements the Diecices used in applying the Groupa' Becounting policies have a sgnilicant
impact on the Groups’ financial postion and operabng results. Some of the accounting pofickes require the Groups to
apply eshmates and judgements on matiers thal are inherently uncertan. in addibion to notes 27 and 31 which contain
enformation aboul the assumplions and their risk factoss relating to valuation of defined benefil retirement scheme asscls
and Sabilities and financial instruments. cettan critical accounting judgements in applying the Groups' accounting policies
are desonbed bskow

(&) Depreciation and amortisation

Proparty, planl and equipment are depreciated on a straighl-lme basis over their esliimated useful lives afler taking
into account the estimated resicual value. The Groups review annually the useful ife of an assel and its residual
value, if any. Interasts in leasehod land are amortised on a straight-ine basis over the sharter of the estimaled useful
lives of the leased assets and the unexpired lease lerm. Bobh the period and methods of amoriisation are reviewed
annually. The depreciabion and amodisation expenses for fulure peiods ane adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimales.

(b} Impairment

The Greups reviesw al the end of each reponing penod 1o identily any indication thal the Groups' propery, planl
and equepment and inlenests in leasehold land may be empaired and test annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impainment in sccordance with the accounting policy (see mate S(hlil)

In conssdenng the impairment losses thal may be required for the property, plant and equipmienl. inberests in
leasehold land and goodwil of the Groups, thesr recoverable amounts need (o be delermined. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value n use, |t is dificult to preciely asbmate
the fairvalueloss costs of disposal bacause quotad market prices for these assets may not be readily available. In
detarmining the value in use, expeched cash lows generated by the assels or CGU to which the goodwill has been
allocaled are discounted 1o their present value, which requines significant judgement. The Groups use all resdiy
available information in detarmining an amount thalis a reasonabde approximation of the recoverable amount.

Any increase or decrease i impairment losses, recognised as sat out above, would affect the net profit in future
years.

See nole 17 for key sssumplions used i geodwill Impairment tesl for the year ended 31 December 2020,
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38. Possible impact of amegndments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yat effective for the year ended 31 December 2020

Up to the date of issue of thase financial statements, the HKICPA has issued & number of amendments to HEFRSs which
mre nol et eMeciive for the year ended 31 December 2020 and which have nol been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be relovant to the Groups.

Effective for

sccounting pericds

beginning on or after

= Amendments o HEFIRS 9. HKAS 33, HKFRS T, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Infeves! Rate 1 January 2021
Banchmark Refarm— Phase 2

= Amendments io HKAS 16, Propedy. Plant and Equipmerd: Procesds before lntended Lise 1 January 2022

= Annual Improvements fo HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cyde 1 January 2022

= Amendments Io HKAS 1, Classiication of Liabittes as Curen! or Mon-current 1 January 2023

= Hong Kong Inferpretabon 5 (2020), Presentaton of Fmancial Slalements — Classificabon by 1 January 2023

the Borrawer of 8 Tarm Loan tal Cenfaing & Repayment on Demand Clausa

The Groups ara 0 the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendmants is axpected to ba in the
period of inital apolication. So far it hes concluded that the adoption of the above is unlkely bo have a significant impact
on the Groups' resullts of operations and financial pesitkan,
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2021 12 31
114,828 1,795,910
66,435 1,039,043
48,393 756,867
8,836,200,000
/ 5.48 86
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
11,344 10,389 10,739 11,612 11,603
4,845 4,140 4,213 5,086 5,280
(800) (971) (1,004) (967) (848)
4,045 3,169 3,209 4,119 4,432
(735) (568) (614) (759) (794)
3,310 2,601 2,595 3,360 3,638
@) 131 (268) (309) (297)
HK
2,933 2,732 2,327 3,051 3,341
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
76,740 74,434 72,416 71,059 70,502
33,623 33,623 33,623 33,623 33,623
2,118 1,781 1,500 1,161 1,457
(3.470) (6,612) (8,069) (1,828) (1,900)
109,011 103,226 99,470 104,015 103,682
(59,553) (54,757) (50, 120) (54,624) (53,625)
(1,065) (726) (878) (648) (335)
48,393 47,743 48,472 48,743 49,722
8 8 8 8 8
48,385 47,735 48,464 48,735 49,714
48,393 47,743 48,472 48,743 49,722
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HEC
10
HEC 2019 2033 12 31 15
HEC
2021 2020
HEC
HEC HEC
HEC
HEC
HIBOR HEC
12 31 10
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

11,312 10,363 10,694 11,541 11,621 11,373 11,165 11,165 10,176 10,364
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HEC
10
12 31

477 278 42
...................................... 1 ,045 887 809 593 648 454 580 668 615 216
596 616 641 539 784 1,034 314 352 241 646

........................................ 620 .80 B2 ) LS8 5L ST LS LTS,
........................................ 28408 AT B ) e LTS3 L3
...................................... L)L L)L L0e ) 102 100s 1218 LSS 129 L0 ) 88
........................................ B2 1o e e L [ B2

33 51 207 33| 1,658 310 6,155| 4,620 1,060 8

(506) (541) (577) @37) (214) (351) (360) (219) (340) (330)
20,622) (9,930)| (14,207 (8,039) (o.611)| (11,037 (9,062)| (6,110) (2,924)| (7.952)
8.286) (8,222)[ (12,035) (5,993) (5.877)| (8.524) (870) 581 189 | (4,827)

53,187 49,996 43,248 46,892 46,049 42,935 49,506 50,799 50,182 45,380

Q@319 (1,122) (955) (747) (503)

47,925)| (45,463)| (38,364) (42,769) (41.667)| (38.831) (46,100) (47,1209)| (37.,872)| (30,465)

(1,050) (698) (848), (620), (316) (24) (204), (288) (36) (425),

€)) @® 14 ©) (€)) @ @ ® @

) 0) (16) @) 18) 14 (10) ®
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2013

2009-2018 2013 2014

2019

HEC
10

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

GT57 2020
L11 2022 GT57
GT57 2020 3,272
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Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited
HK
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited HK

HK
HK

183 17 1712-1716
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

KY1-1111 2681
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

183 17 1712-1716
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CCASS
CCASS CCASS
CCASS
CCASS

HK

HK

HK
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
38 59 131
23 103
KPMG 193
2022 31 15.64
2021 31

14.24
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HK
2021 12 31
2021 2020
2021 2020
178 182
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HK
2021 12 31
2021 2020
1 1
1 1
2021 2020
16 16
16 16
16 16
16 16
2022 15
178 182
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HK

2021 12 31
2020 1 - 1
2020
2020 12 31 2021 1 - 1
2021
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

[Expretsod i Hong Kong dollars

202 2020

Hote 5 L]

Revenue = &
A ministralive expenses =
Prafit bafore taxation 4 ==

Ircome tax g - -

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Thie notes on pages 178 o 182 form part of thess Rnancial statements.
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Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

A1 31 Destamit i
(Exprecsod i Hong Kong dollar)

2021 2020
hote 5 3
Current assets
Armount due from immediate holding company T 1 1
Mot assets 1 1
Capital and reserves
Shane cagetal & |
Fesenes = -
Total equity 1 1

Approved and authorned for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2022

Wan Chi Tin Chan Lai Shun
Drector Director

The notes on pages 178 1o 182 lorm part of these financial stalements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

For the gpar ended 31 Dederrber 20
[Expretsad i Hong Kong dollars)

Share capltal Reserves Total
5 4 5
Balamce at 1 January 2020 1 - 1

Changes in equity for 2030;

Prafit and total compeehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 1 - 1
Changes in eguity Tor 2021

Prefit and total comprehensiva ircome for the year - -

Balance at 31 December 2021 1 - 1

Thie notes on pages 178 o 182 form part of thess Rnancial statements.
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Financial Statements

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

For the yoar erded 31 December 20219
(Exprecsod i Hong Kong dollar)

2021 2020
5 3
Operating actlvities
Nt cash generated from oparating activitie -
Investing activities

Wi cash wsed In ivvesting actilies o

Financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities -

Het change in cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equavalems at T lanasary s

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Decembar =

The notes on pages 178 1o 182 lorm part of these financial stalements.
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178

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

[Expriciued i Hong Kong doflars unless otherase indicated)

1. General information

HE Electric Investrrents Manager Limnited (the “Cormpany ™) was incorporated in Hang Kang under the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance on 25 Sepltember 2013 and is an indirect whaolly-owned subsidiary of Power Assets, which is
incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on The S1ock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and waded in the form of
Amarican Depositary Receipts on the OTC Markets Group Inc. in the United S4atas. The address of the registered otfica and
the prncipal place of busines of the Compary 5 Hongkong Electric Centre, 44 Konnedy Road, Hong Kong,

The pringipal sctivity of the Compary is sdminktering HEK Elactric imvestmonts (thi “Trust™), in its capacity a
trustee-manager of 1he Trust. The Trust was constituted as a trust on 1 January 2014 by a Hong Kong law governed Trust
Deed entered into between the Comparry, as the rustee-manager of the Trust, and MK Clectric Imvestments Limited,

Thee costs and expenses of administanng the Trust may be deducted from all property and nghts of any kind whatsomer
which are held on trust for the registered holders of units of the Trust but, commensurate with its specific and Imited role,
the Compary will rot receive any fee for administering the Trust,

2. Significant accounting policies

{a) Statemant of campliance

Thisse financial statements hawe bepn prepansd in accordance with all applcable Hong Kong Fnancal Reposting
Standards {"HEFRSs"), which is a collective 12rm that includes all spplicabla indnidual Hong Kong Financdal Reporting
Stanedards, Hong Kong Accounting Stardards { "HIKASS" ) and Interpretalons sumed by the Hong Kong nstitute

of Certified Public Accountants ["HEICPA™ ], accounting pinciples generally accepled in Hong Xong and the
requirernents al the Hong Kong Companies Ordenance. These financial statements also cormply with the apobcable
disclosuro provisions of tho Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A
summary of the significant accounding policies scopted by the Company s set out below.

Thiz HKICPA has ssued a number of amendments 1o HKFRS: that am Test sfective of available for sarly adoption for
the curent accounting period of the Compary. Mote 3 prosades information on any changes in accounting poicies
resulting from initial applcation of these developments to the extent that they are relevant 1o the Company for the
current and pror accoumnting perncds reflected in these financial statemants
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Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements

The rmeasurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to mace judgements,
estamates and assumptions that affect the application of pobes s reported amaunts of assets, kabilities, Incomss
and axpenses. The estimates and asiotiated assumptions are based on histoncal expenence and vamoars other factors
thait are befsved to be reasonable under the Crowmstances, the results of which form the basts of making the
jretgamants about carmyng values of asets and Rabilities that are not raadddy apparent from athos sookees. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are revsewed on an ongoéng basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the penod in which the estimate is revited if tha revision alfacts only that pericd, or in the perod of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future pemods.

The Trust Deed requres the Company (on behalf of the Trust) to distrdwte 100% of the dividends, dstributions and
ather amounts recenved in respect of the ordanary shares from HE Electric vestments Limited, after deduction of all
amounts permitted 10 be deducted or pasd under the Trust Deed.

In accordance with the Trust Deed, a disteitcns staternent shall be included in the finanoal statements of the
Company. As the detads of the distrbution has already been presented in note 14 1o the consolbdated finandial

staternents of the Trust and of HK Elecine Imestmants Limited on page 123, no distnbutions statement is tharefore
presented in these Tnancial stalements.

Cash flow statement

The Company did not have any cash flows during the current and prioe years nor did it have any cash or cash
equivaients at any point throwghout the current and prior years,

Related parties
il A person of a close member of that persan’s family is related to the Company f that person;
(1) has control or joint control over the Company;

{2y has significant influenoe cver the Company; of

(3 1samember of the key management personnel of the Company or the Cormpany’s parent,

179
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180

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

(Expriciued i Hong Kong doflars unless othersse indicated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Related parties (continued)
{il}  An entity & related to the Company if any of the following conditions apply:

{1}  The entity and the Company are members of the same group {which means that each parent, subsidiany
and fellows subsidiary s related to the olhers),

(27 Oneentity 15 & jeint venture o an assockate of the other entity (or a joint venture o an asecate of a
member of a group of which ithe other entity is a member),

(3} Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party
(4} Ome entilty is a joint venlure of a third ertity and 1he other entity s an associale of the thid antity.

{8} The entity is a post-employment benelit plan for the benefit of employess of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company.

(&) The entity Is controlled or ointly controlled by a person identified in note 2{dii)

(7 A person identified in note 2{d)iN1) has significant influence over the entity or i5 a member of the key
management persannel of the entity {or of a parent of the entity)

(Bl The entity, or any member of a group af which it is a part, provides key management personnel senices
to the Company or to the Company's parenl

Close members of the famdy of a person ate those family members who may be expected 1o influence, or be
mfluenced by, that person m thesr dealings with the entity.

3. Changes in accounting policies

The HEICPA has issued a number of amendments to HEFRSs that are first effective for the current aoccounting period of the
Company, The adoption of these amendments 1o HKFRSs has no matenial impact on the Company’s financlal statements.

The Campany has not applied 2rmy new standard, amendmant or interpretation that i not effecthie far the current
accounting penad

4. Profit before taxation

Auditor's remuneration of $57,000 (2020; §57,000) and all ather expenses of the Company which were Incurred for the
acdrminstening of thwe Trust of §440,497 (2020: 3367274 for the year have been borme by HE Electric imastments Limitied,
which has waived its nght of recovery theraof,

Except for the above, the Company did not incur any admenistrative expenses dunng the current and pnor years.
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Financial Statements

Income tax

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financal statamsnts for the curent and price ywears as the
Company dxd not have any assessable profits.

Directors' emoluments
No diectors’ emokements is disciosed pursuant 10 section 38301) of the Hong Kong Campanies Ordinance and Part 2 of

the Comganies (Disclosure of imformation about Benefits of Diectors) Regulation, as no fees or other emoluments were
paid to the Drectors during the ourment and prior years

Amount due from immediate holding company

Amgunt due from immedeate bolding company s unsecured, mienest-free and repayable on demand,

Share capital
2021 2020
Number Rumber
of shares 5 of shares 3
Ordinary thares, lisued and fully paid:
At 1 fanuary ard 31 December 1 1 1 1

In accordanoe with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Crdinance, the ondinary shares of the Company do not have
a par value.

Capital management

The peimary obiectives of the Company when managing capital are to satequard the Compary's ability to continue as

a going concern, so that it can continue 1o provide retumns for the sole member and benefits for other stakeholders. As
the Compary is part of a langer group, the Cempany’s sources of additional capital and policies for distribution of excews
cagwtal may abko be affected by the group’s capital management objectives.

The Company defimes “capdtal® as including all components of equity. The Company actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure o support 15 futwe capital reqarrements and operations. The Compary has a specific and
limited role 1o administer the Trust. All its capliial requirerments are fully supported by the ultimate holding company,

The Company was not sulject to externally imposed capital requirernents dunng the curment and prior years.

181
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

(Expriciued i Hong Kong doflars unless othersse indicated)

182

10.

11.

12,

13.

Immediate and ultimate controlling parties
At 31 December 2021, the Directors corsider the immediate and ultimatle holding companies of the Company 1o be

Sure Grade Limited and Power Assets which are incorporated in the British Virgin lsland and Hong Kong, respectieely.
Posver Assets produces linancial staternents available for public use,

Financial risk management

The Company was not exposed to any significant credit, liguidity, interest rate and currency nsks in the normal cowrse of its
business during the current and prior years,

Material related party transactions

Except for the transactions and balances dsclosed dsewhene in the finanaal staterments, the Company did nat enter inta
matenal related party transacbons.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2027

Lip 1o the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments io HEFRSs
which arg not yet effecive foe the year ended 31 Decermber 2031 and which have not been adopted in these financal
saterments.

The Comipany is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected 1o be in the

pencd of inial application. 5o far, it has concluced that the adeption of them s unlkely 1o have a significant impact on
thie Compary's results of operations and financial position,
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

e yoar anded 31 Docen
[Exprassad in Hong Kong dollars)
2020 2019
Mate: $ ]
Revenue = -
Acdrranistratvie sxpenses -
Profit before taxation 4 =
Incams tax 5 -

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

The nates on pages 180 1o 183 form part of these financial statemants.,
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

Al 31 Decamber 2020
iExpressed in Haong Kang dolars)
2020 2019
Mote § ]
Gurrent assels
Amount due from immediate holding company T 1 1
Net assets 1 1
Capital and reserves
Share capital B 1 1
Restrves =) =
Total equity 1 1

Approved and authorsed far issus by tha Board of Directors on 16 March 2021,

Wan Chi Tin Chan Loi Shun

The notes on pages 180 (o 183 form parl of these Ninancial statements,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

For the year endad 31 December 2020
{Expragsad in Hong Kong doltare)
Share capital Reserves Total
_ 5 5 $
Balance a1 1 January 2018 1 - 1
Changes in equily for 2019
Profit and tolal comprebansive income for tha year - = =
Balance at 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2020 1 - 1
Changes.in equity for 2020
Proft and folal comprahensive income for the year = - -
Balance at 31 December 2020 1 - 1

The nabas on pages 180 1o 183 form pant of these finencial statemants
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

a year ended 31 Decamber 2020
iExpiessed ih Hong Kong dokars |
2020 019
_ $ s
Operating aclivities
Net eash genarated from operabing activilies - -
Investing activities
Met cash used in invealing achivities - =
Financing aclivities
Met cash used in fnancing activibes - -
Mot change in eash and cash equivalents - -
Cashand cash equivalents at 1 January - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -

The notes on pages 180 (o 183 form parl of these Ninancial statements,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

(Exprassad in Hong Mong dollats unless ciennss indaalsd)
1. General information

HI; Electiic Invesiments Manager Limiled (the "Company”) was incorporated in Hang Kong under the Hang Kong
Companies Ordinance on 25 Sepbember 2013 and is an mdinecl wholly-owned subsidiary of Power Assets, which is
inesparated in Hang Kang with is shares Isled on The Slack Exchangs of Hong Kong Limited dnd raed in te farm of
American Depositary Receipts on the OTC Markets Group Inc, in the Uniled States. The addess of the registered office and
ihe principal place of business ol the Company is Hongkong Eleclric Centre, 44 Kennedy Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activily of the Campany 1 adminsienng HE Ekecing Investmants (Ihe “Trust), in @8 capacly as
trustee-manager of the Trust. The Trus! was constiluled as a brust on 1 January 2014 by a Hong Kong law governed Trusl
Deed entered into between the Company, as the frustes.manager of the Trust, and HK Electnic Investmants Limited

The costs and expenses of administenng thi Trist may be deductid from all propeny and nghits of any kind whaltsossar
which are held on trust for the regestersd holdars of unats of the Tres! bul, commensurate with s spectic and lmded o,
ihe Company will not recedve any fee for administerdng the Trust.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Statementofcompliance

Thesa financial siatements have been prepared in accordance wilh all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"), which i$ a collecbve lerm thal inchudes all apphcabie individual Hong Kong Financisl Reportng
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ["HEASS") and Inferpretatons issued by e Hong Kong Inshitule

af Cartified Public Accountants ("HKICPAT), acceunting principles generally accepbed in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Keng Companies Ordinance. These financial slalements aise comply with the applicable
disdogsure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Secunties on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, A
surnmary of the significant accounting policies adopled by the Company is sal oul below

The HKICPA has issued a number of amentments i the Concaplusl Framework for Fnancial Reporting 2018 and
HHKFRSs that ars first efectve or available for early adaption for the current accounbing penod of the Company,
Beobe 3 provides informalion on any changes in accounting policies resulting fom initial application of hese
developmants 1o the axtent that they ame relevant 1o the Company hor tha current and pror sccountng penads
reflected in these finoncsal staternents

(b} Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements
The measurement basis usad in the praparaton of the financial statements i the histoncal cost basis.

The preparaton of financia! stalements n conformity with HKFRSs requires management o make judgements,
astimaies and assumplions that afecl the applcation of policies and reporied amounis of assels. kabidies, incomsa
and expenses. The estimales and associated assumpbons are based on histoncal experence and wanous other faclors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumsiances, the resulis of which foem the basis of making the
judpements about carmying values of assets and liabilties that are not readily apparant from othar sourcas. Actual
results may differ from these estimaies.

The estimates and undesiying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are

recognized in the penod in which the estimate & revised If the revision affects only that peried, or in the penod of the
revision and fulure periods if lhe revesion affects both current and fulure periods.
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The Trust Deed requires the Company (on behall of the Trust) 1o distribute 100% of the dividends, distributions and
othar amounts recaived in respect of the ondmary shares from HK Eleciric Imestments Limited, after deduction of all
amounis permtied 1o be ceducted or paid under the Trust Desad.

In accordance with the Tiesl Deed, a destribuions: statement shall be nduded in the fnancial statements of the
Company, As the details of the distribubon has already been prasented m node 14 o the consolidated finamcial

slatements of the Trust and of HK Elactnc Investmants Limiled on page 125, no disiributions statement is therefore
presented in these fmancial sialements.

Cash flow statement

The Company did nol have any cash Aows dunng the currend and prior years nos did it have any cosh or cash
equivalents al any poinl throughoul the cument and pior years

Related parties
{Ii A person of a cose member of thal person’s family is refated (o \he Company if thal person.

(1} has control or joint control over the Comgany,

{g) has significant influence over the Campany, o

[3) s & member of ihe key managemeant permsonnel of the Company or the Company's parent.
{0} An entily s relaled o the Cempany il any af the follawing condiions apply

{1} The entity and (he Company ane membars of the same group (which means that each parend, subsidiary
and feliow subsidiary ks related to the othars).

{2) Owme enbly is a joinl venlure or an assocale of the other enbly (or 8 joint venture or en assoclale of &
memier of a group of which the ofher entily i & memoer),

(3} Both entibes ane joir ventures of Be same third pay.
{4) Ome enily s 3 jonl wenture of a third enbty and the cther endity is an assoclate of the thind enbity,

(5} The entty is a post-employment benefit plan for the benafl of employees of ether the Company or an
enlity relaled to the Company.

(B}  The entiy s contrelied or jointly controlled by & person dentified in note 2{d){i)

(T} A parson identdied in note 2(d){iK 1) has signsicant influence aver the enlity or is a member of the key
managemeni personnel of the enbty (or of a parent of the entity).

(B) The entity, or any member ol & group of which A is a part, provides key management persannel sarvices
1o the Company or io the Company's parent.

Clpse members of (e farmily of @ person are thase family members who may be expected 1o influence, of be
mfuenced by, that peracn in their deaings with the entity,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

|Expreased in Hang Kong dollam whless sfsnvise indcaled)

3. Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has ssued a number of amendments to the Conceptual Framework far Financial Reporting 2318 and HEFRSs
Ihat are first elfective lor the curment accounbng pencd of the Company. The adaplion of these amendments 10 HKFRSS

has no material impact on the Company's financial statemants.

The Company has not applied any new standard, amendment or interpretation that is not effectve for the current
accountng period.

4. Profit before taxation
Auditor's remuneration of $57,000 (2018; §56,000) and all other expenses ol the Company which were incumed for the
administering of the Trust of $357,274 (2019: $370,850) for the year have been bome by HE Blectric Investments Limitad,
which has waived s night of recovery thereof.

Except for the abave, the Company did nat incur any administrative expenses during the current and pricr years,

5. Incometax

Ho provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the finencial statemants for the current and prios years as the
Company did nod have any assessable peofits

6. Dirsctors’ smolumants

Mo fees or other emaluments were paid of payable by the Company 1o the Deectors for tha cument and prior yeans

7. Amount due from immediate holding company

Amount due from immediate holding company i unsecured, inlerest-ree and repayabla on damand

8. Share capital

2020 | 2018
Numbar Humbar
) ) ) of shares A alshares &
Crdinary shares, issued and fully paid:
Al 1 January and 31 Decamber 1 1 1 1

In aceardance with saction 135 ol the Hong Kong Compansss Ordinance, 1he ordnary shares of the Cemgany do not have
apar value.
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Capital management

The primary abjectives of the Company when managing capital are o safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a
poing concem, S0 that it can canlinue 1o provide retums for the sole memaer and banefits for alher stakeholders. As the
Company ts part of a larger group, the Company’s sources of addibonal capétal and policies for distributon of excess capital
may alss be affected by the proup’s cagital management obyeclives

The Cempany defines “capital® as Including al components of equity. The Company aclively and regularly reveews and
manages its capital structure o suppor s fulure capital requiremants and operations. The Company has a specific and
limited role 10 admanistes the Trust, Al its capilal requrements are fuly supported by the ultimate: holoing company

The Company was nat subject to extemally imposed capdal regurements duning the current and prior years.

Immediate and ultimate controlling parties
A1 31 December 3020, the Directors consider the immediate and ullimate holding companies of the Company to be

Sure Grade Limited and Power Assels which are incorporated in the Brilish Virgn Island and Hang Kong, respectively.
Power Assats producas Bnancial statements avadabie for public use.

Financial risk management

Tha Company was nol exposed 1o any significant credil. iquidity, interes! rate and currency risks in the normal course of s
business during the curment and prior years.

Material related party transactions

Excapt for the transactions and balances declosed elsewhars in the financial staterments, the Company did nol enter mto
material related party fransactions,

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yat effective for the year ended 31 December 2020

Up ta the date of issue of these fnancial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments 1o HKFRSs which
wre nal yat efective for the year ended 31 Decembar 2020 and which have nol been adopted in these financial statemenis.

The Company is in the process of making an assessmaent of what the impact of these amendmenis is expected 10 ba in the

pertod of initial application. So far, it has conciuded that the adoption of them is unlikefy Io have a significant impact on
the Company's resulls of oparabons and iinancial positon
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE HOLDERS OF SHARE STAPLED UNITS OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS AND HK
ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED

(HK Electric Investments is a trust constituted under the laws of Hong Kong; HK Electric Investments Limited is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HK Electric Investments (the “Trust”), HK Electric Investments Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Trust Group”) and of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 94 to 173 (together referred to as the “consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company”).

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, the consolidated financial
statements of the Trust and of the Company together comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the

Trust Group and of the Group as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement of the
Trust Group and of the Group for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Trust Group and of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of the Trust Group’s and the
Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust Group and of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and the accounting policies 3(f), (g)

and (h)(ii).
The key audit matter

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, The
Hongkong Electric Company, Limited (“HK Electric”), is
engaged in the generation, transmission and distribution
of electricity in Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong electricity
business”), which requires substantial capital investment
in property, plant and equipment.

The Scheme of Control Agreement entered into by HK
Electric and the Government of the HKSAR provides for
HK Electric to earn a permitted return calculated based
on 8% of average net fixed assets. The Development
Plan under the Scheme of Control Agreement governs
HK Electric’s capital expenditure on the Hong Kong
electricity business over the Scheme of Control
Agreement period.

HK Electric’s property, plant and equipment is
specialised in nature and certain items are self-
constructed. The cost of self-constructed property, plant
and equipment comprises, inter alia, the costs of
materials and direct labour, overheads capitalised and
borrowing costs. The Directors have implemented
internal controls over the capitalisation of costs in
property, plant and equipment.

We identified assessing the existence and accuracy of
property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter
because property, plant and equipment is the most
significant asset of the

Trust Group and the Group and is critical to the
operations of Hong Kong electricity business and
because, due to the terms and conditions of the Scheme
of Control Agreement, property, plant and equipment is a
key focus of management and the users of the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the existence and
accuracy of property, plant and equipment included the
following:

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
existence and accuracy of property, plant and
equipment;

assessing the Trust Group’s and the Group’s
capitalisation policy for expenditure relating to
property, plant and equipment with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

selecting a sample items of property, plant and
equipment acquired and capitalised during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and inspecting
relevant underlying documentation to assess
whether these items met the criteria for
capitalisation with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards and to
evaluate the date on which costs were capitalised;

assessing whether the additions to property, plant
and equipment for the year ended 31 December
2020 were consistent with the Development Plan
agreed between HK Electric and the Government
of the HKSAR which governs the level of capital
expenditure over a period of time;

forming an expectation of the value of costs
capitalised for the current year based on the prior
year's capitalisation ratio and the level of capital
work undertaken during the current year,
comparing our expectation with the actual costs
capitalised for the current year and discussing with
management the nature of and reasons for any
significant variances; and

physically inspecting a sample of additions to

property, plant and equipment during the current
year.
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Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and the accounting policies 3(e) and

(h)(ii).
The key audit matter

The Company acquired the Hong Kong electricity
business operated by HK Electric from Power Assets
Holdings Limited in 2014. The goodwill arising on this
acquisition amounted to HK$33.6 billion.

Management assessed goodwill for potential impairment
as at 30 November 2020 by comparing the carrying
amount of

the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated with the recoverable amount determined by
assessing the value-in-use (“VIU") by preparing a
discounted cash flow forecast. Preparing a discounted
cash flow forecast involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, in particular

in forecasting revenue growth and operating profit and in
determining an appropriate discount rate.

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of
goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business as
a key audit matter because the carrying value of the
goodwill is material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Trust and of the Company and also
because management’s assessment of the value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the Hong
Kong electricity business involves certain critical
judgements in respect of the assumptions made which
are inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business
included the following:

evaluating management’s cash flow forecast by
comparing the assumptions adopted by
management with our understanding of the Hong
Kong electricity business and by comparing key
assumptions and estimates with relevant
underlying documentation, which included
comparing future revenue growth and operating
profit with the Development Plan agreed between
HK Electric with the Government of the HKSAR
and comparing components of the discount rate
with market data;

evaluating management’s rationale for adopting
cash flow projections over a period greater than
five years with reference to the guidance in the
prevailing accounting standards;

engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assess whether the discount rate applied in the
cash flow forecast was within the range adopted
by other companies in the same industry;

performing sensitivity analyses on the discount
rate and terminal growth rate applied and the
assumptions for revenue adopted by management
in the cash flow forecast to assess the impact of
changes in these key assumption on the
conclusion reached in management’s impairment
assessment and considering whether there were
any indicators of management bias in the
assumption adopted; and

comparing the actual results for the current year
with management’s forecasts for the previous year
in order to assess the historical accuracy of the
management’s forecasting process.
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Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and the accounting policy 3(r)(ii).

The key audit matter

Under the Scheme of Control Agreement, any difference
between the standard cost of fuel, as agreed with the
Government of the HKSAR, and the actual cost of fuel
consumed is transferred to the Fuel Clause Recovery
Account as Fuel Cost Account Adjustments.

Fuel Clause Charges (or Rebates) are charged (or given)
to electricity customers by adding to (or deducting from)
the Basic Tariff to produce a Net Tariff payable by
customers and are credited (or debited) to the Fuel
Clause Recovery Account.

The balance of the Fuel Clause Recovery Account at the
end of the reporting period represents the difference
between Fuel Clause Charges (or Rebates) and Fuel
Cost Account Adjustments during the year, together with
any balance brought forward from the prior year and
interest thereon based on prevailing market interest
rates.

According to the Fuel Clause Charge Adjustment
Mechanism, the adjustment of Fuel Clause Charge is
made on a monthly basis, which is based on the previous
three-month average actual cost of fuels.

We identified the Fuel Clause Recovery Account as a key
audit matter because it is a specific item in the Scheme of
Control Agreement and the balance of the Fuel Clause
Recovery Account is material as at 31 December 2020.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the balance of the Fuel
Clause Recovery Account included the following:

engaging our internal Information Risk
Management specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the
information technology automated controls that
govern the interface between the Trust Group’s
and the Group’s meter reading system which
records units of electricity sold and the Trust
Group’s and the Group’s accounting system;

forming an expectation of the amount of Fuel
Clause Charges to electricity customers based on
the units of electricity sold during the reporting
period and comparing our expectation with the
actual Fuel Clause Charges recorded by the Trust
Group and the Group;

evaluating the actual cost of fuel for the year
ended 31 December 2020 by inspecting supplier
invoices, on a sample basis;

evaluating the accrued charges for unbilled fuel
costs at 31 December 2020 by inspecting, on a
sample basis, the amounts settled subsequent to
31 December 2020 and relevant underlying
documentation;

understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key internal controls relating to
the Group’s Fuel Clause Charge Adjustment
Mechanism; and

recalculating of the balance of the Fuel Clause
Recovery Account as at 31 December 2020 taking
into account the balance brought forward at the
start of the financial year, Fuel Clause Charges,
Fuel Costs Account Adjustments and interest.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Directors of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (the “Trustee-Manager”, in its capacity as the trustee-manager of the
Trust) and the Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors of the Trustee-Manager and the Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Trust and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Trust Group’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Trust Group and the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Trust Group’s and the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust Group’s and the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Trust Group’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements of the Trust and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Trust Group and the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Trust Group and the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's reportis Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants 8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SOLE MEMBER OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 176 to
183, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at

31 December 2020 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Directors of the Company (in its capacity as the trustee-manager of HK Electric Investments) and of HK Electric
Investments Limited are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor
's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants 8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE HOLDERS OF SHARE STAPLED UNITS OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS AND HK
ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED

(HK Electric Investments is a trust constituted under the laws of Hong Kong; HK Electric Investments Limited is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HK Electric Investments (the “Trust”), HK Electric Investments
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Trust Group”) and of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 90 to 171 (together referred to as the “consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company”). As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, the consolidated
financial statements of the Trust and of the Company together comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the
Trust Group and of the Group as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement of the Trust Group and of the Group for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Trust Group and of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of the Trust Group’s and the
Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust Group and of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Existence and accuracy of property, plant and equipment

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and the accounting policies 3(f), (g)
and (h)(ii).
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, The
Hongkong Electric Company, Limited (“HK Electric”),

Our audit procedures to assess the existence and accuracy
of property, plant and equipment included the following:

is engaged in the generation, transmission and
distribution of electricity in Hong Kong (the “Hong
Kong electricity business”), which requires substantial
capital investment in property, plant and equipment.

The Scheme of Control Agreement entered into by HK
Electric and the Government of the HKSAR provides
for HK Electric to earn a permitted return calculated
based on 8% of average net fixed assets. The
Development Plan under the Scheme of Control
Agreement governs HK Electric’s capital expenditure
on the Hong Kong electricity business over the Scheme
of Control Agreement period.

HK Electric’s property, plant and equipment is
specialised in nature and certain items are self-
constructed. The cost of self-constructed property,
plant and equipment comprises, inter alia, the costs of
materials and direct labour, overheads capitalised and
borrowing costs. The Directors have implemented
internal controls over the capitalisation of costs in
property, plant and equipment.

We identified assessing the existence and accuracy of
property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter
because property, plant and equipment is the most
significant asset of the Trust Group and the Group and
is critical to the operations of Hong Kong electricity
business and because, due to the terms and conditions
of the Scheme of Control Agreement, property, plant
and equipment is a key focus of management and the
users of the consolidated financial statements of the
Trust and of the Company.

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls over the existence and accuracy
of property, plant and equipment;

assessing the Trust Group’s and the Group’s
capitalisation policy for expenditure relating to
property, plant and equipment with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

selecting a sample items of property, plant and
equipment acquired and capitalised during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess whether these
items met the criteria for capitalisation with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards and to evaluate the date on which costs
were capitalised;

assessing whether the additions to property, plant and
equipment for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
consistent with the Development Plan agreed between
HK Electric and the Government of the HKSAR which
governs the level of capital expenditure over a period
of time;

forming an expectation of the value of costs capitalised
for the current year based on the prior year's
capitalisation ratio and the level of capital work
undertaken during the current year, comparing our
expectation with the actual costs capitalised for the
current year and discussing with management the
nature of and reasons for any significant variances;
and

physically inspecting a sample of additions to property,
plant and equipment during the current year.
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Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and the accounting policies 3(e) and

(h)(i).
The key audit matter

The Company acquired the Hong Kong electricity
business operated by HK Electric from Power Assets
Holdings Limited in 2014. The goodwill arising on this
acquisition amounted to HK$33.6 billion.

Management assessed goodwill for potential
impairment as at 30 November 2021 by comparing the
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated with the recoverable
amount determined by assessing the value-in-use
(“VIU") by preparing a discounted cash flow forecast.
Preparing a discounted cash flow forecast involves the
exercise of significant management judgement, in
particular in forecasting revenue growth and operating
profit and in determining an appropriate discount rate.

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of
goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business
as a key audit matter because the carrying value of the
goodwill is material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Trust and of the Company and also
because management’s assessment of the value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the Hong
Kong electricity business involves certain critical
judgements in respect of the assumptions made which
are inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business
included the following:

evaluating management’s cash flow forecast by
comparing the assumptions adopted by management
with our understanding of the Hong Kong electricity
business and by comparing key assumptions and
estimates with relevant underlying documentation,
which included comparing future revenue growth and
operating profit with the Development Plan agreed
between HK Electric with the Government of the
HKSAR and comparing components of the discount
rate with market data;

evaluating management’s rationale for adopting cash
flow projections over a period greater than five years
with reference to the guidance in the prevailing
accounting standards;

engaging our internal valuation specialists to assess
whether the discount rate applied in the cash flow
forecast was within the range adopted by other
companies in the same industry;

performing sensitivity analyses on the discount rate
and terminal growth rate applied and the assumptions
for revenue adopted by management in the cash flow
forecast to assess the impact of changes in these key
assumption on the conclusion reached in management’
s impairment assessment and considering whether
there were any indicators of management bias in the
assumption adopted; and

comparing the actual results for the current year with
management’s forecasts for the previous year in order
to assess the historical accuracy of the management’s
forecasting process.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Directors of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (the “Trustee-Manager”, in its capacity as the trustee-manager of the
Trust) and the Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors of the Trustee-Manager and the Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Trust and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Trust Group’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Trust Group and the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Trust Group’s and the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust Group’s and the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Trust Group’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements of
the Trust and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Trust Group and the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Trust Group and the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Lee Wai Shun, Wilson.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SOLE MEMBER OF HK ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS MANAGER LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 174 to
182, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2021 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Directors of the Company (in its capacity as the trustee-manager of HK Electric Investments) and of HK Electric
Investments Limited are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 March 2022
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